MAY 25, 2016
APPLICATION SUMMARY

NAME OF PROJECT: Children’s Hospital at Erlanger and Erlanger East Hospital

PROJECT N UMBER: CN1601-002

ADDRESS: 1755 Gunbarrel Road
Chattanooga, (Hamilton County), TN 37403

LEGAL OWNER: C.‘hattanooga—Hamﬂton County Hospital Authority dba
Erlanger Health System -
975 East 31d Street
Chattanooga, TN 37403

OPERATING ENTITY:  Not Applicable
== LUNG ENTITY:

CONTACT PERSON- Joseph M. Winick, Senior Vice President
(423) 778-8088

DATE FILED: January 13, 2016
PROJECT COsT: $7,021,555

FINANCING: Funds from Operations of Owner
=XANCING:

.+ PURPOSE FOR FILING: Initiation of 10 bed Level III Neonata] Intensive Care Unit
(NICU) at Erlanger East Hospital
DESCRIPTION:

788 total licensed beds will pe transferred from EMC to the satellite hospital ang
reclassified to Level 111 NICU beds with the result that Brlanger East’s acute care bed
complement wijj increase from 113 to 123 total beds, The project wilj not change
Erlanger Medica] Center’s consolidated license fop 788 total beds and does not contain
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CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW
= =2 9IANDARDS REVIEW

SPECIFIC CRITERIA AND STANDARDS:

NEONATAL NURSERY SERVICES ;

Carolina and 2 counties from Alabama,

Since the project may create an excess or surplus of 27 Level IT and above NICU
beds in the 18 Tennessee County portion of the service areq, it appears that this
criterion is not met,
SLLERIon 15 not met

forward.

Using CY 2014 live births and population estimates Jor calendar year (CY) 2020,
the Tennessee Department of Health, Division of Policy, Planning and
Assessment calculated g projected need in CY 2020 Jor 89 Level IT and aboye
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Total Live

Births
Perinatal Region
Southeast TN
10 counties 59.5
Middle
4 counties

Eastern

Estimated
Births

Female
Population

Projected
Bed Need in

care beds) approved in CN0405-047AME, If approved, the satelljte hospital will
Operate a total of 22 Level IT and above NICU beds by December 1, 2017
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The applicant meets this criterion.

5. The applicant should demonstrate the ability to comply with the standards
developed in the Tennessee Perinatal Care System Guidelines for Regionalization,
Hospital Care Levels, Staffing and Facilities,

Based on comments from Perinatal Advisory Committee members, it is unclear
as 1o whether this criterion has been met.

6. The target population shall have access to the propoged service in terms of

payment for services, transportation, parking, geographical barriers, and access
for the handicapped,

The applicant indicates infants will have totg] financial accessibility to the
proposed NICU regardless of insurance coverage. There are no known
seographic barriers iy the service area that woyld impede patient access,
including access by handicapped individuals, to the proposed NICU serpice by
ground or air ambylance.

The applicant meets thi criterion,
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7. The Department of Health will consult with the Perinatal Advisory
Committee regarding applications,

A copy of the application was provided to the Perinatal Advisory Committee.
Comments from Committee members are attached to the TDH Project Summary,

1t appears that this criterion has been met.

SUMMARY:

Erlanger East Hospital (Erlanger East) is a 43 bed satellite hospital operating under the
consolidated 788 bed license of Erlanger Medical Center. Erlanger East's satellite
campus and the main hospital campus at Erlanger Medical Center are located
approximately 10 miles apart within the city limits of Chattanooga (Hamilton County),
Tennessee, In this project, Erlanger Fast seeks approval to initiate Level I neonatal

conditions than infants currently being treated in jts existing Level II NICU service (6
Operational beds and 6 of 7( remaining CON approved, but unimplemented, beds from
CN0405—047AME). The satellite hospital’s Leve] I1 NICU service and Proposed Level II]
service will be Managed by Children’s Hospital at Erlanger. Children’s Operates a 64
bed Level IV NICU service and is the designated Regional Perinatal Center for the
Southeast Tennessee Perinata] Region,
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urgent basis,

* Level II-Provides caye for infants born ar <32 weeks gestation oy weigh <1,500
8rams at birth or haype complex medical oy surgical conditions, regardless of
gestational age,

complex and critically ill newborn infants,

HSDA Rule 720-9--,01 (16) defines neonatal intensive care units as a special care unit
equipped to provide professional intensiye freatment for the care of newborns with
severe or complicated illyesses and/or high-risk newbor infants, staffed by a
neonatologist and specialized nturses and in which bassinets gye used as licensed beds,

After consultation between HSDA staff and Michael D. Warren, M.D,, Chaiyr of the
Perinatal Advisory Committee, it was determined that Level 11 nurseries and higher
met the HSDA definition for neonatal intensive care units,

imaging scanner (MRI).
* The project, Erlanger East CN 0405-047AE, has been extended by the Agency on
four occasions:
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1) June 25, 2008-from December 1, 2008 to December 1, 2010;

2) June 23, 2010-from December 1, 2010 to December 1, 2012;

3) September 26, 2012- from December 1, 2012 to December 1, 2014; and
4) September 24, 2014- from December 1, 2014 to December 1, 2016,

economic downturn, EHS announced in late 2014 that financial position and investor
ratings had improved. EHS executives met with HSDA leadership in December 2014 to
discuss development plans. For Erlanger East Hospital, this covered plans for the
completion of CN040 -047AE, the initiation of the radiation therapy service (approved

Ownership
The applicant is a satellite hospital operating under the combined license of Erlanger
Medical Center (EMC), owned by the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital
Authority d/b/a the Erlanger Health System. EMC currently has 788 licensed beds in
Hamilton County. The components of Erlanger Health System include

* Erlanger Medical Center (688 licensed beds) which includes the Children’s

Hospital at Erlanger (121 licensed beds) on the main campus;
* Erlanger East Hospital (43 licensed beds) on the East Campus
* Erlanger North Hospital (57 licensed beds) on the North Campus.

In addition to the hospitals in Hamilton County, Erlanger Health System includes
separately licensed Erlanger Bledsoe (25 licensed beds) in Bledsoe County.

Please note the table below for the bed assignments by facﬂity and service under EMC’s
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Erlanger East
Satellite

Neonatal ICU

Pediatric
Adult Ps chiatric

* EEH is a 27 acre satellite hospital campus located within 1 mile of I-75 and the

e Er
e A
According to the 2014 Join

beds and staffed for 37 beds and reported 9,276 days of care during the 2014 calendar

year period (average daily census of 25 patients per day). The licensed and staffed bed
occupancy was 59.1% and 68.7% in 2014, respectively.

According to the Department of Health and pertaining to the Joint Annual Reports, the .'!
following defines the two bed categories:

Staffed Beds-The tota] number of adult and pediatric beds set up, staffed and in yse at

the end of the reporting period. This numbey should be less than or equal to the number
of licensed beds,
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Project Need
The applicant identifies the following highlights justifying the need for the project:
* Provide continuity of care for NICU service at Erlanger East, allowing less

recent changes in the definition for NICU services by level of care.
® Reduction in problems associated with providing sufficient NICU bed capacity at

® Assafety net hospital in region, meet need for access to NICU services for
individuals without adequate health insurance coverage and individuals
enrolled in Medicaid /TennCare,

Applicant’s Proposed NICU Service Area
EEH’s proposed service area includes 18 Tennessee Counties. Approximately 67% of
the applicant’s NICU patients originated from the 10 county Southeast TN Perinatal.
For the 18 counties as a whole, 74% of the applicant’s NICU patients originated from
counties contained in the Southeast, East and Middle TN Perinatal Regions. The
applicant clarified the demographics of the service area in the table on page 10 of
Supplemental 2, Highlights are noted below.
* The total population of the service area is estimated at 773,810 residents in
calendar year (CY) 2016 increasing by approximately 3.6% to 801,374 residents in
CY 2020 compared to 3.6% statewide,
* As a whole, females ages 15-44 are expected to account for approximately
181,710 or 22.7% of the total service area population in CY2020.
® Service area residents enrolled in the TennCare program averaged
approximately 22.6% of the total service area population in CY 2016 compared
to 20.0% statewide,
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NICU Level o Care ilization i plicant’s 18 Coun Service Areq

2014 % Average

Patient Length of

Days Stay
(days/ case)

2014
Children’s Hamilton 16,061 15,651 | 17377 8.2% 854 20.3 days
Hospital at
Erlanger
o | o
year
| Parkridge East |

: WMH]‘EH 4,581 zmmmm
Starr Regional McMinn 11 Level II NA 1,099 668 -39.2% 388 1.8 days
g (1 year
)

change,
Slyridge | Bradley | 3 Lepel T1 mmmmmm
Total

5 hospitals, 20,005 21,539 | 24629 23.1% 1,888 13.1 days
106 total
NICU beds

Note: *Excludes an additional 6 Leve] [ approved but unimplemented beds Jfrom CN0405-047AME. Sources: CN1601-002 and
TDH project summary,

The table above reflects the following:
* For the hospital NICU services as 5 whole, utilization increased by

approximately 23.1% from 20,005 total patients days in CY 2012 t 24,629 total
patient days in CY 2014 (68 infants/ day).

average length of stay was approximately 13 days.

* The hospital with the highest increase in utilization during the period was
Parkridge East Hospital (28.9 %).

Applicant’s Historical and Projected Utilization

Whole Hospital: The utilization trend of Erlanger East Hospital as a whole was clarified
in Supplemental 1 and is shown in the table on page 52-R. Note: The historical
utilization of the satellite hospital is based on the internal records of Erlanger Health
System and are different than the patient days Erlanger East reported in the Joint
Annual Reports Jor the 2013 and 2014 reporting periods. Clarification of Erlanger East’s
NICU utilization was provided on page 21 of Supplemental 1 and page 11 of
Supplemental 2. |
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11

of licensed beds shown for Erlanger East in Year 1 (43) remains unchanged from the
satellite hospital’s current licensed bed complement, However, the applicant expects
utilization to be higher as the additional 70 remaining unimplemented beds approved
in CN0405-047 AME come on line in the near future,

Table 1-Erlanger East Hospital Historical and Projected Utilization

% Change Year 1 Year 2
13-15 2018 2019

TotalBeds | 43 |

8 | B Y
Total 6,161 5,690 6,378 3.5% 6,473* 6,521
Inpatient
Days
Average 17/ day 16/day 18/day NA 18/day 18/day
Daily
Census
NICU Level
II Beds
NICU Level
e[ F
NICU Level | '
_ _
NICU Level ;
III Cases
addition of 6 of the 70 peds remaining from CN0405-047AME that will be set up and staffed as

*Note: Includes the

Level IT NICU beds in 2018 The related utilizgtion of the 6 additional Level 1] beds in 2018 and 2019 ;s identified in
the row of the table abope labeled NICU Level 11 Cases. Source: page 21, Supplemental 1 (historical utilization i
derived from the interyg] records of Erlanger Health System).

Measure
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Campus NICU | Cases | Cases Cases % NICU Beds Projected Projected
beds 2013 2014 2015 | change 2018 Cases Cases

2015 13’-15’ (Year 1) 2018 2019
(Year 1) Year 2
Children’s 64 809 863 886 9.5% 73 832 832
Hospital | Level IV Level IV
Erlanger 6 211 251 270 28.0% 12 Level IT 925 925

East Level IT 10 Level III combined combined

EMC 70 1,020 | 1,114 1,156 13.3% 95 1,757 1,757
Combined
Total

Sources: CN1601-002 - page 21, Supplemental 1

The tables above reflect the following:
¢ Table 1-For Erlanger East Hospital as a whole, the inpatient utilization of the 43
licensed bed satellite hospital increased by approximately 3.5% from 2013-2015
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Table 2-For the NICU service line of Erlanger Medical Center as a whole, the
applicant expects utilization to increase by approximately 52% from 1,156 total
combined cases in 2015 to 1,757 total cases in Year 1 (2018).
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Item 5 of Supplemental 2 revealed that the applicant projects 27,957 total
combined NICU patient days in Year 1. The utilization by hospital is as follows:
Children’s Hospital-21,187 days; Erlanger East Level I NICU-3,850 days; and
Erlanger East Level II1-2,920 days.

satellite hospital - from unfavorable net income of -$1,054,943 in 2015 to favorable net
income of $1,321,168 in Year 1 of the project (2018).
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With respect to the applicant’s proposed 10 bed Leve

Projected Data

Hospital's financial perform

Erlan

13

I IIT service, review of the
page 59 of the application revealed favorable net operating
1 (2018) on 2,920 patient days. Highlights of Erlanger East
ance are shown in the table below.

Chart on

’

er East Hospital Historical & Projected Financial Performance

Financial Whole Existing Whole Proposed Combined

Measure Hospital Level I Hospital Level 11T NICU
FY 2015 NICU Unit FY 2018 NICU Unit Service

2015 FY2018 FY2018

Patient Days 12,811 1,916 31,881 6,770

Gross Operating $163,728,547 | $9,487 646 $306,092,305 $13,083,166 $31,122,158

Revenue

Gross Revenue/ | $12,780 /day | $4,952/ day | $9,601/ day | $4,480/ day | $4,597/ day

Patient da

Net Operating $42,886,558 | $2,534,528 $81,173,686 $3,376,816 $8,122,354

Revenue

Total Operating $28,547,262 | $2,192,658 $55,532,558 $2,936,622 $5,868,444

Expenses

EBDITA $14,339,295 $341,870 $25,641,128 $1,060,671

Depreciation $1,961,984 $6,938 $5461,197 $620,477

Capital $501,147 $15,950 $5,151,675 0 $1,008,713

Expenditures

Total Indirect $12,931,107 $775,981 $13,707,088 0 $775,981

Expenses (not
included above

The table reflec

Charges

appears to be reasonably si
identified in attachment C-

CHILDREN’

ocuCedabove) | 000 |
Net Income -$1,054,943

-$456,999 $1,321,168 $440,194 -$530,485

ts the following:

II-6.B of the application. Note: The ave

S HOSPITAL AT ERLAN GER AND ERLANGER E
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$33,643 per patient identified on page 60 of the application calculates to the product of
$4,480/patient day x an average length of stay of approximately 7.51 days per Level III infant
admission,
* The average gross charges by clinical service line, including obstetrics, of the 6
hospitals in Chattanooga are shown in Attachment C-11-6.A of the application.

Combined NICU Service and Erlang er East Hospital Pa or Mix, Year 1
as a % of Erlanger East | asa % of

-Erlanger and- © Gross— Gross NICU Gross
Erlanger East Revenue Revenue Revenue
Combined Year 1 Year 1 Year 1
NICU Gross
Revenue -
2015
Medicare “ 0 0
TennCare | $94686652 | gry | 32%
Commercial/} $45,797,294 32% $19,944,053 64%
Managed Care

[ Total | §141,599,687

Project Cost
The total estimated project cost is $7,021,555, Major costs are:

* Renovation costs for set-up of 8,805 square foot 10 bed Leve] III unit - $3,551,783
or 50.6% of total cost.

* Minor/moveable medica] equipment costs for the service - $2,156,732 or 30.7% of
the total cost.

CN1601-002
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associated with the establishment of a NICU.

* For other details on Project Cost, see the Project Cost Chart on page 54 of the
application.

* A letter dated January 6, 2016 from the Senior Vice President of HKS, an
architectural firm based in Atlanta, Georgia, confirms the estimated construction
cost of the project and compliance with all building and safety codes that apply
to the project.

Financing
The project will be funded from continuing operations of Erlanger Health System.

* A copy of the funding commitment letter from J. Britton Tabor, CPA, Executive
Vice President and CFO/ Treasurer is provided in Attachment C-II-2 of the
application.

* Review of the Audited Combined Financial Statements of Erlanger Health
System provided in the attachments revealed cash & cash equivalents of
$92,642,502, current assets of $240,041,459 and current liabilities of $91,295,510

 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, Based on these amounts, HSDA staff
calculated a current ratio of approximately 2.63 to 1.0,

cover its current liabilities with its existing current assets, A ratio of 1:1 would
be required to have the minimum amount of assets needed to coper current
liabilities,

Staffing

The applicant currently operates a Level JJ NICU service and has an existing
professional services agreement with the Pediatrix Medical Group of Tennessee, P.C.
(PMG) for medical supervision by Dr. Lisa Lowery-Smith and coverage of the service
by Neonatal Nurse Practitioners (NNP) under the supervision of PMG’s neonatologists.
Dr. Smith is also the medical director of the Leve] IV NICU service at Children’s
Hospital and serves as the Southeast Tennessee Perinatal Region’s representative to the
State Perinatal Advisory Committee, Ttem 5 of Supplemental 1 provides additional
clarification about the applicant’s professional clinical staffing arrangements with

Lowery-Smith’s resume and her letter of support for the project were also included in
the attachments of Supplemental 1.
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Nurse Manager. The staffing plan for other clinica] staff consists of a combined tota of
183.07 FTE for EMC’s NICU service as a whole, including 51.05 FTE allocated to
Erlanger East Hospital. A breakout by discipline is provided on page 26 of
Supplemental 1 and on page 5 of the Department of Health’s project summary report.

Applicant’s Proposed Level III NICU Staffing

FTE
Position Type Year 1

4.5

Neonatal Nurse Practitioner

Registered Nurse 32.98
Resgiratogx Theragist 9.57
Pharmacist 4.0
Other Clinical 0
Total 51.05

*Note: 1 FTE means an employee who works 2,080 regular hours per year,

Licensure/Accreditation

The applicant has submitted the required corporate and site control documentation, Staff will
have a copy of these documents available for member reference at the meeting. Copies are also
available for review at the Health Services and Development A gency office.

Should the Agency vote to approve this project, the CON would expire in three years.

CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR THE APPLICANT:

There are no other Letters of Intent, denied o pending applications for this applicant.

Outstanding Certificates of Need

extension of the time, will expire on December 1, 2016. The CON was approved at the
October 27, 2004 A gency meeting for the construction of anew four (4) story patient
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The project expiration date was extended to December 1, 2016 at the September 24, 2014 Agency
meeting (the project’s 4th approved exltension request). Pey ay, email dated 5/6/16 from g
representative of the applicant, the project, which includes the transfer of 79 beds from E rlanger

Medical Center, is wel] on its way to completion, Target occupancy/completion is 12/1/2016 or

Erlanger Health System has financiql interests in this project and the following:

Outstanding Certificates of N eed

Jull service cancer center. The cancer center will be housed in newly constructed by ilding, now
in design, that will also house space Jor support services, The project is expected to be completed
on or before May 1, 2018 at or belog CON authorized cost.

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Medical Center,
CN1207-034AE, has an outstanding Certificate of Need that will expire on November il
2017 (as modified from original expiration date of December 1, 2015). The CON was
approved at the October 24, 2012 Agency meeting for the renovation, upgrade and
modernization of adult Operating rooms, including the addition of four (4) new
Operating rooms. No other health care services will be initiated or discontinued. The

CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL AT ERLANGER AND ERLANGER EAST HOSPITAL
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PUBLICATION OF INTENT
TENNESSEE HEALTH SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Instructions To Newspaper

The following shall be. published in the “Legal Notices” section of the newspaper in a space
no smaller than four (4) inches,

NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR A CERTIFICATE OF NEED

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services & Development Agency and all
interested parties, in accordance with T.C.A. § 68-11-1601 ez seq., and the Rules of the Health
Services & Development Agency, that Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and Erlanger East
Hospital, owned by the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority D/B/A Erlanger
Health System, with an ownership type of governmental, and to be managed by itself, intends to
file an application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to modernize the CON originally issued in

The facility and equipment will be located at Erlanger East Hospital, 1755 Gunbarrel Road,
Chattanooga, Hamilton Coun » Tennessee, 37421. The tota] project cost is estimated to be
$7,021,555.00.

The anticipated date of filing the application is January 13, 2015.

The contact person for this project is Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President, Erlanger Health
System, 975 East 3" Street, Chattanooga, Tennessee, 37403, and by phone at (423) 778-7274.

Upon written request by interested parties, a local Fact-Finding public hearing shall be conducted. Written
requests for hearing should be sent to:

Health Services & Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9 Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Pursuant to T.C.A. § 68-11-1607(c)(1): (A) Any health care institution wishing to oppose a Certificate Of
Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and Development Agency no later than
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Copy

Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger & Erlanger
East Hospital
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CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority
D/B/A
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger
And

Erlanger East Hospital

Application To Modernize The Certificate -0f Need
Originally Issued In 2004 (Né. CN0405-047AE)
By Initiating A Level III Neonatal Intensive Care Unit,
Reclassifying Medical / Surgical Beds To Neonatal

And Transferring Medical / Surgical Beds

ERLANGER HEALTH SYSTEM
Chattanooga, Tennessee
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Section A

APPLICANT PROFILE

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III

CON Application -- Page 2 01/12/16 12:19 PM
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Section A: APPLICANT PROFILE

Please enter all Section A responses on this form. All
questions must be answered. If an item does not apply,
please indicate “N/A”. Attach appropriate documentation as
an Appendix at the end of the application and reference the
applicable item Number on the attachement.

1. Name of Facility, Agency, or Institution.

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority
D/B /A

Erlanger East Hospital

1755 Gunbarrel Road

Hamilton County

Chattanooga, TN 37416

2. Contact Person Available For Responses To Questions.

Joseph M. Winick, Sr. Vice President
Planning & Business Development
Erlanger Health System
975 East 3™ Street
Chattanooga, TN 37403
(423) 778-8088
(423) 778-7525 —- FAX
Joseph.Winick@erlanger.org -— E-Mail

3. Owner of the Facility, Agency, or Institution.

Chattanooga - Hamilton County Hospital Authority
D/ B /A

Erlanger Health System

975 East 3™ Street

Hamilton County

Chattanooga, TN 37403
(423) 778-7000

4. Type of Ownership or Control.
A. Sole Proprietorship
B. Partnership
Ca Limited Partnership
D. Corporation (For Profit)

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 3 01/12/16 12:19 PM
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Corporation (Not-for-Profit)

Governmental (State of TN or Political Subdivision) X
Joint Venture

Limited Liability Company

Other (Specify)

H T Qe

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL
ATTACHMENTS.

—= A copy of the enabling legislation along with
a copy of the certification by the Tennessee
Secretary of State is attached at the end of
this Application.

—— Please note that Erlanger Health System is a
single legal entity and Erlanger East
Hospital is an administrative unit of
Erlanger Health Systemn.

Se, Name of Management / Operating Entity (if applicable) .

** Not Applicable. **

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL

ATTACHMENTS.
6. Legal Interest in the Site of the Institution
(Check One)
A. Ownership X
B. Option to Purchase
Cs Lease of Years
D. Option to lLease
E. Other (Specify)

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER
AND REFERENCE THE APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL
ATTACHMENTS.

7. Type of Institution
(Check as appropriate — more than one
response may apply)

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU —- Level III
CON Application -- Page 4 01/12/16 12:19 PM
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&

Hospital (Specify) X
General Medical / Surgical

Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center
(ASTC), Multi-Specialty

ASTC, Single Specialty

Home Health Agency

Hospice

Mental Health Hospital

Mental Health Residential Treatment
Facility

Mental Health Institutional\Habilitation
Facility (ICF/MR)

Nursing Home

Outpatient Diagnostic Center

Recuperation Center

Rehabilitation Facility

Residential Hospice

Non-Residential Methadone Facility

Birthing Center

Other Outpatient Facility (Specify)

QM mEoO o

]

TOZE0®RgH

T T

1o

Other (Specify)

8. Purpose of Review
(Circle Letter(s) as appropriate — more than one
response may apply)

New Institution
Replacement/Existing Facility
Modification/Existing Facility
Initiation of Health Care Service
As Defined In TCA § 68-11-1607 (4)
(Specify)
Neonatal Intensive Care X
Discontinuance of OB Services
Fis Acquisition of Equipment
G. Change in Beds X
[Please note the type of change by underlining
the appropriate response:
Increase, Decrease, Designation,
Distribution, Conversion, Relocation]
H. Change of Location .
I Other (Specify)

/]

OQwx

=1

|

Erlanger East Hospital ~ NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 5 01/12/16 12:19 PM
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9. Bed Complement Data
Please indicate current and proposed distribution
and certification of facility beds.

Licensed (%) CON Staffed Beds

TOTAL
Beds at

Beds Beds Beds Proposed Completion

Medical 12 44 12 58
Surgical 6 22 6 30
Long-Term Care Hospital

Obstetrical 25 25 25
ICU/CCU 4

Neonatal 10
Pediatric

Adult Psychiatric

Geriatric Psychiatric

Child / Adolescent Psychiatric

Rehabilitation

Nursing Facility (Non — Medicaid Certified)

Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)

Nursing Facility Level 2 (Medicare only)

Nursing Facility Level 2
(dually certified Medicaid / Medicare )

ICF /MR
Adult Chemical Dependency
Child and Adolescent Chemical

Dependency
Swing Beds
Mental Health Residential Treatment
Residential Hospice

TOTAL 43 70 43 123

(*) CON Beds approved but not yet in service. ,

Notes

(1) Erilanger East Hospital holds a CON for the transfer of
up to 79 beds from Erlanger Medical Center (no. CN0O405-
047AE). Nine (9) beds have already been implemented in
this process.

(2) Erlanger East Hospital also received a CON to transfer
six (6) beds from Erlanger Medical Center (no. CNQO407-
0678) for it’s Level II Special Care Nursery.

(3) Erlanger East Hospital operates as a satellite facility
of Erlanger Medical Center under the Tennessee Dept. of
Health - License No. 000140.

(4) Erlanger East Hospital was approved in 2004 for a four
(4) bed ICU. However, due to adoption of updated “blue
tooth” technology that will be utilized, the original

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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ICU beds have been re-allocated to general acute
medical / surgical beds. This technology allows any
medical / surgical bed to function as a critical care

bed.
10. Medicare Provider Number 044-0104
Certification Type General Medical/Surgical
11. Medicaid Provider Number 044-0104 (** See note.)
Certification Type General Medical/Surgical

** Please note that the same provider number for Medicare
has been shown for Medicaid as well. This is because
the individual TennCare MCO's each assign their own
particular provider ID numbers. Erlanger East
Hospital is licensed, and operates as, a satellite
facility of Erlanger Medical Center.

12. If this is a new facility, will certification be
sought for Medicare and / or Medicaid ?

Yes No

** Not Applicable - Erlanger East Hospital
currently participates in both the Medicare
and TennCare/Medicaid programs as a
satellite facility of Erlanger Medical
Center.

13. Identify all TennCare Managed Care Organizations /
Behavioral Health Organizations (MCO’s/BHO’s)
operating in the proposed service area. Will
this project involve the treatment of TennCare
participants ? Yes @ If the response to this
item is yes, please identify all MCO’s/BHO’s with
which the applicant has constracted or plans to
contract.

Discuss any out-of-network relationships in place
with MCO’s/BHO’s in the area.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level 111
CON Application -- Page 7 01/12/16 12:19 PM
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With the initiation of the Health Care Exchanges
under the Affordable Care Act on January 1, 2014; Blue
Cross Network E enrolled over 10,000 uninsured people;
Erlanger is the exclusive provider in this network.
Further, an additional 7,000 people were enrolled in Blue
Network S, where Erlanger is one of two providers in this
network. Erlanger is the low cost and safety net provider
in the regional service area and participates in narrow
networks to facilitate needed care for those who would
otherwise not access to needed healthcare services.
Erlanger is also the contract navigation agency for
Southeast Tennessee for enrollment of the uninsured using
the health insurance exchange.

Erlanger currently has contracts with the
following entities.

A. TennCare Managed Care Organizations

—-— BlueCare

-— TennCare Select

—— BmeriGroup Community Care

—— United Healthcare Community Plan

B. Georgia Medicaid Managed Care Organizations

—— AmeriGroup Community Care
—-— Peach State Health Plan
-— WellCare Of Georgia

C. Commercial Managed Care Organizations

—— Blue Cross / Blue Shield of Tennessee
— Blue Network P
- Blue Network S
- Blue Network E
- Blue CoverTN
- Cover Kids
— AccessTN
- Blue Advantage
-— Blue Cross of Georgia (HMO & Indemnity)
—— Baptist Health Plan

—— CIGNA Healthcare of Tennessee, Inc.
(includes LocalPlus)

—— CIGNA Lifesource (Transplant Network)
—— UNITED Healthcare of Tennessee, Inc.
(Commercial & Medicare Advantage)

—— Aetna Health

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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—-— Health Value Management D/B/A Choice Care
Network (Commercial & Medicare Advantage)

~-— HUMANA
(Choicecare Network, HMO, PPO, POS &
Medicare Advantage)

—— HUMANA Military
—— Cigna-HealthSpring
(Commercial & Medicare Advantage)
—— WellCare Medicare
—-— Olympus Managed Health Care, Inc.
—— TriWest (VAPC3)

D. Alliances
—— Health One Alliance

E. Networks

-— Multi-Plan (includes Beech Street & PHCS)
—-— MCS Patient Centered Healthcare

-- National Provider Network

—— NovaNet (group health)

—— USA Managed Care Corp.

—-—- MedCost

—— Alliant Health Plan

-— Crescent. Preferred. Provider Organization
-— Evolutions Healthcare System

~- Prime Health Resources

—— Three Rivers Provider Network

-- Galaxy Health Network

-— First Health Network

—-—- Integrated Health Plan

-— Logicomp Business Solutions, Inc.

—— HealthSCOPE Benefits, Inc.

—— HealthCHOICE (Oklahoma State & Education
Employees Group Insurance Board)

F. Other

—-—Alexian Brothers Community Services

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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Section B

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 10 : 01/12/16 12:19 PM



32

Section B: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Please answer all gquestions on 8 ¥” x 11”7 white paper,
clearly typed and spaced, identified correctly and in the
correct sequence. In answering, please type the question
and the response. All exhibits and tables must be attached
to the end of the application in correct sequence
identifying the question(s) to which they refer. If a
particular question does not apply to your project,
indicate “Not Applicable (NA)” after that question.

I. Provide a brief executive summary of the project not
to exceed two pages. Topics to be included in the
executive summary are a brief description of proposed
services and equipment, ownership structure, service
area, need, existing resources, project cost, funding,
financial feasibility and staffing.

Response

In 2004, Erlanger East Hospital applied for and
received approval for K a certificate of need (No. CN0405-
047AE) for the relocation of 79 additional beds from
Erlanger Medical Center and the expansion of services to
include a full service Emergency Dept. and Cardiac
Catheterization Lab for diagnostic procedures. The project
has been implemented in phases with several extensions
granted for this CON in the intervening 11 years since
initial approval. Given the time span since original
approval, Erlanger East Hospital has a need, and seeks
approval, to modernize its facility plan for this phase of
the expansion project.

A CON application was submitted in December, 2014, for
Erlanger East Hospital seeking approval to initiate a
satellite radiation therapy service along with the
relocation of a Linear Accelerator from Erlanger Medical
Center (No. CN1412-048); this CON application was approved
on March 25, 2015. A CON application was also submitted in
February, 2015, to upgrade the Cardiac Catheterization
Laboratory originally approved in 2004 from a diagnostic
catheterization laboratory to an interventional /
therapeutic laboratory (No. CN1502-005); this application
was approved on May 27, 2016.

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level 11T
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Now Erlanger East Hospital seeks approval to initiate
and operate a ten (10) bed Level III NICU. Erlanger East
Hospital is licensed, and operates as, a satellite facility
of Erlanger Medical Center; it’s beds are included in the
Erlanger Medical Center license. The ten (10) additional
Level III NICU beds at Erlanger East Hospital will be
transferred from Erlanger Medical Center and converted to
NICU beds, though the total number of licensed beds at
Erlanger will remain the same at 788. Erlanger East
Hospital will have 123 beds licensed on completion of the
Level III NICU. The existing Level II unit for “sick”
newborns (CONJNO.-CNO4O7—O67A) will continue to operate at
Erlanger East Hospital for those newborn patients not
requiring Level III neonatal care.

The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will be
managed by Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger. Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger currently operates a 64 bed Level III
NICU, and is being reclassified as a Level IV NICU, as it
currently meets those standards as detailed in the
Tennessee Perinatal Guidelines. Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger is in process of finalizing plans to replace and
expand its hospital in phases which will include further
expansion of the NICU. Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger is
the State designated Regional Perinatal Center for
southeast Tennessee. The hospital provides'arcomplete and
comprehensive range of neonatal services to newborn
patients. who originate from a large geographic area
requiring advanced medical care. A

Under the management of Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, the Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will
be prepared to provide state of the art NICU services.
Clinical staff from Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger will
provide educational programming along with other support
and resources, as needed. As an established Regional
pPerinatal Center, Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger has the
expertise to manage the development and implementation of
an efficient and effective Level III NICU. Erlanger’s
“system of care” is differentiated because core
competencies are shared within and between, all of the
facilities that comprise Erlanger Health System, including
a major academic medical center and children’s hospital.

This “system of care” allows Erlanger Health System to
provide complementary services and programs at each campus
. a patient in need can gain access to the most advanced

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level 111
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levels of patient care wherever they are located. 1In
addition to programmatic linkage, the expertise and core
competencies are linked. Erlanger satellite hospitals are
not stand alone, greenfield hospital’s that operate
independently. They capitalize on the clinical expertise
and resources of a major academic medical center and
children’s hospital which together comprise the foundation
of the 7™ largest public health system in the United
States. Five (5) Erlanger hospitals, each on different
campuses, actually operate as one.

The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital is
classified as such, by the Tennessee Perinatal Guidelines,
7t Edition, adopted in April, 2014. The Level II neonatal
unit at Erlanger East Hospital will be increased from six
(6) beds to twelve (12) beds as part of the expansion
project authorized by the CON approved in 2004. The Level
IV unit at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger will expand by
nine (9) beds, from 64 to 73, using available beds from
Erlanger Medical Center. This project is an internal
renovation not subject to CON review as no new services or
beds will be added and the capital cost is below the $ 5
million threshold. Neonatal services at Erlanger Health
System are a “core competency” and both the Level II and
Level III units at Erlanger East Hospital will be closely
coordinated with the Level IV unit at Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger. Significant synergy will be created for the
Neonatal service line within and across Erlanger Health
System.

Proposed Services & Equipment
Erlanger East Hospital seeks to modernize the original
CON approved in 2004 by initiating a Level TIT NICU.
Ten (10) médical/surgical beds will be transferred
from Erlanger Medical Center to Erlanger East Hospital
and will be converted to NICU beds.

Ownership Structure
The Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority is
a governmental unit of the State of Tennessee, created
by a private act of the Tennessee General Assembly in
1976. The hospital authority does business under the
trade names of Erlanger Health System, Erlanger
Medical Center, Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and
Erlanger East Hospital, among others. As a
governmental unit, there are no “owners”, per se,

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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other than the people and general public of the State
of Tennessee.

Service Area
The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and
North Carolina. This service area comprises a total
of 30 counties in its 4 state geography. A complete
listing of the service area by county is attached to
this CON application.

Need
The need for the Level III NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU
utilization at Children’s Hospital €@ Erlanger, 2.) a
gquantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for
NICU services in the service area, and 3.)
implementation of a transitional neonatal program that
allows newborns to be placed in the most appropriate
setting .. whether with the mother, in a Level IT
nursery or a Level III NICU depending on clinical
need.

Existing Resources
Within the service area, there are a total of 90 NICU
beds that can serve Level III patients; they are at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger (64 beds), Chattanooga,
TN; Parkridge East Hospital (22 beds), East Ridge, TN;
and Hamilton Medical Center (4 beds), Dalton, GA.
There are a total of 20 NICU beds that can serve Level
II patients; they are at Athens Regional Medical
Center (11 beds), Athens, Tennessee; Skyridge Medical
Center (3 beds), Cleveland, Tennessee; and Erlanger
East Hospital (6 beds), Chattanooga, Tennessee. This
is a total of 110 neonatal beds in the defined service
area.

Project Cost
The project cost is estimated to be $ 7,021,555,

Funding
The funding for this project will be provided from
operations of Erlanger Health System. A letter from
the CFO is attached to this CON application.

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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Financial Feasibility
The Projected Data Chart shows that this project is
financially viable in both years 1 and 2.

Staffing
Staffing for the Level III NICU will be 14.4 RN’s and
4.4 unit clerks.

II. Provide a detailed narrative of the project by
addressing the following items as they relate to the
proposal.

A. Describe the construction, modification and / or
renovation to the facility (exclusive of major
medical equipment covered by T.C.A. section
68-11-1601 et seqg.) including square footage,
major operational areas, room configuration, etc.
Applicants with hospital projects (construction
cost in excess of $§ 5 million) and other facility
projects (construction cost in excess of
$ 2 million) should complete the Square Footage
And Cost Per Square Foot Chart. Utilizing the
attached Chart, applicants with hospital projects
should complete Parts A.-E. by identifying as
applicable nursing units, ancillary areas, and
support areas affected by this project. Provide
the location of the unit/service within the
existing facility along with current square
footage, where, if any, the unit/service will
relocate temporarily during construction and
renovation, and then the location of the
unit/service with proposed square footage. The
total cost per square foot should provide a
breakout between new construction and renovation
cost per square foot. Other facility projects
need only complete Part B.-E. Please also
discuss and justify the cost per square foot for
this project.

If the project involves none of the above
describe the development of the proposal.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level 111
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The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will be
new construction; the space to be added is 8,805 square
feet.

B. Identify the number of beds increased, decreased,
converted, relocated, designated, and/or
distributed by this application. Describe the
reasons for change in bed allocations and
describe the impact the bed change will have on
the existing services.

Response

Applicant seeks to transfer ten (10) medical/surgical
acute care beds from Erlanger Medical Center and to convert
these beds to NICU Level III beds.

The need for the Level III NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU
utilization at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, 2.) a
quantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for NICU
services in the service area, and 3.) implementation of a
transitional neonatal program that allows newborns to be
placed in the most appropriate setting .. whether with the
mother, in a Level II nursery or a Level III NICU depending

on clinical need.

Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger in conjunction with
Erlanger East Hospital seeks approval to initiate a Level
III, ten (10) bed neconatal intensive care unit (“™NICU”).
The Level III NICU is classified as such by the Tennessee
Perinatal Guidelines, 7" Edition, adopted in April, 2014.
This will be accomplished by transferring ten (10) general
medical / surgical acute care beds from Erlanger Medical
Center to Erlanger East Hospital and conversion of these
beds to NICU beds. The Level II unit at Erlanger East
Hospital will be increased from six (6) beds to twelve (12)
beds as part of the expansion project authorized by the CON
approved in 2004. The Neonatal service line at Erlanger
Health System is a “core competency” and both the Level IT
and Level IIT units at Erlanger East Hospital will be
closely coordinated with the Level IV unit at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger. Significant synergy will be created
for the Neonatal service line within Erlanger Health
System. :

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level 111
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The Square Footage & Cost Per Square Foot Chart is
attached to this CON application.

C. As the applicant, describe your need to provide
the following healthcare services (if applicable
to this application):

1. Adult Psychiatric Services N/A
2. Alcohol and Drug Treatment for

Adolescents (exceeding 28 days) N/A
3. Birthing Center N/A
4. Burn Units N/A
5. Cardiac Catheterization Services N/A
6. Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Services N/A
1 Extracorporeal Lithotripsy N/A
8. Home Health Services N/A
9. Hospice Services N/A
10. Residential Hospice N/A
11. ICF/MR Services N/A
12. Long-Term Care Services N/A
13. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) N/A
14. Mental Health Residential Treatment N/A
15. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit ** See Below.
16. Non-Residential Methadone Treatment Centers N/A
17. Open Heart Surgery N/A
18. Positron Emission Tomography N/A
19. Radiation Therapy/Linear Accelerator N/A
20. Rehabilitation Services N/A
21. Swing Beds N/A

Response

Applicant seeks to transfer ten (10) medical/surgical
acute care beds from Erlanger Medical Center and to convert
these beds to NICU Level III beds.

The need for the Level III NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU

utilization at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, 2.) a
gquantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for NICU
services in the service area, and 3.) implementation of a

transitional neonatal program that allows newborns to be
placed in the most appropriate setting .. whether with the

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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mother, in a Level I1 nursery Or a Level IIT NICU depending
on clinical need.

Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger in conjunction with
Erlanger East Hospital seeks approval to initiate a Level
III, ten (10) bed neonatal intensive care unit (YNICU”).
The Level III NICU is classified as such by the Tennessee
Perinatal Guidelines, 7th mdition, adopted in April, 2014.
This will be accomplished by transferring ten (10) general
medical / surgical acute care beds from Erlanger Medical
Center to Erlanger East Hospital and conversion of these
beds to NICU beds. The Level II Special Care Nursery at
Erlanger East Hospital will be increased from six (6) beds
to twelve (12) beds as part of the expansion project
authorized by the CON approved in 2004. The Neonatal
service line at Erlanger Health System is a “core
competency” and both the Level II and Level III units at
Erlanger East Hospital will be closely coordinated with the
Level IV unit at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.
Significant synergy will be created for the Neonatal
service line within Erlanger Health System.

D. Describe the need to change location or replace
an existing facility.

Response

** Not applicable.

E. Describe the acquisition of any item of major
medical equipment (as defined by the Agency Rules
and the Statute) which exceeds a cost of § 2.0
million; and/or is a magnetic resonance imaging
(MRI) scanner, positron emission tomography (PET)
scanner, extracorporeal lithotripter and/or
linear accelerator by responding to the
following: ; .
il For fixed site major medical equipment (not

replacing existing equipment) .

a. Describe the new equipment, including:
1. Total Cost (as defined by Agency Rule) .
2. Expected useful life.

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level Il 7
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3. List of clinical applications to
be provided.
4, Documentation of FDA approval.
Response

#* Not applicable.
b. Provide current and proposed schedules
of operations.

Response

The schedule of operation for the Level III
NICU service at Erlanger East Hospital will be 24 hours per
day, 7 days per week, 52 weeks per year. '

2. For mobile major medical equipment:

a. List all sites that will be served.

b. Provide current and proposed schedules
of operations.

C. Provide the lease or contract cost.

d. Provide the fair market value of the
equipment.

e List the owner for the equipment.

Response

*#* Not applicable.

3. Indicate applicant’s legal interest in
equipment (i.e.-purchase, lease, etc.).
In the case of equipment purchase include
a quote and/or proposal from an equipment
vendor, or in the case of equipment lease
provide a draft lease or contract that at
least includes the term of the lease and
the anticipated lease payments.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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The equipment for the NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital will be purchased and owned by
Erlanger Health System.

III. (A) Attach a copy of the plot plan of the site on an
8 3” x 11”7 sheet of white paper which must
include:

1. Size of site (in acres).

-— The Erlanger East Hospital campus is
located on approximately 26.8 acres.
A copy of the plot plan is attached
to this CON application.

2. L,ocation of structure on the site.

~— Please see the location of the Level III
NICU on the Erlanger East Hospital
campus on the schematic drawing
attached to this CON application.

81, Location of the proposed construction.

~— 1755 Gunbarrel Road
Chattanooga, TN 37416

4. Names of streets, roads or highways that
cross or border the site.

—— Roads that border the site are Gunbarrel
Road and Crane Road.

Please note that the drawings do not need to
be drawn to scale. Plot plans are required
for all projects.

(B) 1. Describe the relationship of the site to
public transportation routes, if any, and to
any highway or major road developments in
the area. Describe the accessibility of the
proposed site to patients/clients.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level IIT
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Erlanger East Hospital is easily accessible
to patients in Chattanooga and Hamilton County as well as
the surrounding regional service area; from both primary
and secondary roads. Additionally, the hospital can be
easily accessed via public transportation. Proximal state
and interstate highways provide easy access from Tennessee,
Georgia, Alabama and North Carolina.

The distance from Erlanger East Hospital to
Hamilton Place Mall is 8/10 of a mile, as evidenced by the
map below. Hamilton Place Mall, a regional shopping center
in Chattanooga, is the largest mall in the State of
Tennessee. Public transportation is easily accessible to
Gunbarrel Road. Further, Interstate 75 is a major highway
and is also within 8/10 of a mile.

IV. Attach a floor plan drawing which includes legible
labeling of patient care rooms (noting private or
semi-private), ancillary areas, equipment areas, etc.,
on an 8 ¥” x 11”7 sheet of white paper.

NOTE: DO NOT SUBMIT BLUEPRINTS. Simple line drawings
should be submitted and need not be drawn to
scale.

Response

A copy of the floor plan is attached to this CON
application.
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V. For a Home Health Agency or Hospice, identify:
A. Existing service area by County.
B. Proposed service area by County.
C. A parent or primary service provider.
D. Existing branches.
E. Proposed branches.

N~

Response

** Not applicable. **

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
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Section C

o

GENERAL, CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED
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Section C: GENERAL CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

Tn accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-

1609 (b), “no Certificate of Need shall be granted unless
the action propgsed is necessary to provide needed health
care in the area to be served, can be economically
accomplished and maintained, and will contribute to the
orderly development of health care.” The three (3)
criteria are further defined in Agency Rule 0720-4-.01.
Further standards for guidance are provided in the state
health plan (Guidelines For Growth), developed pursuant to
Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1625.

The following questions are listed according to the three
(3) criteria: (1) Need, (2) Economic Feasibility, and (3)
Contribution to the Orderly Development of Healthcare.
Please respond to each question and provide underlying
assumptions, data sources, and methodologies when
appropriate. Please type each question and its response on
8 7 x 11” white paper. All exhibits and tables must be
attached to the end of the application in correct sequence
identifying the questions to which they refer. If a
question does not apply to your project, indicate “Not
Applicable (NA)”.

PRINCIPLES OF TENNESSEE STATE HEALTH PLAN

[ From 2011 Update, Pages 5-13 ]

1. Healthy ILives: The purpose of the State Health
Plan is to improve the health of Tennesseans.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital (“EEH”) 1is a satellite facility
of Erlanger Medical Center (“EMC”), the safety net hospital
for southeast Tennessee; though the hospital also serves
northwest Georgia, northeast Alabama and southwest North
Carolina due to it’s location and the scope and range of
services provided. Erlanger is the only health system
which low-income people, minorities, and other underserved
populations can turn to for treatment. As a safety net
hospital system, Erlanger continually strives to provide
services that are the most medically appropriate, least
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intensive, and provided in the most cost-effective health
care setting.

As the safety net provider, a large underserved
population depends on Erlanger to provide needed services.
While it is difficult to predict the outcome of health
reform initiatives, many Tennesseans previously without
health insurance can be expected to elect services which
may have otherwise been postponed. Growth in the elderly
and general population can be expected to increase demand
for services. Surveys of the Chattanooga region have shown
that some 70% or more of area physicians and surgeons
received their training at Erlanger via its affiliation
with the UT College of Medicine, which is co-located on the
Erlanger Medical Center campus. Based on current residency
and fellowship programs, it can be expected that this trend
will continue with many physicians opting to remain in
Tennessee, at Erlanger.

The proposed initiation of the Level III NICU service
at Erlanger East Hospital is consistent with the State
Health Plan because it seeks to ensure patient access to
appropriate facilities for Tennesseans. Initiation of the
NTCU service at Erlanger East Hospital will provide access
to available NICU services at Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, by reducing occupancy levels there which have
been exceeding 100 %. Erlanger is the safety net for
underserved residents in southeast Tennessee, including the
only Children’s Hospital within 100 miles of Chattanooga,
Tennessee. Providing enhanced access for those in need
regardless of the patients’ ability to pay, has been
demonstrated to improve the health status of those served.

The Chattanooga region, particularly Enterprise South
Industrial Park, located less than 10 minutes away from
Erlanger East Hospital has proven attractive to business
development due to the relatively low cost of labor, cost
of living and absence of personal income tax. Also,
Chattanooga has been recognized as one of the tenth lowest
cost markets from a health care insurance perspective since
the roll out of the Affordable Care Act and the insurance
exchange marketplace.

Volkswagen is in the process of investing $800 million
in its Chattanooga manufacturing plant, adding a second
automobile line to its production facility. In doing so,
Volkswagen expects to employ an additional 2,000 employees,
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with the goal to have the second production line up and
running in 2016. Erlanger has a primary care site on the
Volkswagen campus that serves employees and their families
as well as others in the community. Volkswagen also has
preferred employer status with Erlanger, whereby employees
receive a discount when services are provided. With this
expansion, parts, paint and other suppliers involved with
the manufacturing are also expected to add employees .. many
with young and growing families. Volkswagen has released
an additional 300 acres of property to house as many as
twenty additional supply companies, increasing site
employment to 7,500.

Plastic Omnium Auto Exteriors, LLC, a tier one
supplier for Volkswagen, also recently announced that it
will make a $65 million investment in Chattanooga, creating
nearly 200 new positions at opening, with a target of 300
positions within three years. The company has purchased 27
acres in the industrial park where VW is located.

NV Michel Van De Wielke, one of the largest
manufacturers of textile machines in the world indicated it
would relocate to Chattanooga from Dalton, GA, to be closer
to marketplace competitors and challenge rivals for market
share. The plant will employ 35. Chattanooga is the
birthplace ‘of tufting with a long tradition in the flooring
industry and many manufacturers are still in the region.

The company will also relocate its headquarters from
Charlotte, NC, to Chattanooga.

On the health front, area hospitals have also invested
in plant improvements and technology. Memorial Hospital
has just completed a renovation and expansion project of
approximately $ 300 million. Parkridge Health System, an
affiliate of HCA Healthcare, acquired another hospital in
the region (Grandview Hospital) and recently completed
relocation/expansion of its psychiatric facility with
approximately $ 8 million invested. Skyridge Medical
Center, in Bradley County is owned by Community Health
System, consolidated two facilities and invested
approximately $ 45 million in upgrades.

A large portion of the employees and families of the
companies located in Enterprise South Industrial Park will
be close to, and served by, Erlanger East Hospital.
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Investment in the region is expected to continue
across all industries for the foreseeable future. The
Chattanooga Area Chamber of Commerce is expected to meet
its goal of adding more than 15,000 jobs.

2. Access To Care: Every citizen should have reasonable
access to care.

Response

The proposed initiation of the Level III NICU service
at Erlanger East Hospital is consistent with the State
Health Plan because it seeks to ensure patient access to
appropriate facilities for Tennesseans. Initiation of the
NICU service at Erlanger East Hospital will provide access
to available NICU services at Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, by reducing occupancy levels there which have
been exceeding 100 %. Erlanger is the safety net for
underserved residents in southeast Tennessee, including the
only Children’s Hospital within 100 miles of Chattanooga,
Tennessee. Providing enhanced access for those in need
regardless of the patients’ ability to pay, has been
demonstrated to improve the health status of those served.

Erlanger is designated by TennCare as the safety net
hospital, for underserved residents in southeast Tennessee.
Erlanger’s TennCare / Medicaid utilization and
uncompensated care cost for the last three (3) fiscal years
are presented below.

TennCare / Medicaid Uncompensated

Utilization % Care Cost
FY 2013 21.0 % $ 85.1 M
FY 2014 22.3 % $ 86.2 M
FY 2015 25.0 % $ 85.1 M

Notes

(1) TennCare / Medicaid utilization percentages are based
on gross I/P charges derived from applicant’s
internal records.

(2) Uncompensated care cost estimates were derived from
applicant’s internal records as reported in the notes
to the annual audited financial statements.

(3) Erlanger’s fiscal year begins on July 1 of each year
and ends on June 30 of the following year. For
example, FY 2015 began on July 1, 2014, and ended on
June 30, 2015.
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Under the federal Medicare program, an urban hospital
with more than 100 beds needs to serve 15% of low-income
patients in order to qualify as a “disproportionate share
hospital”. Erlanger clearly shoulders significantly more
than its proportionate share of the care rendered to this
patient population. The State Health Plan favors
initiatives, like the project proposed herein, which help
to foster access to the underserved.

Erlanger Medical Center has the only Level I trauma
center, the only life-flight helicopter service, and the
only Children’s Hospital in the region which is designated
a Level I trauma center as well as a Regional Perinatal
Center. Erlanger is also the largest provider in its
service area of Level III neonatal care and perinatal
services. Erlanger Health System is committed to
maintaining its mission of providing healthcare services to
all citizen’s regardless of ability to pay. Such services
include inpatient care, obstetrics, surgical and emergency
care.

Erlanger Health System also operates several other
hospitals in Southeast Tennessee, of which Erlanger East
Hospital is a component facility, as well as a network of
more than 45 practice sites and physician offices, as well
as Federally Qualified Health Centers (hereinafter “FQHC”),
so that patients may easily access needed services while
also facilitating easy access to the broader healthcare
delivery system.

3. Economic Efficiencies: The State’s health care
resources should be developed to address the needs of
Tennesseans while encouraging competitive markets,
economic efficiencies, and the continued development
of the state’s health care system.

Response

Erlanger Medical Center is very cost efficient within
the context of the overall healthcare delivery system. The
inpatient net revenue per admission for local hospitals in
Chattanooga, Tennessee, is as follows.

~
Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital Per I/P Admission
Erlanger Medical Center $ 11,431
Memorial Hospital $ 11,924

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 28 01/12/16 12:19 PM



50

Parkridge Medical Center $ 13,565

Erlanger East Hospital $ 6,019

Memorial Hospital - Hixson $ 5,671

Parkridge East Hospital $ 7,709

Notes

(1) Information derived from Tennessee Joint Annual Reports
for CY 2014.

The inpatient average total charge per admission for
Obstetric services at local community hospitals in
Chattanooga, Tennessee, is as follows.

Avg. Total Charge

Hospital Per I/P Admission
Erlanger East Hospital $ 7,957
Parkridge East Hospital $ 13,732

Notes
(1) Information derived from Tennessee Hospital Association

market data for CY 2013.

To evidence this, with the initiation of the Health
Care Exchanges on January 1, 2014; Blue Network E enrolled
over 10,000 uninsured and Erlanger is the only provider in
this network. Further, an additional 7,000 people were
enrolled in Blue Network S and Erlanger is one of only two
providers in this network as well. It is anticipated that
these additional health networks will generate sufficient
volume to keep Erlanger cost efficient.

While offering more complex services and capabilities,
Erlanger has net revenue per inpatient admission lower than
other large area hospitals. Erlanger Medical Center is
economically efficient, while incurring higher costs by
offering more complex services including the only Level I
trauma center, the only life-flight helicopter service, the
only children’s hospital, the only Level I trauma center,
the only Regional Perinatal Center, and the only Level IV
neonatal care in southeast Tennessee.1

4. Quality Of Care: Every citizen should have confidence
that the quality of health care is continually
monitored and standards are adhered to by health care

providers.

1 Level 1V as defined by the Tennessee Perinatal Guidelines as well as the American College of Pediatrics.
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Response

Erlanger Medical Center, which is accredited by The
Joint Commission, participates in periodic submission of
quality related data to the Centers For Medicare & Medicaid
Services through its Hospital Compare program. Erlanger
East Hospital is also accredited by The Joint Commission.
Further, EMC and EEH have an internal program of Medical
Quality Improvement Committees which continually monitor
healthcare services to assure patients of the quality of
care provided. The quality improvement program includes
Erlanger East Hospital and will include the level III NICU.
pPatients served at Erlanger East Hospital will have the
same high quality care available at Erlanger Medical Center
and Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.

Sixs Health Care Workforce: The state should support the
development, recruitment, and retention of a
sufficient and quality health care workforce.

Response

Erlanger Health System has established strong long
term relationships with the region’s colleges, universities
and clinical programs. FErlanger provides clinical sites
for medical internships and residencies, as well as
rotation programs in nursing, radiology, respiratory care
and pharmacy, to name a few. A number of regional
universities offer Bachelor and higher degree programs in
nursing and physical therapy. Locally, two year degrees
are available in many clinical allied health areas with
additional programs offering advanced technical training in
Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear Medicine and
Diagnostic Ultrasonography.

The University of Tennessee — College of Medicine 1is
co-located at Erlanger and includes training of senior
medical students on clinical rotation as well as graduate
medical education for training of residents and advanced
fellowships in various medical specialties, including
surgical specialties, as outlined below.

Residency Programs
Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Internal Medicine
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Obstetrics & Gynecology
Orthopedic Surgery
Pediatrics

Plastic Surgery

sSurgery

Urology

Transitional Year

Fellowship Programs
Orthopedic Trauma Surgery
Surgical Critical Care
Vascular Surgery
Colon & Rectal Surgery
Emergency Medicine
Neuro-Interventional Surgery
Ultrasound
Cardiovascular Disease
Gastroenterology (under development)
Radiology (under development)
Neurology (under development)

Erlanger Health System also participates with numerous
schools that provide advanced training in the areas of
nursing and allied health.

[ End Of Responses To Principles Of Tennessee State Health Plan - 2011
Update, pages 5 - 13 ]

NEONATAL, NURSERY SERVICES

[ Standards & Criteria Effective — 2000, p. 18 ]

1. The total number of neonatal intensive care and
‘intermediate care beds should not exceed eight beds
per thousand live births per year in a defined
neonatal service area.

Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and
North Carolina. This service area comprises a total
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of 30 counties in its 4 state geography. A complete
listing of the service area by county is attached to
this CON application.

The need for the Level III NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU
utilization at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, 2.) a
quantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for NICU
services in the service area, and 3.) implementation of a
transitional neonatal program that allows newborns to be
placed in the most appropriate setting .. whether with the
mother, in a Level II nursery or a Level III NICU depending
on clinical need.

Within the service area, there are a total of 90 NICU
beds that can serve Level III patients; they are at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger (64 beds), Chattanooga, TN;
Parkridge East Hospital (22 beds), East Ridge, TN; and
Hamilton Medical Center (4 beds), Dalton, GA. There gre a
total of 20 NICU beds that can serve Level II patients;
they are at Athens Regional Medical Center (11 beds),
Athens, Tennessee; Skyridge Medical Center (3 beds),
Cleveland, Tennessee; and Erlanger East Hospital (6 beds),
Chattanooga, Tennessee. This is a total of 110 neonatal
beds in the defined service area.

Applicant can demonstrate that the NICU services
available at Erlanger East Hospital and Children’s Hospital
@ Erlanger are not “interchangeable” with NICU services
available at other hospitals in the service area. By this,
it is meant that Erlanger’s NICU service is where the other
NICU providers send high acuity newborn’s which they cannot
treat due to skill level limitations, and also due to the
complete range of pediatric specialist’s at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger.

The institutional need is derived, in part, from
utilization analysis of the Level III NICU at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger, following is a summary for the last
three (3) years.

Average
Calendar Year Daily Census Occupancy
2012 44.0 78.6 %
2013 43.2 77.1 %
2014 52.8 94.3 %
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Following is a summary of the Level III NICU utilization at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger for 2015, by month.

Average
Month Of 2015 Daily Census % Occupancy
January 54.4 97.7 %
February 53.8 96.1 %
March 58.4 104.3 %
April 60.5 108.0 %
May 02.2 111.1 %
June 62.0 110.7 %
July 56.6 101.1 &
August 57.7 103.0 %
September 60.2 107.5 %
October . 53.7 85.9 %
November 66.4 118.6 &
December 70.3 125.5 %

Notes
(1) Occupancy for the NICU is calculated based on 56
NICU beds with permanent monitoring equipment.

In the NICU at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger the
“effective capacity” of this unit is 56 beds, although 64
beds are licensed. This is the number of beds which have a
“permanent monitor”. However, due to the increased need
for the NICU service, eight (8) additional beds have been
set up with mobile monitoring equipment due to space
constraints within the NICU unit.

As can be seen, utilization for the Level III NICU at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger frequently exceeds the 56
bed “capacity”. The size and space limitations will be
addressed with the replacement of Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, which is currently being planned. The Level III
NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will allow clinically
appropriate newborns to be served by that unit, which is
also to be managed by Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.

The service area has a total number of projected live
births in 2019 of 15,670. The number of NICU beds required
is 126. This is derived by multiplying the number of NICU
beds required per thousand live births times the number of
thousand live births (8 beds x 15.7 = 126). The number of
needed beds is determined by subtracting the number of beds
required from the number of beds currently available.
Therefore, the number of NICU beds needed is 16 (126 — 110
= 16). This CON application seeks to add ten (10) Level
ITII NICU beds at Erlanger East Hospital. Six (6) beds will
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be added to the existing Level II unit at Erlanger East
Hospital.

2. The need shall be based upon the current year's
population projected four years forward.

Response

The population used for determination of the projected
bed need in criterion 1 above, was derived by obtaining the
estimated population for Tennessee counties from the
Tennessee Dept. of Health and the population for all other
non-Tennessee counties was obtained from Nielsen Claritas.
The projected need of 126 NICU beds is based on the
projected population in 2019, as required by this criterion
of the population projected four years forward.

3. A single neonatal special care unit shall contain a
minimum of 15 beds. This is considered to be the
minimum necessary to support economical operation of
this service. An adjustment in the number of beds may
be justified due to geographic remoteness.

Response z

Erlanger East Hospital is licensed, and currently
operates as, a satellite facility of Erlanger Medical
Center. Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger already has a
licensed NICU of 64 beds and the instant application simply
seeks to add additional beds. As such, this criterion is
met for a minimum number of fifteen (15) NICU beds. The
Neonatal service line at Erlanger Health System is a “core
competency” and both the Level TI and Level III units at @
Erlanger East Hospital will be closely coordinated with the
ILevel IV unit at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.
Significant synergy will be created for the Neonatal
service line within Erlanger Health System.

Erlanger East Hospital currently has a six (6) bed
Level II unit, so with the addition of six (6) more beds to
this unit through the expansion CON approved in 2004, it
will be a 12 bed Level II unit. Further, with the ten (10)
bed Level IIL NICU which is the subject of this CON
application, Erlanger East Hospital will have a total of
twenty-two (22) neonatal beds.
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The neonatal bed complement on the campus of Erlanger
East Hospital will be part of a “system of care” for
neonatal infants within the only health system in the
regional service area which can provide such a significant
continuity of care for this vulnerable population. The
clinical skills of staff members will be transferable, and
staff will actually be rotated, between the Level II and
Level III units at Erlanger East Hospital as well as the
Level IV NICU at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger will manage the neonatal
service at Erlanger East Hospital.

4. The applicant shall designate a specific area which is
compatible with Department of Health guidelines to
this service.

Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and
North Carolina. This service area comprises a total
of 30 counties in its 4 state geography. A complete
listing of the service area by county is attached to
this CON application.

Within the service area, there are a total of 90 NICU
beds that can serve Level III patients; they are at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger (64 beds), Chattanooga, TN;
Parkridge East Hospital (22 beds), East Ridge, TN; and
Hamilton Medical Center (4 beds), Dalton, GA. There are a
total of 20 NICU beds that can serve Level II patients;
they are at Athens Regional Medical Center (11 beds),
Athens, Tennessee; Skyridge Medical Center (3 beds),
Cleveland, Tennessee; and Erlanger FEast Hospital (6 beds),
Chattanooga, Tennessee. This is a total of 110 neonatal
beds in the defined service area.

Applicant can demonstrate that the NICU services
available at Erlanger East Hospital and Children’s Hospital
@ Erlanger are not “interchangeable” with NICU services
available at other hospitals in the service area. By this,
it is meant that Erlanger’s NICU service is where the other
NICU providers send high acuity newborn’s which they cannot
treat due to skill level limitations, and also due to the
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complete range of pediatric specialist’s at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger.

The service area has a total number of projected live
births in 2019 of 15,670. The number of NICU beds required
is 126. This is derived by multiplying the number of NICU
beds required per thousand live births times the number of
thousand live births (8 beds x 15.7 = 126). The number of
needed beds is determined by subtracting the number of beds
required from the number of beds currently available.
Therefore, the number of NICU beds needed is 16 (126 - 110
= 16). This CON application seeks to add ten (10) Level
III NICU beds at Erlanger East Hospital. Six (6) beds will
be added to the existing Level II unit at Erlanger East

Hospital.

5. The applicant should demonstrate the ability to comply
with the standards developed in the Tennessee
Perinatal Care System Guidelines for Regionalization,
Hospital Care Levels, Staffing and Facilities.

Response

The standards developed in the Tennessee Perinatal
Care System Guidelines for Regionalization, Hospital Care
Levels, Staffing and Facilities are addressed immediately
following these neonatal standards and criteria.

6. The target population shall have access to the
proposed service in terms of payment for services,
transportation, parking, geographical barriers, and
access for the handicapped.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital will serve all patients,
regardless of ability to pay. Further, any patient who is
in need of the specialized NICU service will be served
regardless of ability to pay. Additional parking is being
added on the Erlanger East Hospital campus in conjunction
with the final phase of the expansion project. Further,
all services are handicap accessible.

Erlanger East Hospital is easily accessible to
patients in Chattanooga and Hamilton County as well as the
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surrounding service area; from both primary and secondary
roads. Additionally, the hospital can be easily accessed
via public transportation. Proximal state and interstate
highways provide easy access from Tennessee, Georgia,
Alabama and North Carolina.

7. The Department of Health will consult the Perinatal
Advisory Committee regarding applications.

Response

Applicants acknowledge that The Perinatal Advisory
Committee will be consulted by the Tennessee Dept. of
Health concerning applications for NICU services.

[ End Of Responses To Standard & Criteria For Neonatal Nursery
Services, 2000, page 18 ]

TENNESSEE PERINATAL, CARE SYSTEM

Guidelines For Regionalization, Hospital Care Levels,
Staffing And Facilities

[Perinatal Standards Effective April 24, 2014,
Level 3 - Seventh Edition, p. 35 -~ 38 ]

>>>>> A. Educational Services <<<LXK
Educational services should include the following:

1. Parent Education: Ongoing perinatal education
programs for parents. ;

Response

There will be a full time perinatal educator located
at Erlanger East Hospital to provide ongoing perinatal
education programs, along with support as needed from the
Level IV NICU at the Regional Perinatal Center located at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.
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2. Nurses Education: Level ITT units are required to
provide ongoing educational programs for their nurses
that conform to the latest edition of Tennessee
Perinatal Care System Educational Objectives for
Nurses, Level III, for neonatal nurses, published by
the Tennessee Department of Health. Outreach
educational activities are not included.

Response

There will be a full time perinatal educator located
at Erlanger East Hospital to provide ongoing perinatal
education programs. For purposes of this criterion, the
full time educator will work in conjunction with the
perinatal education staff at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger
to provide ongoing educational programs for nursing staff.

34 Physicians Education: Level III units are required to
provide ongoing educational programs for physicians
practicing in that institution. Outreach educational
activities are not required.

Response

There will be a full time perinatal educator located
at Erlanger East Hospital to provide ongoing perinatal
education programs. For purposes of this criterion, the
full time educator will work in conjunction with the
perinatal education staff at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger
as well as the Medical Affairs Dept. at Erlanger Medical
Center to provide ongoing educational programs for
physicians.

4. All neonatal care providers should maintain both
current NRP and S.T.A.B.L.E. provider status. The
Ss.T.A.B.L.E. Cardiac Module is also recommended.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will maintain
current NRP and 5. T.A.B.L.E. provider status.

>>>>> B. Neonatal Care <<<<<
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1. Resuscitation: Provision must be made for
resuscitation of infants immediately after birth.
Resuscitation capabilities should include assisted
ventilation with blended oxygen administered by bag or
T-piece resuscitator with mask or endotracheal tube,
chest compression, and appropriate intravascular
therapy. Refer to the most recent edition of the
American heart Association and American Academy of
Pediatrics Neonatal Resuscitation Guidelines for a
complete list of resuscitation equipment and supplies.

Response

The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have
the capability to resuscitate infants immediately after
birth, if needed.

2. Tranport from Delivery Room to the Special Care
Nursery: Transport to a special care nursery requires

a capacity for uninterrupted support. An
appropriately equipped pre-warmed transport incubator,
with blended oxygen, should be used for this purpose.

Response

The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have
the capability to transport infants from the delivery room
to the special care nursery in an equipped pre-warmed
transport incubator with blended oxygen.

3. Transitional Care: Recurrent observation of the
neonate should be performed by personnel who can
identify and respond to the early manifestations of
neonatal disorders.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have staff
that are trained to identify and respond to early
manifestations of neonatal disorders.

4. Care of Sick Neonates: The care of moderately and
severely ill infants entails the following essentials:
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Continuous cardiorespiratory monitoring.

Serial blood gas determinations and non-invasive

blood gas monitoring.

c. Periodic blood pressure determinations (intra-
arterial when necessary) .

d. Portable diagnostic imaging for bedside

o p

interpretation.

e. Availability of electrocardiograms with rapid
interpretation.

£f. Laboratory Services: Clinical laboratory

services must be available to fully support
clinical neonatal functions.

g. Fluid and electrolyte management and
administration of blood and blood components.

h. Phototherapy and exchange transfusion.

i. Administration of parenteral nutrition through
peripheral or central vessels.

J. Provision of appropriate enteral nutrition and

lactation support.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have all
of the listed services available to infants who may be in
need.

5. Mechanical Ventilatory Support: The Level IIT unit
must be qualified to provide mechanical ventilator
support. The essential qualifications are as follows:

a. Continuous in-house presence of personnel
experienced in airway management, endotracheal
intubation, and diagnosis and treatment of air
leak syndromes.

b. A staff of nurses (R.N.) and respiratory
therapists (R.T.) who are specifically educated
in the management of neonatal respiratory

disorders.

L Blood gas determinations and other data essential
to treatment must be available 24 hours a day.

d. Level III nurseries should be able to provide a

full range of respiratory support, including
sustained conventional and/or high frequency
ventilation and inhaled nitric oxide.
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Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have all
of the listed services available to infants who may be in
need.

6. Diagnostic Imaging: Perform advanced imaging, with
interpretation on an urgent basis, including CT, MRI,
and echocardiography.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have all of
these imaging services available to infants who may be in
need.

7. Laboratory Services: Clinical laboratory services
must available to fully support c¢linical neonatal
functions.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will have all a
fully functioning laboratory service available to infants
who may be in need.

8. Blood Bank Services: Blood bank services must be
maintained at all times. An appropriately trained
technician should be available in-house 24 hours
daily. All blood components must be obtainable on an
emergency basis, either on the premises or by pre-
arrangement with another facility.

Response

The NICU at Erlanger FEast Hospital will have blood
bank services available at all times, to infants who may be
in need.

>>>>> (C. Consultation And Transfer <<<<<

1. Neonatal Transport:
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a. The Level III facility that operates a transport
service is required to maintain equipment and a
trained team of personnel that must be available
at all times for the transport of newborn
patients. The Level III facility is responsible
for transport of referred infants with its own
equipment, or alternatively, with equipment from
a commercial source.

Response

The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will
have access to the neonatal transport service based at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and this service will be
available immediately upon request.

b. The Level III facility that operates a transport
service should originate a protocol that
describes procedures, staffing patterns, and
equipment for the transport of referred infants.
The protocol should conform to the most recent
edition of the Tennessee Perinatal Care System
Guidelines On Transportation, published by the
Tennessee Department of Health.

Response

The Level III NICU at Erlanger FEast Hospital will
have access to the neonatal transport service based at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and this service will be
available immediately upon request.

The protocol conforms to the Tennessee Perinatal
System Guidelines On Transportation and is attached to this
CON application.

c. The Level III facility that operates a transport
service is required to maintain records of its
activities. (See the most recent edition of the
Tennessee Perinatal Care System Guidelines on
Transportation)

Response
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The Level III NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will
have access to the neonatal transport service based at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and this service will be
available immediately upon request.

The neonatal transport service maintains a record
of it’s activities in compliance with Tennessee Perinatal
System Guidelines On Transportation.

>>>>> D. Maintenance Of Data And <<<<<
>>>>> Assessment Of Quality Measures <<<<<

A systematic ongoing compilation of data should be
maintained to reflect the care of sick patients, in
addition to the listing of minimal data that is
specified for Level I and level II facilities. All
Level III programs should participate in a state or
national continuous quality improvement initiative
that includes ongoing data collection and review for
benchmarking and evaluation of outcomes.

Response

For NICU services, Erlanger Health System participates
in the Vermont Oxford Quality Monitoring service. If this
CON application is approved, the NICU located at Erlanger
East Hospital will also participate in the Vermont Oxford
Quality Monitoring service as a member facility of Erlanger
Health System.

[ End Of Responses To Perinatal Standards Effective April 24, 2014,
Level 3 - Seventh Edition, p. 35 - 38 ]

GENERAL QUESTIONS CONCERNING NEED, ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY
& CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHCARE

(I.) NEED
1. Describe the relationship of this proposal toward the

implementation of the State Health Plan, Teneessee's
Health: Guidelines For Growth.
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(a) Please provide a response to each criterion and
standard in Certificate Of Need Categories that
are applicable to the proposed project. Do not
provide responses to General Criteria and
Standards (pages 6-9) here. :

Response

This project is consistent with the Principles Of
The Tennessee State Health Plan as stated in the 2011
update (“Principles”) . Applicant has addressed each of the

Principles.

(b) Applications that include a Change of Site for a
health care institution, provide a response to
General Criterion and Standards (4) (a-c).

Response

** Not applicable. **

2. Describe the relationship of this proposal to the
applicant facility's long range development plans,
if any.

Response

Erlanger Health System currently holds a CON for
expansion of Erlanger East Hospital (No. CN0405-047AE) ; and
a CON to modernize and upgrade the surgical facilities at
Erlanger Medical Center (No. CN1207-034A) .

As part of the long range development plan for
Erlanger East Hospital, the HSDA approved an extension of
the CON (CN0405-047AE) on September 24, 2014, for the
transfer of up to 70 additional beds from Erlanger Medical
Center. The expansion of Erlanger East Hospital is in
process.

Given the time span since original approval, Erlanger
East Hospital has a need, and seeks approval, to modernize
its facility plan for this phase of the expansion project.
In a similar fashion, a CON application was approved on
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March 23, 2015, for Erlanger East Hospital to initiate a
satellite radiation therapy service along with the
relocation of a Linear Accelerator from Erlanger Medical
Center (no. CN1412-048). Further, a CON application was
submitted in February, 2015, to upgrade the Cardiac
Catheterization Laboratory originally approved in 2004 from
a diagnostic catheterization laboratory to an
interventional / therapeutic laboratory (No. CN1502-005);
this application was approved on May 27, 2016.

The goal for Erlanger Health System is to provide a
comprehensive system of care comprised of unduplicated
services while also serving those who are currently under
served and/or those who do not have the ability to pay for
their services. The Level III NICU Erlanger East Hospital
is part of our long term plan to make services more ’
accessible.

n

3; Identify the proposed service area and justify the
reasonableness of that proposed area. Submit a county
level map including the State of Tennessee clearly
marked to reflect the service area. Please submit
maps on 8 %" x 11” sheets of white paper marked only
with ink detectable by a standard photocopier (i.e-no
hlghllghters, pencils, etc.).

Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and
North Carolina. This service area comprises a total
of 30 counties in its 4 state geography. A complete
listing of the service area by county is attached to
this CON application.

The need for the Level IIT NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU
utilization at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, 2.) a
quantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for NICU
services in the service area, and 3.) implementation of a
transitional neonatal program that allows newborns to be
placed in the most appropriate setting .. whether with the ,
mother, in a Level II nursery or a Level III NICU dependlng
on clinical need.
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Within the service area, there are a total of 90 NICU
beds that can serve Level III patients; they are at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger (64 beds), Chattanooga, TN;
Parkridge East Hospital (22 beds), East Ridge, TN; and
Hamilton Medical Center (4 beds), Dalton, GA. There are a
total of 20 NICU beds that can serve Level II patients;
they are at Athens Regional Medical Center (11 beds),
Athens, Tennessee; Skyridge Medical Center (3 beds),
Cleveland, Tennessee; and Erlanger East Hospital (6 beds),
Chattanooga, Tennessee. This is a total of 110 neonatal
beds in the defined service area.

Applicant can demonstrate that the NICU services
available at Erlanger East Hospital and Children’s Hospital
@ Erlanger are not “interchangeable” with NICU services
available at other hospitals in the service area. By this,
it is meant that Erlanger’s NICU service is where the other
NICU providers send high acuity newborn’s which they cannot
treat due to skill level limitations, and also due to the
complete range of pediatric specialist’s at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger.

The institutional need is derived, in part, from
utilization analysis of the Level IV NICU at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger, following is a summary for the last
three (3) years.

Average
Calendar Year Daily Census Occupancy
2012 44.0 78.6 %
2013 43.2 77.1 %
2014 52.8 94.3 %

Following is a summary of the Level IV NICU utilization at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger for 2015, by month.

Average
Month Of 2015 Daily Census % Occupancy
January 54.4 97.7 %
February 53.8 96.1 %
March 58.4 104.3 %
April 60.5 108.0 %
May 62.2 111.1 %
June 62.0 110.7 %
July 56.6 101.1 %
August 57.7 103.0 &
September 60.2 107.5 %
October 53.7 95.9 %
November 66.4 118.6 %
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December 70.3 125.5 %

Notes
(1) Occupancy for the NICU is calculated based on 56
NICU beds with permanent monitoring equipment.

In the NICU at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger the
“effective capacity” of this unit is 56 beds, although 64
beds are licensed. This is the number of beds which have a
“permanent monitor”. However, due to the increased need
for the NICU service, eight (8) additional beds have been
set up with mobile monitoring equipment due to space
constraints within the NICU unit.

As can be seen, utilization for the Level III NICU at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger frequently exceeds the 56
bed “capacity”. The size and space limitations will be
addressed with the replacement of Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, which is currently being planned. The Level III
NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will allow clinically
appropriate newborns to be served by that unit, which is
also to be managed by Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.

The service area has a total number of projected live
births in 2019 of 15,670. The number of NICU beds required
is 126. This is derived by multiplying the number of NICU
beds required per'thousand live births times the number of
thousand live births (8 beds x 15.7 = 126). The number of
needed beds is determined by subtracting the number of beds
required from the number of beds currently available.
Therefore, the number of NICU beds needed is 16 (126 - 110
= 16). This CON application seeks to add ten (10) Level
III NICU beds at Erlanger East Hospital. Six (6) beds will
be added to the existing Level II unit at Erlanger East
Hospital.

4. A. Describe the demographics of the population to be
served by this proposal.

Response

The service area of the applicant is defined
above. Estimated live births for the 28 county service
area in 2019 of 15,670. The newborn .population that are in
need of this highly specialized service are truly the most
vulnerable patients.
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January 26, 2016

_ 9:00 am
Information pertaining to the neonatal patient group

is within the age cochort of those 0-4 years of age. As
such, this age cohort decreased from 87,476 to 84,736
between 2010 and 2015, or 3.1%. However} the growth rate
between 2015 and 2019 is expected to grow by 515, or 0.6%.
This represents an inflection point in the demographics of
the service area for the 0-4 age group, and this age cohort
likely will continue to experience additional growth.

A summary of other demographic information is also
presented which outlines changes in population, TennCare
enrollment and population below the Federal poverty level
for each county within of the service area that is located
in Tennessee.

<

Current Year (2018) - Age 65+ T | etora | 17879 | 5763 | 3,021 | 3,195 | 2628 |
Projected Year (2020-Age6€5+ | 69,752 | 20381 | 6584 | 3,339 ! 3,896 298 || Ll
Age 65+ - % Change T A% | 14.0% | 14.2% | 10.5% | 21.9% | 124% |
Age 65+ - % Total _ T T 7% | 16.9% | 20.2% | 224% | 202% | 198% [ | 1
Tolal Pop.-2016 . 1356156 | 105549 | 28585 __13..‘129..5 15835 | 13,273 - .
Total Pop. - 2020 368,666 | 109,706 | 28,633 | 13,263 | 16,943 | 13481 | | |
ToialPop.-% Change | 3.5% | 38% | 02% | -1.58% | 7.0% | 1e% | | L.l |
Medlan Age 39 38 | 42 | 41 | M .42 I R I A
Median Housshold Income | 946,702 | $41,083 | 341,268 | $26,814 | $36,434 | 933443 | | 1
TennCare Envolless - 61,399 | 20,321 | 6,636 | 4626 | 3716 | 3082 | | |
TennCare Enrollees As % OF Total Pop. 17.2% | 19.3% | 23.2% | 34.3% | 23.5% | 232% | | i
Persons Below Poverly Level 59,079 | 20664 | 5215 | 3957 | 2653 | 2825 | | T
Persons Below Poverly Level As % Of Total Pop, | 16.8% 19.6% 18.2% | 29.4% 16.8% 21.3% .

e e e e e e - o

e Rhea | Melgs | McMinn | Potk e e Y
Current Year (2016) - Age 65+ 6569 | 2,677 | 11,089 | 3,680 |
Projected Year (2020 - Age 65+ 7,571 | 3,151 | 12,650 | 4,134 I |
Age 65+ - % Change 17.7% | 14.1% | 12.3% | [ |
AgeB5t-%Total 1.21.8% | 204% | 21.1% | 20.8° B L
Total Pop. L 12,221 | 54,449 | 17,442 | 42,097 | T |
TolalPop.-2020 12482 | 55724 | 17812 | 42681 | § L R i .
Total Pop, - % Change _ | 20% | 23% | 21%. N
MedlanAge o483 | 42 | _43 |__40 | _ )
Median Household lncome $35,150 | $39,410 | $39,07 074 | $42904 | saze18| | i
[TennCare Enrollees ___ 1 s4sn | 2907 | 11270 | 3784 | 7aes | 42282 | | 1.
TennCara Enolless As % Of Total Pop. 1 250% | 23.8% | 207% | 21.7% | 17.0% | 21.9% | | )
Persons Below Poverty Level 7,631 2,553 9,786 2,867 6,250
Persans Below Poverty Level As % Of Total Pop. 22.5% | 20.8% | 18.0% | 16.4% | 14.8%
—:— o Warren |Van Buren! White __Munron':__ -

Currenl Year (2016) - Age 65+ 5651 | 27519 | 4780 | | | 268593 [1,012,937
Projected Year (2020-Age BS+ 5686 | 28,541 | 50062 | | | |.284,693 | [1.134,565
Age65+-%Change . . ... 06% | 37% | 43% | | . i ] 89% | | 120%
Age 65+ - % Tolal ~ 430.4% | 474.0% | 461.4% I 33.4% 15.2%
ITotal Pop. - 2016 | 1,313 | 5806 | 10,398 | ] 1773810 [ 18,649,438
TolalPop.-2020 .. 1554 | e75t | 12384 | | | 1801374 | 6,894,867
Total Pop.-%Change . _ . . .| : 184% | 16.3% | 19.1% oo 1 zew |l 37% |
Median Age - s |4 | a2 | 4 s ‘_"_.."i. | 38 |
Wedian Household Incame e ] | $33,547 | 934474 | §37,595 | | | | $45482 | | $44,208
TemCere Enrollaes e 4,242 | 8574 | 10881 R S 74563 | 11,331,838
TernCara Enrollecs As % Of Tolal Pop. 046% | 113.2% | 1046% | . | [206% | | 20.0%
Persons Below Poverty Lavel * 8742 | 1222 | 5390 | 8426 | | _ | | 160326 | [1,170,301]
Persons Below Poverly Level As % Of Total Pop. | 118.9% | 93.1% | 93.0% | 87.8% | [ 207% | | 17.6% |
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B. The special needs of the service area population,
including health disparities, the accessibility
to consumers, particularly the elderly, women,
racial and ethnic minorities, and low-income
groups. Document how the business plans of the
facility will take into consideration the special
needs of the service area population.

Response

As member facilities of Erlanger Health System,
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger and Erlanger East Hospital
are components of the safety net for southeast Tennessee.
Often the only hospital which low-income people,
minorities, and other underserved populations can turn to
for treatment is Erlanger. 1In order to assure the
continued viability of its mission as the safety net
provider, Erlanger Health System continually strives to
provide services that are medically appropriate, least
intensive (restrictive), and provided in the most cost-
effective health care setting.

The Erlanger East Hospital campus is accessible
to patients in Chattanooga and Hamilton County from both
primary and secondary roads. Additionally, the hospital
can be easily accessed via public transportation. Further,
proximal state and interstate highways provide easy access
from Tennessee, Georgia and Alabama.

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level 111
CON Application -~ Page 49 01/12/16 12:19 PM



71

Erianger
Medical Ctr East Hosp

Information pertaining to the neonatal patient group
is within the age cohort of those 0-4 years of age. As
such, this age cohort decreased from 87,476 to 84,736
between 2010 and 2015, or 3.1%. However, the growth rate
petween 2015 and 2019 is expected to grow by 515, or 0.6%.
This represents an inflection point in the demographics of
the service area for the 0-4 age group, and this age cohort
likely will continue to experience additional growth.

Erlanger has also been responsive to the needs of
employees and families of new businesses like VW, Amazon
and Wacker Chemical which have generated thousands of new
jobs in the area. The proposed project will help ensure
that the service area population have access to services
and facilities consistent with their needs and evolving
industry standards.

5. Describe the existing or certified services, including
approved but unimplemented CON’s, of similar
institutions in the service area. Include utilization

and/or occupancy trends for each of the most recent
three years of data available for this type of
project. Be certain to list each institution and its
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utlilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient
bed projects must include the following data:
admissions or discharges, patient days, and occupancy.
Other projects should use the most appropriate
measures, e.g., cases, procedures, visits, admissions,
etec.

Response

Utilization data for NICU services within the defined
service area located in Tennessee are presented below.

P o B A '[iﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬂéﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁw”f_71"1"N"MI_""“f"T_” 'Jlf“"”
' R I | | Utiization | A0 D el . pstow |y
T i [ iy T MO 1 i i
' | NICU | No,Of | == CY 2011 === |== CY 2012 === == CY 2013 === |== CY 2014 ===
Lodo N | Level | Beds | | Cases |Pt.Days | Cases |Pt.Davs | Cases Pt Days | Cases IPt. Days
Ll ' _! I | 411 i e )
N ! et o S OO WO (Sl i o - s W, o s
| | Children's Hospital @ Erlanger | 1V .84 | 1 78 |17585| | 671 | 16081 | | 739 | 15651 | | 854 | 17,377 |
| |Parkridge EastHospital | m | 22 | | 174 | 2730 | | 256 | 3,738 | | 288 | 4584 | | 346 | 4815 |
| |Starr Regional Medical Center | 1 | 11 | | - | T .| 425 1000 | 388 | ‘668 |
|| Skyridge Medical Center | 0 [ s | | - |7 [ m | s s | 20|
| |Erlanger EastHospital | i | & | |- [ o] O |- 1 210 | 1,529 |
| ' ' ! | i
i _____ e b 108 T e12 | 20815 [ | a7 J' 1,888 | 24,629 |
1] S S N ] A 1] B
Occupancy | ] "[I A R L1 I
_|Children's Hospital @ Ertanger | | | [ [ 753% | | [ | 74.4%
_|Parkridge EastHospital | | ‘_ 840% | | | 60.0%
| [Starr Regional Medical Center | | B T | 16.6%
‘w Skyridge MedicalCenter | | [ | | . || | [,21,9%
| |Erianger EastHospital | ||| S T I | 69.8%
NOTES
(1) This information is derived from Tennessee Joint Annual
Reports.

(2) Occupancy is for Erlanger Medical Center NICU is calculated
based on the number of beds with “permanent” monitors, not
mobile monitoring equipment.

Applicant can demonstrate that the NICU services
available at Erlanger East Hospital and Children’s Hospital
@ Erlanger are not “interchangeable” with NICU services
available at other hospitals in the service area. By this,
it is meant that Erlanger’s NICU service is where the other
NICU providers send high acuity newborn’s which they cannot
treat due to skill level limitations, and also due to the
complete range of pediatric specialist’s at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger.

Utilization data for the three (3) community hospitals
in Chattanooga, Tennessee, is presented below.
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R : S 9:00am . __
[ i Conununky "Hospitals --Ghauannogg.Tbnnessee 1 R I
L b GeneralUtiizationTrends | 1L '
. ] 5 D i N i L _
I g s0ia: === 2013 | Jmemmmmmm 20t !
| e lErIangur|Momur!al Parkridga Erlanger1Mamodnl Pnrkrldgai Erlanger | Memorial | Parkridge
L | East | Hison | East | | East | Mixson | FEast | | East | Mixson . East
i | g 1 AN N (N S
General Acute Care - Admisslons | 4909 | - '5w3|m4m3[¢m | samr || aare | 4z 1 825
|Inpatient PL. Days - Acule Care _‘. L1 | 10278 | 18817 j 20617 _I 9,216 B 17461 |
General Acute Care -ALOS | iy L o214 | 408 1 3ve [ | 242 | 413 | 351
|ED Visifs R il 6100 | 26516 | 38138 | | 22000 | 30798 : 41422
Total Surgical Patients | | I 8,407 ]___;4@;3_ | at08 [ eses | set1 | 4173
OB Deliveries ] N 2690 | o | stes | 0 2508 | 0 i 4184 !
NOTES
(1) This information is derived from Tennessee Joint Annual
Reports.

6. Provide applicable utilization and/or occupancy

statistics for your institution for each of the past
three (3) years and the projected annual utilization
for each of the two (2) years following completion of
the project. Additionally, provide the details
regarding the methodology used to project utilization.
The methodology must include detailed calculations or
documentation from referral sources, and
identification of all assumptions.

Resgonse

Utilization data for Erlanger East Hospital is
presented below.

i i __|Erlanger East Hospital | |
]| | —— .@@E@Lm!zation Trends
|
1

i v frmmmmmm e ij_ed Ut-]uzaﬂon =.-...—======—i=--|
2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 208 | | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2018 | 2020 |

I SN [ A [ e em— < s

| 240 | 2700 | 2640 | 2008 | | 280 | 2% | '
Inpatient Pt. Days &wwcﬂﬁ | _e408 | 161 | seeo | e3re | | 6426 | 6473 | 6521 !
General Acute Care-ALOS | 226 | 227 | 216 | 219 | | 21 | 219 , 2 19 |
ED Visils ' o 6,100 | 22,008 | 26172 24748 | 25367 | |
Total Surglcal Patients | .ste2 | 3183 | 3262 | 3s2r [ | 8282 | 3306 | 3331 | 3_3_7‘3....]
OB Deliveries | 219 | 2853 | 2508 | 2802 || 2619 | 283 | 2657 | 269 |
Speclal Care Nursery - Level Il (Cases)| 189 211 | 251 | 2 | | 287 e 304 |2 | 822 |
NICU - Level |1l ( Cases ) I 0 o | o | o ||l 0o | | 389 s |

NOTES
(1) This information is derived from the internal records of

Erlanger Health System.

(2) The trends outlined are based on historical trends. Upon
completion of the expansion project at Erlanger East
Hospital (no. CN0407-047), utilization will be.higher.

The projected utilization is based upon a use rate
average calculation for the four (4) year period of 2012 -
2015. Expected growth could exceed this forecast based on
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hospital referral patterns, health reform initiatives
and/or advances in clinical care. Further, the expansion
project for Erlanger East Hospital will result in
additional growth when that project is completed.

(II.) ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

1. Provide the cost of the project by completing the
Project Costs Chart on the following page. Justify
the cost of the project.

- All projects should have a project cost of at least
$ 3,000 on Line F (minimum CON filing fee). CON
filing fee should be calculated from Line D. (See
application instructions for filing fee.)

- The cost of any lease should be based on fair market
value or the total amount of lease payments over the
initial term of the lease, whichever is greater.

- The cost of fixed and moveable equipment includes,
but is not necessarily limited to, maintenance
agreements covering the expected useful life of the
equipment; federal, state and local taxes and other
government assessments; and installation charges,
excluding capital expenditures for physical plant
renovation or in-wall shielding, which should be
included under construction costs or incorporated in
a facility lease.

- For projects that include new construction,
modification, and/or renovation; documentation must
be provided from a contractor and/or architect that
support the estimated construction costs.

Response

The Project Cost Chart has been completed on the next
page.
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PROJECT COST CHART

A.  Construction And Equipment Acquired By Purchase.

-

Architecural And Engineering Fees

Legal, Administrative, Consultant Fees
(Excluding CON Filing Fees)

Acquisition Of Site

Preparation Of Site

Construction Costs

Contingency Fund

Fixed Equipment (Not Included In Construction Contract)

Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $ 50,000)

Other (Specify) _IS. Technical, Signage, etc.

N

©®NO O

B.  Acquisition By Gift, Donation, Or Lease.

Facility (inclusive of building and land)
Building Only

Land Only
Equipment (Specify)
Other (Specify)

iRl Sy

C. Financing Costs And Fees.

1. Interim Financing
2. Underwriting Costs
3. Reserve For One Year's Debt Service
4, Other (Specify)
D. Estimated Project Cost (A+B+C)

E. CON Filing Fee

F.  Total Estimated Project Cost (D+E)

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level I1I
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2. Identify the funding sources for this project.

a. Please check the applicable item(s) below and
briefly summarize how the project will be financed.
(Documentation for the type of funding MUST be
inserted at the end of the application, in the
correct alpha/numeric order and identified as
Attachment C, Economic Feasibility-2.)

A. Commercial Loan —- Letter from lending
institution or guarantor stating favorable
initial contact, proposed loan amount, expected
interest rates, anticipated term of the loan,
and any restrictions or conditions.

B. Tax — Exempt Bonds -- Copy of preliminary
resolution or a letter from the issuing authority
stating favorable initial contact and a
conditional agreement from an underwriter or
investment banker to proceed with the issuance.

C. General obligation bonds -— Copy of resolution
from issuing authority or minutes from the
appropriate meeting.

D. Grants —- Notification of intent form for grant
application or notice of grant award.

E. Cash Reserves — Appropriate documentation from
Chief Financial Officer.

X F. Other - Identify and document funding from all
other sources.

Response

The project will be funded by continuing operations of
Erlanger Health System. A letter from the CFO is attached
to this CON application.

3. ‘Discuss and document the reasonableness of the
proposed project costs. If applicable, compare the
cost per square foot of construction to similar
projects recently approved by the Health Services And
Development Agency.
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Response

Cost per square foot for hospital construction is
shown below for HSDA approved projects from 2012 - 2014.

| HSDA -- Hospital Construction Cost Per Square Foot ]
| ) Approved Projects -- 2012 - 2014 o
| | | |
| | Renovated |  New |  Total |
| . | Construction ‘ _Construction | _Construction

[ [ i
l S | ] S | !
| 1st Quartile | $110.98/SF | $224.09/SF | $156.78/SF |
| Median | $19246/SF | $250.56/SF | $227.88/SF
|3rd Quartile | $297.82/SF | $29652/SF | $298.66/SF |

The construction cost for the Level III NICU at
Erlanger East Hospital is estimated to be $ 3,551,783 for
the 8,805 square feet of new construction. This yields a
cost per square foot of $ 403.38. The cost is higher than
the three (3) year average due to the complexity of
construction associated with the establishment of a NICU.

The instant application for the Level III NICU
requires a very high level of construction compared to
general medical/surgical acute care space. Further,
construction costs have increased about 8-10% in 2015
alone. The architect letter which is attached to this CON
application has certified the estimated construction cost.

4. Complete Historical and Projected Data Charts on the
following two pages — Do not modify the Charts
provided or submit Chart substitutions ! Historical

Data Chart represents revenue and expense information
for the last three (3) years for which complete
information is available for the institution.
Projected Data Chart requests information for the two
(2) years following the completion of this proposal.
Projected Data Chart should reflect revenue and
expense projections for the Proposal Only (i.e.-if the
application is for additional beds, include
anticipated revenue from the proposed beds only, not
from all beds in the facility).

Response
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The Historical Data Chart and Projected Data Chart
have been completed. The detail for Other Expenses on the
Historical Data Chart is attached to this CON application.

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level 111
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility

or agency. The fiscal year begins in July (Month).
Year — 2013 Year — 2014 Year — 2015
A. Utilization Data 29,066 30,394 33,340
(Specify Unit Of Measure) _I/P Admits
B. Revenue From Services To Patients
1. Inpatient Services 951,407,744 1,011,698,242 1,182,962,344
2 Outpatient Services 638,832,332 723,658,840 830,030,436
3. Emergency Services 122,125,184 147,183,286 171,845,957
4 Other Operating Revenue 33,499,831 36,036,026 32,126,111
(Specify) _Home Health, POB Rent, etc.
1,745,865,091 1,918,576,394 2,216,964,846

Gross Operating Revenue

C. Deductions From Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments 997,920,752 1,105,607,716 1,317,441,010
2. Provision For Charity Care 102,150,881 110,213,778 92,392,901
3. Provision For Bad Debt 74,808,470 84,222,955 93,878,274
Total Deductions 1,174,880,103 1,300,044,449 1,503,712,185
NET OPERATING REVENUE 570,984,988 618,531,945 713,252,663
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries And Wages 275,109,764 276,229,682 270,118,412
2. Physician's Salaries And Wages 36,117,461 42,290,749 76,375,201
3. Supplies 78,028,042 82,925,430 93,104,628
4, Taxes 536,994 566,101 558,754
51 Depreciation 27,373,556 26,732,222 25,647,102
6. Rent 5,341,116 5,209,326 5,816,951
7. Interest — Other Than Capital 0 0 0
8. Management Fees:
a. Fees To Affiliates
b. Fees To Non-Affilliates
9. Other Expenses 156,440,656 166,565,645 193,745,905
(Specify) _lInsurance, Purch. Sves., efc.
Total Operating Expenses 578,947,589 600,519,155 665,366,953
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) - Net
(Specify)
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (7,962,601) 18,012,789 47,885,710
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement Of Principal 7,900,842 . 8,048,272 15,492,190
2. Interest 8,971,728 8,258,717 9,507,644
Total Capital Expenditures 16,872,570 16,306,989 24,999,834
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (24,835,171) 1,705,800 22,885,876
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PROJECTED DATA CHART

Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the facility

or agency. The fiscal year beginsin __July  (Month).
| Year 1 | | Year2
A. Utilization Data 2,920 2,920
(Specify Unit Of Measure) _NICU Patient Days
B. Revenue From Services To Patients
1. Inpatient Services 13,083,166 13,698,075
2 Outpatient Services
3. Emergency Services
4 Other Operating Revenue
Gross Operating Revenue 13,083,166 13,698,075
C. Deductions From Operating Revenue
1. Contractual Adjustments 8,444,524 8,936,645
2. Provision For Charity Care 1,164,762 1,232,641
3. Provision For Bad Debt 97,064 102,720
Total Deductions 9,706,350 10,272,006
NET OPERATING REVENUE 3,376,816 3,426,069
D. Operating Expenses
1. Salaries And Wages 1,846,194 1,925,580
2. Physician's Salaries And Wages
3. Supplies 3 192,366 198,522
4. Taxes
5. Depreciation 620,477 620,477
6. Rent
7. Interest - Other Than Capital
8. Management Fees:
a. Fees To Affiliates
b. Fees To Non-Affiliates
9. Other Expenses 277,585 261,604
(Specify) _ Service Contracts
Total Operating Expenses 2,936,622 3,006,183
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net
(Specify)
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 440,194 419,887
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement Of Principal
2. Interest
Total Capital Expenditures
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 440,194 419,887
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5. Please identify the project’s average gross charge,
average deduction from operating revenue, and average
net charge.

Response

Following are the average charge amounts per patient.

Average Gross Charge $ 33,643
Average Deduction From Revenue $ 25,034
Average Net Revenue $ 8,609
Average Deduction From Revenue
Medicare $ N/A
TennCare / Medicaid $ 25,667
Average Net Revenue
Medicare $ N/A
TennCare / Medicaid $ 6,888
6. A. Please provide the current and proposed charge

schedules for the proposal. Discuss any
adjustment to current charges of projects that
will result from the implementation of the
proposal. Additionally, describe the anticipated
revenue from the proposed project and the impact
on existing patient charges.

Response

Please see the list of average patient charges by
service line for Erlanger East Hospital and similar
hospitals in Hamilton County, Tennessee, for the calendar
year 2014, attached to this CON application. Applicant
does revise it’s patient charge structure on a periodic
basis (i.e.- usually annually) during the ‘budget cycle each
fiscal year. However, applicant does not anticipate any
changes to existing patient charges specifically as a
result of this project.

B. Compare the proposed charges to those of other
facilities in the service area/adjoining service
areas, or to proposed charges of projects
recently approved by the Health Services And
Development Agency. If applicable, compare the
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proposed charges of the project to the current
Medicare allowable fee schedule by common
procedure terminology (CPT) code(s).

Response

Please see the list of average patient charges by
inpatient service line for Erlanger East Hospital and
similar hospitals in Hamilton County, Tennessee, for the
calendar year 2013, attached to this CON application. The
average patient charge for each hospital is as follows.

Erlanger East Hospital $ 9,088

Memorial Hospital - Hixson $ 25,143

Parkridge East Hospital - $ 29,282
Notes

(1) Information derived from Tennessee Hospital Assoclation
Market Data for CY 2013.

T3 Discuss how projected utilization rates will be
sufficient to maintain cost effectiveness.

Response

Historically, Erlanger East Hospital has been very
cost efficient within the context of the overall healthcare
delivery system. The inpatient net revenue per admission
for similar hospitals in Chattanooga, Tennessee, is as
follows.

Avg. Net Revenue

Hospital Per I/P Admission
Erlanger East Hospital $ 6,019
Memorial Hospital - Hixson $ 5,671
Parkridge East Hospital ! $ 7,709

" Notes
(1) Information derived from Tennessee Joint Annual
Reports for CY 2014.

The inpatient average total charge per admission for
Obstetric services at local community hospitals in
Chattanooga, Tennessee, is as follows.

Avg. Total Charge

Hosgitq;\ Per I/P Admission
Erlanger East Hospital $ 7,957
Parkridge East Hospital $ 13,732
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Notes
(1) Information derived from Tennessee Hospital Assoclation
market data for CY 2013.

8. Discuss how financial viability will be ensured
within two (2) years; and demonstrate the availability
of sufficient cash flow until financial viability is
achieved.

Response

As demonstrated by the Projected Data Chart, the
project is financially viable in both years 1 and 2.

9. Discuss the project’'s participation in state and
federal revenue programs including a description of
the extent to which Medicare, TennCare/Medicaid, and
medically indigent patients will be served by the
project. In addition, report the estimated dollar
amount of revenue and percentage of total project
revenue anticipated from each of TennCare, Medicare,
or other state and federal sources for the proposal'’s
first year of operation.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital, as a member facility of
Erlanger Health System, currently participates in the
following Federal / State programs.

Federal Medicare

State BlueCare
TennCare Select
AmeriGroup Community Care

Anticipated revenue (gross charges) from Federal and
State sources during year 1 of the project, is as follows.

Medicare $ N/A
TennCare S 3,425,890

$ 3,425,890
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10. Provide copies of the balance sheet and income
statement from the most recent reporting period of
the institution and the most recent audited financial
statements with accompanying notes, if applicable.
For new projects, provide financial information for
the corporation, partnership, or principal parties
involved with the project. Copies must be inserted
at the end of the application, in the correct
alpha-numeric order and labeled as Attachment C,
Economic Feasibility-10.

Response

Copies of the following financial statements for
Erlanger Health System are attached to this CON
application.

Interim Balance Sheet & Income Statement Sep. 30, 2015
" Audited Financial Statements June 30, 2015

11. Describe all alternatives to this project which were
considered and discuss the advantages and
disadvantages of each alternative including but not
limited to,

A. A discussion regarding the availability of less
costly, more effective, and/or more efficient
alternative methods of providing the benefits
intended by the proposal. If developments of
such alternatives is not practicable, the
applicant should justify why not; including
reasons as to why they were rejected.

Response

The service area for this project is defined as
Hamilton County, Tennessee, and counties that surround
Hamilton County in Tennessee, Georgia, Alabama and
North Carolina. This service area comprises a total
of 30 counties in its 4 state geography. A complete
listing of the service area by county is attached to
this CON application.
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The need for the Level III NICU on the campus of
Erlanger East Hospital is brought about by, 1.) the
institutional need associated with increased NICU
utilization at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, 2.) a
gquantifiable need when evaluating the CON standard for NICU
services in the service area, and 3.) implementation of a
tfransitional neonatal program that allows newborns to be
placed in the most appropriate setting .. whether with the
mother, in a Level II nursery or a Level III NICU depending
on clinical need. ’

Within the service area, there are a total of 90 NICU
beds that can serve Level III patients; they are at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger (64 beds), Chattanooga, TN;
Parkridge East Hospital (22 beds), East Ridge, TN; and
Hamilton Medical Center (4 beds), Dalton, GA. There are a
total of 20 NICU beds that can serve Level II patients;
they are at Athens Regional Medical Center (11 beds),
Athens, Tennessee; Skyridge Medical Center (3 beds),
Clevéland, Tennessee; and Erlanger East Hospital (6 beds),
Chattanooga, Tennessee. This is a total of 110 neonatal
beds in the defined service area.

Applicant can demonstrate that the NICU services
available at Erlanger East Hospital and Children’s Hospital
@ Erlanger are not “interchangeable” with NICU services
available at other hospitals in the service area. By this,
it is meant that Erlanger’s NICU service is where the other
NICU providers send high acuity newborn’s which they cannot
treat due to skill level limitations, and also due to the
complete range of pediatric specialist’s at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger.

The institutional need is derived, in part, from
utilization analysis of the Level III NICU at Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger, following is a summary for the last
three (3) years.

Average
Calendar Year Daily Census Occupancy
2012 44.0 18.6 %
2013 43.2 1.1 &
2014 52.8 94.3 %

Following is a summary of the Level III NICU utilization at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger for 2015, by month.

Average
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CON Application -- Page 64 01/12/16 12:19 PM



86

Month Of 2015 Daily Census % Occupancy
January 54.4 97.7 %
February 53.8 96.1 %
March 58.4 104.3 %
April 60.5 108.0 %
May 62.2 111.1 &
June 62.0 110.7 %
July 56.6 101.1 &
August 57.7 103.0 %
September 60.2 107.5 %
October 53.7 95.9 %
November 66.4 118.6 %
December 70.3 125.5 %

Notes

(1) Occupancy for the NICU is calculated based on 56
NICU beds with permanent monitoring equipment.

In the NICU at Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger the
“effective capacity” of this unit is 56 beds, although 64
beds are licensed. This is the number of beds which have a
“permanent monitor”. However, due to the increased need
for the NICU service, eight (8) additional beds have been
set up with mobile monitoring equipment due to space
constraints within the NICU unit.

As can be seen, utilization for the Level III NICU at
Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger frequently exceeds the 56
bed “capacity”. The size and space limitations will be
addressed with the replacement of Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger, which is currently being planned. The Level IIT
NICU at Erlanger East Hospital will allow clinically
appropriate newborns to be served by that unit, which is
also to be managed by Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger.

The service area has a total number of projected
live births in 2019 of 15,670. The number of NICU beds
required is 126. This is derived by multiplying the number
of NICU beds required per thousand live births times the
number of thousand live births (8 beds x 15.7 = 126). The
number of needed beds is determined by subtracting the
number of beds required from the number of beds currently
available. Therefore, the number of NICU beds needed is 16
(126 — 110 = 16). This CON application seeks to add ten
(10) Level III NICU beds at Erlanger Fast Hospital. Six
(6) beds will be added to the existing Level II unit at
Erlanger East Hospital.
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In light of this information, the best
alternative for Erlanger Health System is to initiate a
Level III NICU service at Erlanger East Hospital.

As the safety net hospital in Southeast
Tennessee, it is vital that Erlanger Health System enhance
and update its facilities to provide the best and most
accessible services available for the communities we serve.
As an academic medical center affiliated with the
University of Tennessee College of Medicine, which is co-
located on the Erlanger Medical Center campus, EHS also
seeks to provide appropriate facilities so as to enhance
the training and education of medical residents and fellows
as well as other health professionals. Updating facilities
also means planning for tomorrow with regard for the
regional service area, ensuring that the needs of the
uninsured and/or low income population are being met.

B. The applicant should document that consideration
has been given to alternatives to new
construction, e.g., modernization or sharing
arrangements. It should be documented that
superior alternatives have been implemented to
the maximum extent practicable.

Response

As previously discussed, Children’s Hospital @
Erlanger will be adding a nine (9) bed NICU “pod” in
renovated space, and this project is not reviewable. We
could attempt to add additional NICU beds to Children’s
Hospital @ Erlanger, but the concern is that spatial
constraints would not provide the best operating
environment for this vulnerable population. Therefore, the
best option is simply to initiate a Level III NICU service
at Erlanger East Hospital.

As the safety net hospital in Southeast
Tennessee, it is vital that Erlanger Health System enhance
and update its facilities to provide the best and most
services available for the communities we serve. As an
academic medical center affiliated with the University of
Tennessee College of Medicine, which is co-located on the
Erlanger Medical Center campus, EHS also seeks to provide
appropriate facilities so as to enhance the training and
education of medical residents and fellows as well as other
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health professionals. Updating facilities also means
planning for tomorrow with regard for the regional service
area, ensuring that the needs of the uninsured and/or low
income population are being met.

(III.) CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT
OF HEALTH CARE

1. List all health care providers (e.g., hospitals,
nursing homes, home care organizations, etc.), managed
care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with
which the applicant currently has or plans to have
contractual and/or working relationships, e.qg.,
transfer agreements, contractual agreements for health
services. ;

Response

The most significant relationship between this
proposal and the existing healthcare system is that it will
be part of Erlanger Health System and it’s ability to
integrate the Level III NICU service within the regional
service area as the safety net provider, trauma center and
region’s only academic medical center.

By providing these services regardless of a patient’s
ability to pay, the regional healthcare delivery system is
positively impacted by the services envisioned in the
instant application. Further, it provides better access to
NICU services for patients that may otherwise have
difficulty obtaining such services.

The applicant currently has transfer arrangements with
the following hospitals which are owned by Erlanger Health
System.

-— Erlanger Medical Center

-— Erlanger North Hospital

-- Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger
—— Erlanger Bledsoe Hospital

Further, Erlanger currently has patient transfer
agreements in place with more than 60 hospitals and other
providers in the four (4) state area. These providers
refer patients to Erlanger because of the depth and breadth
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of its programs and services. A copy of the list of
transfer agreements is attached to this CON application.

2, Describe the positive and / or negative effects of the
proposal on the health care system. Please be sure to
discuss any instances of duplication or competition
arising from your proposal including a description of
the effect the proposal will have on the utilization
rates of existing providers in the service area of the
project.

Response

The effects of this proposal will be positive for the
healthcare system because it will deliver the most
appropriate level of care for those who are in need of
service regardless of ability to pay, and will also
distribute needed services across the service area to
foster improved patient access. By providing this NICU
service the regional healthcare delivery system is
positively impacted by serving as the “safety net” for
those who are otherwise in need of this highly specialized
service.

3. Provide the current and/or anticipated staffing
pattern for all employees providing patient care for
the project. This can be reported using FTE’s for
these positions. Additionally, please compare the
clinical staff salaries in the proposal to prevailing
wage patterns in the service area as published by the
Tennessee Dept. Of Labor & Workforce Development
and/or other documented sources.

Response

Clinical staffing for the Level III NICU at Erlanger
East Hospital is anticipated to be 14.4 R.N.’s and 4.4
unlicensed FTE’s, primarily administrative support for the
unit. Appropriate salary comparison data is below.

Position EHS Avg. Market Mid-Point
RN $ 24.85 $ 27.77
Unit Clerk $ 13.55 $ 12.81

NOTES
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(1) EHS data is derived from the internal records of Erlanger

Health System.
(2) The market mid-point is derived from the 2015 Mercer IHN

Salary Survey.

4. Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human
resources required by the proposal, including adequate
professional staff, as per the Dept. Of Health, the
Dept. Of Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities,
and/or the Division of Mental Retardation Services
licensing requirements.

Response

Since this project will involve the rotation of NICU
staff members from Children’s Hospital @ Erlanger, it is
not anticipated that there will be any difficulty in
obtaining additional personnel which may be needed. Due to
cross training the skills of these staff members are
transferable between locations and considered to be part of
their core competency.

However, if it is necessary to recruit personnel for
this project, the human resources required will be
approached with a proactive recruitment action plan.
Historically, Erlanger has met staffing requirements by
utilizing a variety of methods. Thus, our approach to
fulfill the staffing plan will consist of a proactive plan
of marketing, screening, hiring, and training.

The Human Resources Department at Erlanger will work
closely with managers in the transition. The specifics
will be based on the needs of the organization and aligned
with the strategic initiative of Erlanger East Hospital.
Erlanger has actively been involved in the WorkForce
Development movement on several different levels within the
Chattanooga area and statewide. Current vacancy rates are
below state and national averages.

Erlanger Health System participates with numerous
schools that provide advanced training in the areas of
nursing and allied health. Therefore, Erlanger expects no
difficulty in recruitment of required staff given it’s role
as an academic medical center and it’s affiliations with
colleges and universities offering allied health and
related training programs.
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5. Verify that the applicant has reviewed and understands
all licensing certification as required by the State
of Tennessee for medical/clinical staff. These
include, without limitation, regulations concerning
physician supervision, credentialing, admission
privileges, quality assurance policies and programs,
utilization review policies and programs, record
keeping, and staff education.

Response

The Applicant has reviewed and intends to comply with
all licensing and certification requirements imposed by
applicable statutes and regulations.

6. Discuss your health care institution’s participation
in the training of students in the areas of medicine,
nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships,
residencies, etc.).

Response

Erlanger Health System, as the region’s only academic
medical center, has established strong long term
relationships with the region’s colleges, universities and
clinical programs. Erlanger provides clinical sites for
internships and rotation programs in nursing, radiology,
respiratory, pharmacy and surgery technology, to name a
few.

A number of regional universities offer Bachelor
degree programs in nursing and physical therapy. Erlanger
works closely with the University of Tennessee at
Chattanooga to assist nurses transitioning from RN to BSN.
Erlanger provides a teaching environment for .staff as well
with various on-the-job training opportunities (ex: CT for
Radiologic Technologist, Certification for LPNs). Locally,
two year degrees are available in many clinical allied
health areas with additional programs offering advanced
technical training in Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear
Medicine, Diagnostic Ultrasonography, etc. Erlanger Health
System participates with numerous schools that provide
advanced training in the areas of nursing and allied
health.
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Erlanger has established strong long term
relationships with the region’s colleges, universities and
clinical programs. Erlanger provides clinical sites for
internships and rotation programs in nursing, radiology,
respiratory care and pharmacy, to name a few. A number of
regional universities offer Bachelor degree programs in
nursing and physical therapy. Locally, two year degrees
are available in many clinical allied health areas with
additional programs offering advanced technical training in
Radiological Imaging such as Nuclear Medicine and
Diagnostic Ultrasonography.

The University of Tennessee — College of Medicine is
co-located at Erlanger and includes training of senior
medical students on clinical rotation as well as graduate
medical education for training of residents and advanced
fellowships in various medical specialties, including
surgical specialties, as outlined below.

Residency Programs
Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Orthopedic Surgery
Pediatrics
Plastic Surgery
sSurgery
Urology
Transitional Year

Fellowship Programs
Orthopedic Trauma Surgery
Surgical Critical Care
Vascular Surgery
Colon & Rectal Surgery
Emergency Medicine
Neuro-Interventional Surgery
Ultrasound
Cardiovascular Disease
Gastroenterology (under development)
Radiology (under development)
Neurology (under development)

Erlanger Health System also participates with numerous
schools that provide advanced training in the areas of
nursing and allied health.
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7. (a) Please verify, as applicable, that the applicant
has reviewed and understands the licensure
requirements of the Dept. Of Health, the Dept. Of
Mental Health & Developmental Disabilities, the
Division of Mental Retardation Services, and/or
any applicable Medicare requirements.

Response

The Applicant has reviewed and intends to comply
with all licensing and certification requirements imposed
by applicable statutes and regulations of the Tennessee
Dept. Of Health and/or any applicable Medicare
requirements.

(b) Provide the name of the entity from which the
applicant has received or will receive licensure,
certification, and / or accreditation.

Licensure: State of Tennessee, Dept. of Health

Accreditation: The Joint Commission

If an existing institution, please describe the
current standing with any licensing, certifying, or
accrediting agency or commission. Provide a copy of
the current license of the facility.

Response

Erlanger East Hospital, as a satellite facility of
Erlanger Medical Center, continuously strives to comply
with applicable regulations and make needed changes where
deficiencies may arise to ensure full compliance. A copy
of the current license from the Tennessee Dept. of Health
is attached to this CON application. Further, a copy of
the most recent Letter Of Accreditation from The Joint
Commission is attached to this CON application.

(c¢) For existing licensed providers, document that
all deficiencies (if any) cited in the last
licensure certification and inspection have been
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addressed through an approved plan of correction.
Please include a copy of the most recent
licensure/certification inspection with an
approved plan of correction.

Response

A copy of the most recent licensure/certification
inspection report with an approved plan of correction is
attached to this CON application.

8. Document and explain any final orders or Jjudgments
entered in any state or country by a licensing agency
or court against professional licenses held by the
applicant or any entities or persons with more than a
5 % ownership interest in the applicant. Such
information is to be provided for licenses regardless
of whether such license is currently held.

Response

This criterion is not applicable because Erlanger East
Hospital, as a satellite facility of Erlanger Medical
Center, operates as part of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County
Hospital Authority, which is a governmental unit and a
statutory entity under the State of Tennessee. As such, it
is not possible for there to be any “owners”, per se,
except for the people of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and
the State of Tennessee.

9. Identify and explain any final civil or criminal
judgments for fraud or theft against any person or
entity with more than a 5 % ownership interest in
the project.

Response

This criterion is not applicable because Erlanger East
Hospital, as a satellite facility of Erlanger Medical
Center, operates as part of the Chattanocoga-Hamilton County
Hospital Authority, which is a governmental unit and a
statutory entity under the State of Tennessee. As such, it
is not possible for there to be any “owners”, per se,
except for the people of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and
the State of Tennessee.

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 73 01/12/16 12:19 PM



95

10. If the proposal is approved, please discuss whether
the applicant will provide the Tennessee Health
Services And Development Agency and/or the reviewing
agency information concerning the number of patients
treated, the number and type of procedures performed,
and other data as required.

Response

Applicant will provide the Health Services And
Development Agency with appropriate information in
consideration of this CON application.

Erlanger East Hospital - NICU — Level TII
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Attach the full page of the newspaper in which the notice of
intent appeared with the mast and dateline intact or submit a
publication affidavit from the newspaper as proof of publication
of the letter of intent.

Attached is a copy of the Letter Of Intent which was filed
with the Tennessee Health Services & Development Agency on
January 8, 2016. The original Affidavit Of Publication is
also attached to this CON application.

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 75 01/12/16 12:19 PM



97

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(c) provides that a
Certificate of Need is valid for a period not to exceed three (3)
years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other
projects) from the date of its issuance and after such time shall
expire; provided, that the Agency may, in granting the
Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for
Certificates of Need for cause shown. Subsequent to granting a
Certificate of Need, the Agency may extend a Certificate of Need
for a period upon application and good cause shown, accompanied
by a non-refundable reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by rule.
A Certificate of Need which has been extended shall expire at the
end of the extended time period. The decision whether to grant
such an extension is within the sole discretion of the Agency,
and is not subject to review, reconsideration, or appeal.

1. Please complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart
on the next page. If the project will be completed
in multiple phases, please identify the anticipated
completion date for each phase.

Response

The Project Completion Forecast Chart has been
completed and appears on the following page.

2. If the response to the preceding question indicates
that the applicant does not anticipate completing
the project within the period of validity as defined
in the preceding paragraph, please state below any
request for an extended schedule and document the
“good cause” for such an extension.

Response

** Not Applicable. **
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PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART
Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision Date, as published in Rule 68-11-1609(c): _April 27,2016

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final Agency action on that date; indicate the number of days
from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

Days Anticipated Date

PHASE Required (MONTH / YEAR)
1. Architectural and engineering contract signed. 2 04/2016
2. Construction documents approved by the 170 12/2016

Tennessee Dept. Of Health.
3. Construction contract signed. 15 12/2016
4. Building permit secured. 30 01/2017 )
5. Site preparation completed. 60 03/2017 -
6. Building construction commenced. 0 03/2017
7. Construction 40 % complete. 66 06/2017 )
8. Construction 80 % complete. 66 09/2017
9. Construction 100 % complete (approved 30 10/2017

for occupancy).
10. *Issuance of license. 20 11/2017
11. *Initiation of service. 0 11/2017
12, Final Architectural Certification Of Payment. 0 11/2017
13. Final Project Report Form (HF0055). 20 _12/2017
*) For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation, please complete items

10 and 11 only.

NOTE — If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time of the final
determination to reflect the actual issue date.

Erlanger East Hospital — NICU — Level III
CON Application -- Page 77 01/12/16 12:19 PM



. 99
AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF HAMILTON

Joseph M. Winick , being first duly sworn, says

that he / she is the applicant named in this application or
his / her / it’s lawful agent, that this project will be

completed in accordance with the application, that the

applicant has read the directions to this application, the

Agency Rules, and T.C.A. § 68-11-1601, et seq, and that the

responses to this application or any other questions deemed

appropriate by the Tennessee Health Services & Development

e

Agency are true and complete.

e

SWORN to and subscribed before me this 11 of

1jaj\Lu1r\j , 20 16 , a Notary Public in and for the
MontH Year

State of Tennessee, County of Hamilton.

Shatia) Hail

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires ‘Iunc‘-"—- 9 r 20 '8 . E “{:‘Ll::“,:f”’;
(Month / Day) S el
§ 7 SINE Z
S5 o %%
= : TENNESSEE : =
= L NOJARY [ =
E §

4" PUBLIC ..
/"o-?""f/ o‘*¢¢
% [?ON CO '\\
’ff!r:rilttii\‘
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Erlanger East Hospital - Plot Plan B-ITT-A
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Erlanger East Hospital - Floor Plan B-IV
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Service Area C-I-3



County

Hamilton

Bledsoe
Bradley
Grundy
Marion
McMinn
Meigs
Polk
Rhea
Sequatchie
Catoosa
Dade
Walker

Dekalb
Jackson
Chattooga
Fannin
Gilmer
Gordon
Murray
Whitfield
Cherokee
Coffee
Cumberland
Franklin
Loudon
Monroe
Roane
Van Buren
Warren

State
TN

TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
GA
GA
GA

AL
AL
GA
GA
GA
GA
GA
GA
NC
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN
TN

Service
Area

PSA

SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA
SSA

TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
TSA
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Architect Letter — Construction Cost C-II-1
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HI<S Ty

ASSOGIATE PRINCIPAL & SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT

January 6, 2016

Mr. Joseph M. Winick

Senior Vice President

Planning, Analytics & Business Development
Erlanger Health System

975 East Third Street

Chattanooga, Tennessee 37403

Re: (10) Bed NICU Addition
Erlanger East
HKS Architects, Inc. 18791

Dear Mr. Winick:

The construction budget indicating $3,551,783, without the planned contingencies, is reasonable,
given consideration to the scale of the project and the complexity for this type of construction.
Additionally, the projected date for the Initiation of Service of January 2018 includes reasonable time
for all activities associated with this project to be completed, based on the CON Initial Decision Date

of April 27, 2016.

The design for the addition will meet all known current building codes, TDoH Licensing Standards and
will comply with the 2010 Facilities Guidelines Institute standards.

Lastly, the design will incorporate the manufacturer’s specifications for preparing this addition to
facilitate equipment installation.

Sincerely,

Dan Luhrs

191 PEACHTREE STREET, NE, STE 5000, ATLANTA, GA 30303 | +1404 4427878 | www,hksinc.com
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Funding - CFO Letter C-11I-2



| é‘zgerlanger

January 8, 2016

Ms. Melanie Hill, Executive Director
Tennessee Health Services Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor
502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243

RE: Level IIl - NICU
Erlanger East Hospital

Dear Ms. Hill,

This letter serves to confirm Erlanger’s intent to cover the $ 7,021,555 cost of the Level III
NICU at Erlanger East Hospital with funds from operations, subject to CON approval as well as
approval of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority.

Please let me know if you have any questions or need further information. Thank you for your
consideration.

Sincerely,

9 W~ I

J. Britton Tabor, CPA
Executive V.P. & CFO / Treasurer

975 East Third Street, Chattanooga, TN 37403 (423)778-7000 www.erlanger.org
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Other Expenses — Historical Data Chart C-11I-4
Other Expenses — Projected Data Chart C-I1-4



Historical Data Chart -- Summary Of Other Expenses

Description

Total -- All Other
Purchased Services

Utilities

Drugs

insurance and Taxes

Purchased Services

620142
620252
620302
620322
620332
620352
620492
620502
620522
620523
620532
620542
620562
620572
620573
620574
620582
620602
620622
620682
620692
620792
620892
620902
620912
620922
620932
620933
620952
620953
620982
621182
621202
621272
621532
621972
622002

Utilities
640702

Restricted Fund Expense
Physician Fees
Consulting

Legal Fees

Audit Fees

Architect & Eng Fees
Time & Mat Contract
Dietary

Unscheduled Maint

CUC Delivery/Vehicle Expense

Advertising

Purchased Services
Purchased Maint
Freight Charges

CUC Penalties

CUC Late Fees
Collection Fees

Lab Outside Fees
Computer Services
Micro Maint
Equipment Rental
Contracted Services
Membership & Dues
Special Classes
Licenses & Fees
Development Costs
Professional Education
CUC Meals & Entertainment
Local Travel

CUC Field Trip Expense
Business Courtesy
Asbestos Expense
Recruiting

Resident Education
Public Relations
Patient parking
Med/Prof Housing Expense

Billed Utilities

118

FY 2013

156,440,656
111,584,374
9,736,115
32,921,513
2,198,654

111,584,374
76,633
20,510,257
8,018,102
2,393,527
194,406
182,585
3,023,421
621,402
4,687,799
32,607
2,555,479
29,055,253
3,220,291
314,512
1,425
4,971
738,913
3,205,690
4,970,519
74,128
3,033,690
18,663,071
1,167,871
27,957
1,281,524
176,338
1,045,961
11,491
323,282
12,657
44,274
128,761
670,202
295,055
487,507
217,813
115,000

9,736,115
-461,256

FY 2014

166,565,645
114,459,641
10,012,328
39,370,552
2,723,124

114,459,641
117,503
20,661,564

1,421,495

3,057,657
189,312
360,654

4,101,893
685,028

5,182,758

17,732

2,490,627

31,846,157

4,115,060

293,794

7,378
904,813
3,257,673
5,156,385
60,533
3,605,722
20,802,740
948,989
45,251
1,379,705
406,179
1,161,763
1,291
287,345
23,799
13,444
63,639
824,569
295,284
271,427
213,034
187,444

10,012,328
-576,458

FY 2015

190,945,905
137,413,193
9,572,575
43,565,706
394,431

137,413,193
208,885
20,931,912
1,089,231
8,823,824
182,998
613,919
4,899,444
616,065
4,092,044
13,351
3,074,645
36,829,150
3,668,545
376,663
534

4,819
1,258,006
3,895,713
5,329,474
53,293
4,984,163
29,254,214
1,218,596
5,251
1,572,753
503,177
1,549,923
2,049
330,427
28,131
15,270
67,203
1,025,697
10,154
516,360
367,196
114

9,572,575
-708,356



640712
640722
640732
640742
640752
640882

Drugs
630403

Historical Data Chart -- Summary Of Other Expenses

Electricity

Gas

Water

oil

Storm Water Fees
Telephone

Drugs

Insurance and Taxes

670847
670857
680878
680880

Self Insurance Expense
Insurance

CUC Taxes - Sales
Gross Receipts Tax
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5,927,593
1,559,592
1,136,971
6,450
39,551
1,527,215

32,921,513
32,921,513

2,198,654
952,825
1,207,188
629
38,012

6,124,308
1,848,971
1,195,584
19,507
43,267
1,357,149

39,370,552
39,370,552

2,723,124
704,755
1,971,569
178
46,622

6,237,145
1,561,890
1,122,990
27,417
34,913
1,296,576

43,565,706
43,565,706

3,194,431
777,476
2,376,846
340
39,769



Projected Data Chart -- Summary Of Other Expenses

120
Description YR1 YR2
Total -- All Other 277,585 261,604
PURCHASED SERVICES 204,922 215,405
DRUGS 44,615 46,199
MARKETING 25,000 0
Purchased Services Total Purchased Services 204,922 215,405
620252 Physician Fees 153,224 161,062
620502 Dietary 4,313 4,533
620522 Unscheduled Maint 7,367 7,743
620542 Purchased Services 16,694 17,548
620572 Freight Charges 4,624 4,861
620672 Rent/Lease Copier 6,726 7,070
620932 Professional Education 8,320 8,745
620952 Local Travel 3,655 3,842
Drugs 44,615 46,199
630403 Drugs 44,615 46,199

Marketing . 25,000 0
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EHS —— NICU Daily Room Charge List C-II-6-A
List Of Average Patient Charges C-II-6-B
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Charge
Code

26100016
26100024
26100032
26100040

Description

NICU Acuity Level |

NICU Acuity Level Il
NICU Acuity Level Il
NICU Acuity Level IV

123

UB Revenue
Code

171
172
173
174

Charge
Amount

1,1565.00
2,736.00
4,134.00
5,775.00
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Erlanger Interim Financial Statements C-IT-10
Erlanger Audited Financial Statements C-II-10
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erlanger

Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements

Quarter Ending
September 30, 2015

This financial report is confidential and proprietary
information. This document is not a public record until
finalized and released by the chief financial officer.

The embargd date for the information contained herein is
October 19, 2015 at 5P.M. EST. No part of the information
contained herein may be released or discussed publicly until

this date.



ERLANGEFE%JH SYSTEM
Unaudited Consolidated Balar ets as of: September 30, 2015
| ASSETS | | 2016 1 | 2018 |
UNRESTRICTED FUND
CURRENT:
Cash and temporary investments $ 89,196,975 $ 50,723,375
Funds held by trustee - current portion 8,852,073 10,121,996
Patient accounts receivable 397,260,890 332,792,295
Less allowances for patient A/IR (296,732,311) (254,547 878)
Net patient accounts receivable 100,528,579 78,244,417
Other receivables ) 31,492,770 32,691,336
Due from third party payors 5,234,783 16,681,569
Inventories 14,260,086 12,830,058
Prepaid expenses 9,203,361 7,138,777
Total current assets 258,768,627 208,431,528
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Net property, plant and equipment 148,508,314 148,106,020
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 324,862 428,022
OTHER ASSETS:
Assets whose use is limited 184,180,285 131,953,425
Deferred debt issue cost 848,306 2,036,905
Other assets 1,439,943 1,632,856
Total other assets 186,468,534 135,623,186
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments 3,959,346 -
Deferred amounts from debt refunding 615,890 701,828
TOTAL $ 598,645,574 § 493,290,583
| ; LIABILITIES | | 2016 | | 2015
UNRESTRICTED FUND
CURRENT: )
Current maturities of long term debt $ 4804418 § 10,865,628
Accounts payable 60,829,650 39,703,742
Accrued salaries & related lfabilities 25,897,437 23,195,516
Due to third party payors - 1,493,918
Construction fund payable 185,543 61,187
Accrued Interest payable 4,565,800 3,127,456
Total current liabilities 96,282,938 78,447 447
NET PENSION LIABILITY 53,835,079 48,886,964
. (GASB 67, 68 & FAS 112)
RESERVE FOR OTHER LIABILITIES 18,115,727 23,515,699
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments 318,312 -
Deferred gain from sale-leaseback 3,470,969 3,935,725
LLONG - TERM DEBT 211,734,417 159,034,778
FUND BALANCE:
Unrestricted 194,234,470 163,463,286
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,499,149 11,077,072
Restricted 5,154,514 4,929,612
214,888,133 179,469,971
TOTAL $ 598,645,674 % 493,290,583

.
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PERSHING YOAKLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C..
One Cherokee Mills, 2220 Sutherland Avenue
Knoxville, TN 37919

PYA p: (865) 6730844 | f: (865) 6730173
www.pyapc.com

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System):

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the business-type activities
of Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Health System (the Primary
Health System) and its discretely presented component units, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, and the related notes to the combined financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Primary Health System’s basic combined financial statements as listed in the table of

contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Combined Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these combined financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the sudit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial staternents are free from material
misstatement. "

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Primary Health System’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

1
ATLANTA | KANSAS CITY | KNOXVILLE | NASHVILLE | TAMPA BAY
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of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component units of the Primary Health System as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note A to the combined financial statements, during the year ended June 30,
2015, the Primary Health System adopted a newly issued accounting standard that requires
retroactive adjustments to amounts previously reported with a cumulative effect adjustment to
net position as of June 30, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information: Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (shown on pages 3
through 10), the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (shown on
page 48) and the Schedule of Actuarial Contributions (shown on page 49) be presented to
supplement the basic combined financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic combined financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
combined financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic combined
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic combined
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Foons Skl (Dynsts /&

Knoxville, Tennessee
September 17, 2015
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2015
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger
Health System’s financial performance provides an overview of financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015.

Erlanger Health System (the Primary Health System) is the largest healthcare provider in
Southeast Tennessee. The Primary Health System maintains a number of very specialized
clinical services such as Level I trauma, Level IIl neonatal, kidney transplantation, a Regional
Cancer Unit, a full service children’s hospital, and open heart surgery, all of which are primarily
serviced by four “Life Force” helicopters and supported by subspecialty physicians (residents,
faculty and private attending physicians) located on its campuses.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The combined financial statements consist of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis
and the combined financial statements. The combined financial statements also include notes
that explain in more detail some of the information in the combined financial statements.

The combined financial statements of the Primary Health System offer short-term and long-term
financial information about its activities. The combined statements of net position include all of
the Primary Health System’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the Primary Health System’s
creditors (liabilities). The assets and liabilities are presented in a classified format, which
distinguishes between current and long-term assets and liabilities. It also provides the basis for
computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the Primary Health System and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Primary Health System.

All of the fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the combined statements of
revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. These statements measure the success of the
Primary Health System’s operations and can be used to determine whether the Primary Health
System has successfully recovered all of its costs through the services provided, as well as its
profitability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the combined statement of cash flows. The primary
purpose of this statement is to provide information about the Primary Health System’s cash
receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, non-capital
financing and financing activitics. The statement also provides answers to such questions as
where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in the cash balance
during the reporting period?
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

The analysis of the combined financial statements of the Primary Health System begins on the
next page. One of the most important questions asked about the Primary Health System’s
finances is “Is the financial condition of the Primary Health System as a whole better or worse as
a result of the fiscal year’s activities? The combined statements of net position and the
combined statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position report information about
the Primary Health System’s activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two
statements report the net position of the Primary Health System and changes in the net position.
One can think of the Primary Health System’s net position — the difference between assets and
liabilities — as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Primary Health System’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or. deteriorating, However, one will need to consider other non-financial
factors such as changes in economic conditions, regulations and new or changed government
legislation.

REPORTING ENTITY

The Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Health System (the
Primary Health System) was created by a private act passed by the General Assembly of the
State of Tennessee on March 11, 1976, and adopted by a majority of the qualified voters of
Hamilton County, Tennessee on August 5, 1976. The Primary Health System is considered the
primary governmental unit for financial reporting purposes. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, these financial statements present the Primary Health System and its
component units. The component units discussed below are included in the Primary Health
System’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational, financial or other
relationships with the Primary Health System. '

ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC (Cyberknife), UT-Erlanger
Medical Group, Inc. (the Medical Group) and Erlanger Health Plan Trust are legally separate
organizations for which the Primary Health System is either financially accountable or owns a
majority interest. Accordingly, these organizations represent component units of the Primary
Health System. The financial statements of Erlanger Health Plan Trust are blended with the
financial statements of the Primary Health System, as the Board of Erlanger Health Plan Trust is
substantially the same as that of the Primary Health System and the Primary Health System has
operational responsibility,

During fiscal year 2011, Cyberknife was capitalized by contributions from the Primary Health
System and certain other minority partners. Cyberknife provides radiation therapy services,
specifically robotic stereotactic radiosurgical services through the use of a Cyberknife
stereotactic radiosurgery system on the Primary Health System’s campus. At June 30, 2015, and
2014, the Primary Health System owned 51% of Cyberknife’s outstanding membership units.
The Medical Group was formed on June 30, 2011 and will provide professional healthcare and

4
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

related services to the public through its employed and contracted licensed physicians and other
supporting healthcare providers. The Medical Group has no members; however, the Primary
Health System may access the Medical Group’s services. The Medical Group is currently not

active.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The following key financial indicators are for Erlanger Health System as a whole. They are
inclusive of the Primary Health System, ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., and the 51%
controlling share of Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC.

Excess revenues over expenses for Erlanger Health System for fiscal year 2015 is $37
million compared to excess of revenue over expenses of $11 million for fiscal year 2014.

Excess revenues over expenses from operations for Erlanger Health System for fiscal
year 2015 is $48 million compared to excess of revenue over expenses of $18 million for
fiscal year 2014.

Total cash and investment reserves at June 30, 2015 are $102 million (excluding $103
million in capital investment funds and $84 million of funds held by Trustees or restricted

by donors or others).

Net days in accounts receivable for Erlanger Health System (utilizing a three month
rolling average of net revenue) is 47 days at June 30, 2015 compared to 50 days at June
30, 2014.

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $18.8 million in public hospital
supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee compared to $19.6 million in fiscal
year 2014. .

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $17.4 million in essential access
payments from the State of Tennessee compare to $12.8 million in fiscal year 2014
compared to $12.8 million in fiscal year 2014.

For both fiscal year 2015 and 2014, Erlanger Health System did mot recognize
disproportionate share payments from the State of Tennessee.

For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System recognized $1.1 million in trauma fund
payments from the State of Tennessee compared to $0.9 million in fiscal year 2014.
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The required bond covenant ratios for fiscal year 2015 compared to bond requirements are as
follows:

Bond Insurer
Master Requiremeniy
June 30, Trust 14 04
2015 Indenture Series Series
Debt service coverage ratio 541 1.10 1.35 1.35
Current ratio 2.67 N/A 1.50 1.50
Days cash on hand 104 N/A 65 days 65 days
Indebtedness ratio 52% N/A 65% 65%

The trust indentures and related documents underlying the bonds contain certain covenants and
restrictions. For fiscal year 2015, Erlanger Health System met all required debt covenants,

NET POSITION

Erlanger Health System’s net position for the combined Primary Health System and Aggregate
Discretely Presented Component Units increased by approximately $37.6 million in fiscal year -
2015. Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of
the Primary Health System’s operating activities. Discussion focuses on the Primary Health
System and its blended component units.

Net position for the Primary Health System increased from $195 million as of June 30, 2014 to
$211 million as of June 30, 2015. The cutrent ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
increased from 2.52 in 2014 to 2.67 in 2015 for the Primary Health System.

Table 1- Net Position (in Millions)

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary Presented  Primary Presented
Health Component  Health Component

System Units System Units
Current and other assets 3 442 8 13 § 332 §$ 12
Capital assets 142 8 149 9
Total assets 585 21 480 21
Deferred ouflows of resources 6 - 1 - -
$ 590 $ 21 § 481 $ 21
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June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary Presented  Primary Presented
Health Component  Health Component
System Units System Units
Long-term debt outstanding $ 213 §$ -8 159 § 4
Other liabilities 163 6 123 3
Total liabilities 376 6 282 7
Deferred inflows of resources 4 - 4 -
$ 380 $ 6 $ 286 $ 7
Net position
Net investment in capital assets $ 2 8 5% 1 8 5
Restricted, expendable 3 - 2 -
Unrestricted 206 10 191 9
Total net position ~ § 210 $ 15 § 194 § 14

Days in cash increased from 88 days as of June 30, 2014 to 104 days as of June 30, 2015 for the
Primary Health System resulting from increased operating margins.

Days in net accounts receivable for the Primary Health System were 51 days as of June 30, 2015
and 2014.

Capital assets for the Primary Health System were $142 million as of June 30, 2015. Additions
for fiscal year 2015 totaled $18 million while $16 million of assets were retired or sold.
Depreciation expense was $25 million for the Primary Health System. Retirement of assets
reduced accumulated depreciation by $11 million in fiscal year 2015. Construction in progress
was $11 million as of June 30, 2015. Tocluded in construction in progress is the Erlanger East
expansion totaling $5.7 million.

Long-term debt outstanding amounted to $213 million as of June 30, 2015 compared to $159
million as of June 30, 2014, The increase in long-term debt reflects $71 million of new money
included in the Series 2014 Bonds.

Other liabilities for the Primary Health System were $163 ﬁxillion as of June 30, 2015 compared
to $123 million as of June 30, 2014, due in part to the recognition of the pension liability
required by a new accounting standard.
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The focus for Erlanger Health System’s management team during fiscal year 2015 was to
increase the Primary Health System’s volumes in a number of key product lines in a flat market,
improve relationships with stakeholders, and improve operating efficiencies.

Table 2- Changes in Net Position (in Millions)

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Discretely Discretely
Primary Presented  Primary Presented
Health Component  Health Component

System Units System Units
Net patient revenue $ 670 $ 11 $ 571 § 11
Other revenue 16 18 21 17
: Total revenue 686 29 592 28
Expenses:

Salaries 333 14 305 14
Supplies and other expenses 140 10 126 10
Purchased services 141 3 117 3
Depreciation and amortization 25 1 26 1
Total expenses 638 28 574 28

Operating income revenues in
excess of (less than) expenses 47 1 18 1
Nonoperating gains 2 - 2 -
Interest expense and other 12) - ® -
Operating/capital contributions 0 - 1 -
Change in net position  $ 38 $ 1 $ 12 § 1

Net patient service revenue for the Primary Health System increased from $571 million in fiscal
year 2014 to $670 million in fiscal year 2015. Admissions for fiscal year 2015 were 33,340
compared to 30,394 for fiscal year 2014, a 9.7% increase. Observation days decreased from
8,398 for fiscal year 2014 to 7,836 for fiscal year 2015, or by 6.7%. Air ambulance flights
increased from 1,870 flights for fiscal 2014 to 1,994 flights for fiscal year 2015, or by 6.6%.
Medicare case mix index was 1.88 for fiscal years 2014 and 2015. Total surgical inpatients
increased from 9,198 for fiscal year 2014 to 9,856 for fiscal 2015, or by 7.2%. Total surgical
outpatients for fiscal year 2015 increased by 4.0% over the prior year. Total emergency room
visits were 150,851 for fiscal year 2015, a 14.3 % increase over fiscal year 2014, "'
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Salaries for the Primary Health System increased from $305 million in fiscal year 2014 to $333
million in fiscal year 2015. Staffing was in concert with the increased volumes. Paid FTE’s per
adjusted occupied bed decreased from 5.1 in fiscal year 2014 to 4.8 in fiscal year 2015, however,
salary cost for fiscal year 2015 per hour increased by 8.6% over the prior year. A 2% raise for
full time employees (excluding bedside nurses) was implemented in January 2015 and a 2.7%
market adjustment for bedside nurses was implemented in July 2014. The post-retirement
benefits were discontinued in January 2015.

Supplies and other expenses increased from $126 million for fiscal year 2014 to $140 million in
fiscal year 2015. Supplies and drug costs trended with the volume increases. Supplies and drugs
per adjusted admission for the Primary Health System increased from $1,555 in fiscal year 2014
to $1,573 in fiscal year 2015.

Purchased Services increased from $117 million in fiscal year 2014 to $141 million in fiscal year
2015 due in part to an increase in contracted hospitalist fees resulting from increased volumes.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased from $26 million in fiscal year 2014 to $25
million in fiscal year 2015 based on the capital spending plan.

Interest expense, including gain (or loss) on mark-to-market of interest rate swaps in 2014,
increased from $9 million in fiscal year 2014 to $12 million in fiscal year 2015. The Series 2014
Bonds issued in December 2014 resulted in $71 million in additional debt. The interest rate
swaps agreements were terminated in fiscal year 2015.

OUTLOOK

The State of Tennessee continues to review the TennCare program (the State’s Medicaid
program). For fiscal years 2012 and 2013, the State passed a Hospital Coverage Fee to offset
shortfalls in the State’s budget for TennCare. The fee remained intact and TennCare rates were
stable in fiscal year 2014 and 2015. There could be possible TennCare rate changes in fiscal
year 2016 as a result of rate variation initiatives. Out-of-state Medicaid and TennCare changes
would affect the Primary HHealth System’s bottom line with TennCare and Medicaid patients
representing approximately 23% of the payer mix. Self-pay patients represent approximately 8%
of the charge utilization. Healthcare reform and future changes in Medicare regulations could
also have an adverse effect on the Primary Health System’s future operations since Medicare
represents approximately 33% of the payer mix.

During fiscal year 2014, the Primary Health was added as a participant to the Public Hospital
‘Supplemental Payment Pool for public hospitals in Tennessee through a collaborative effort with
local Mayors, State Senators and Representatives, Hamilton County Medical Society, Board
members, physicians and hospital leadership. The inclusion of the Primary Health System in the

9
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pool netted $19.6 million of additional federal funding for fiscal year 2014 and $18.8 million for
fiscal year 2015. - The Primary Health System will receive this funding annually as long as the
current TennCare waiver is intact.

The Primary Health System recognized Essential Access payments totaling $17.4 million from
the State of Tennessee for fiscal year 2015, an increase of $4.6 million from fiscal year 2014,
Disproportionate share payments were not approved by Federal government for fiscal year 2014
and funds received during 2015 have not been recognized until eligibility is ‘defermined.
Additionally, the Primary Health System recognized trauma funding of $1.1 million in fiscal
year 2015 compared to $0.9 million in fiscal year. Payments from the State of Tennessee for the
fiscal year 2016 are expected to be consistent with the fiscal year 2015. Due to the 1966
Hamilton County Sales Tax Agreement expiring in May 2011, the Hamilton County
appropriations to the Primary Health System have been reduced from $3 million to $1.5 million.

The focus of Erlanger Health System’s CEO and leadership team for fiscal year 2015 has been
top-line, sustainable growth, cost containment and strengthened physician relations. The
strategic plans put in place this fiscal year have yielded strong positive results and enabled
investment in Erlanger and the community. The health system has infused $71 million from bond
sales into major growth initiatives.

10
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Combined Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2015
Primary Discretely
Health Presented
System Component Units
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 92,642,502 $ 1,072,363
Temporary investments 3,258,275 5,637,906
Patient accounts receivable, net 93,787,459 2,040,568
Estimated amounts due from third party payers 5,399,871 -
Due from other governments 130,037 409,825
Inventories 12,991,042 1,299,621
Receivable from Hutcheson Medical Center 20,000,000 -
Other current assets 11,832,273 1,563,932
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 240,041,459 12,024,215
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 142,126,358 8,459,744
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS, for working capital 324,862 -
ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE 186,519,439 =
OTHER ASSETS:
Prepaid bond insurance 890,721 -
Equity in discretely presented component units 14,478,062 -
Other assets 189,079 557,145
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 15,557,862 557,145
TOTAL ASSETS 584,569,980 21,041,104
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension adjustments 3,959,346 -
Deferred amounts from debt refunding 1,724,071 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,683,417 -
COMBINED ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 590,253,397 § 21,041,104
11

See notes to combined financial statements.
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Combined Statements of Net Position - Continued

June 30, 2015
Primary Discretely
Health Presented

System Component Units

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities
Due to other governments
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Other current liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL
LEASE OBLIGATIONS
NET PENSION LIABILITY
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pension adjustments
Deferred gain from sale-leaseback
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION:
Unrestricted
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted expendable:
Health plan trust
Donor restricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

COMBINED LIABILITES, DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

$ 52923265 § 1,361,173

25,723,976 1,099,831
409,825 130,037
4,782,194 3,036,295
7,456,250 178,113
91,295,510 5,305,449
213,102,723 110,221
51,857,463 -
19,496,243 .
375,751,939 5,915,670
318,312 5
3,470,969 -
3,789,281 s
205,862,075 9,755,724
1,838,341 5,369,710
1,623,416 .
1,388,345 )
210,712,177 15,125,434

$ 590,253,397 $ 21,041,104

See notes to combined financial statements.

12
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
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Combined Statements of Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Primary Discretely
Health Presented
System Component Units
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges for services:
Net patient service revenue 669,863,550 $ 11,263,001
Other revenue 15,712,983 18,208,040
. TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 685,576,533 29,471,041
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries, wages and benefits 332,652,156 14,063,605
Supplies and other expenses 136,259,730 10,499,399
Purchased services ~ 140,782,277 2,516,607
Insurance and taxes 3,479,089 352,441
Depreciation 25,125,088 1,148,854
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 638,298,340 28,580,906
OPERATING INCOME 47,278,193 890,135
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Gain on disposal of assets 311,556 185,913
Interest and investment incame, net of fees 534,193 (26,043)
Net gain from discretely presented component units 353,793 -
Interest expense (11,828,171) (154,532)
Provision for income taxes - (407,086)
Change in mark-to-market of interest rate swaps 693,533 -
NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) (9,935,096) (401,7'48)
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 37,343,097 488,387
Operating distribtuions (25,142) -
Capital contributions 301,429 -
CHANGE IN NE:I‘ POSITION 37,619,384 488,387
NET POSITION AT BEG]]\INII\TG-QI:‘_' YEAR,
as previously réported 194,553,424 14,637,047
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHAN GE\\
IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (21,460,631) -
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 173,092,793 14,637,047
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR § 210,712,177 § 29,762,481

See notes to combined financial statements.

13
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Combined Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended
Primary Health System June 30 2015
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from third-party payers and patients 663,337,934
Payments to vendors and others for supplies, purchased
services, and other expenses (268,727,175)
Payments to and on behalf of employees (321,733,330)
Other receipts 16,154,086
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 89,031,515
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions (25,142)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets, net (23,837,648)
Proceeds from sale of assets 4,978,206
Principal paid on bonds, capital lease obligations and other (15,492,190)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 171,465,880
Payments to defease bonds (109,805,916)
Interest payments on long-term debt (9,507,644)
Swap termination payment (3,289,113)
Capital contributions 301,429
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 14,813,004
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest, dividends, and net realized gains (losses) on investments 534,193
Change in temporary and long-term investments
for working capital (1,872,133)
Payments received on note receivable 550,000
Net cash transferred to assets limited as to use (54,590,999)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (55,378,939)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 48,440,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 44,202,064
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 92,642,502
See notes to combined financial statements. 14
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Year Ended
Primary Health System June 30 2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY QOPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 47,278,193
Adjustments to reconcile operating incoms to net
cash provided by operating activitics:
Depreciation 25,125,088
Changes in assets and liabilitics:
Patient accounts receivable, net (14,358,498)
Estimated amounts due from third party payers, net 6,009,092
Inventories and other assets 1,126,630
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,975,005
Accrued salaries and related liabilities 10,918,826
Other current and long-term liabilitics 1,957,179

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 89,031,515

See notes to combined financial statements.
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Year Ended June 30, 2015
NOTE A--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: The Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority d/b/a Erlanger Health
System (the Primary Health System) was created by a private act passed by the General
Assembly of the State of Tennessee on March 11, 1976, and adopted by a majority of the
qualified voters of Hamilton County, Tennessee on August 5, 1976. The Chattanooga-Hamilton
County Hospital Authority consists of the Primary Health System and its aggregate discretely
presented component units as disclosed below.

The Primary Health System provides comprehensive healthcare services throughout Hamilton
and Bledsoe counties, as well as outlying areas in southeastern Tennessee and north Georgia.
These services are provided primarily through the hospital and other facilities located on the
Baroness campus of Erlanger Medical Center. The Primary Health System also operates other
hospitals and clinics throughout the area. The Primary Health System is considered the primary
governmental unit for financial reporting purposes. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these combined financial statements present
the Primary Health System and its component units. The component units discussed below are
included in the Primary Health System’s reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationships with the Primary Health System.

The primary mission of the Primary Health System and its component units is to provide
healthcare services to the citizens of Chattanooga, Hamilton County and the surrounding area.
Only those activities directly associated with this purpose are considered to be operating
activities. Other activities that result in gains or losses unrelated to the Primary Health System’s
primary mission are considered to be nonoperating. :

Erlanger Health Plan Trust, ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc., Cyberknife of Chattanooga, LLC,
and UT-Erlanger Medical Group, Inc. are legally separate organizations which the Primary
Health System has determined are component units of the Primary Health System.

Blended Component Units: The financial statements of Erlanger Health Plan Trust include assets
limited as to use totaling $1,623,416 as of June 30, 2015 and net investment loss totaling $3,617
for the year ended June 30, 2015 that are blended in the combined financial statements of the
Primary Health System. The board of the Erlanger Health Plan Trust is substantially the same as
that of the Primary Health System and the Primary Health System has operational responsibility.

Discretely Presented Component Units: The discretely presented component units’ column in
the combined financial statements includes the financial data of the Primary Health System’s
other component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally

16
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Year Ended June 30, 2015

separate from the Primary Health System. See the combined, condensed financial information in
Note Q.

1.  ContinuCare HealthServices, Inc. and subsidiary (ContinuCare) provide health and
supportive services to individuals in their homes in the Hamilton County and north
Georgia areas. ContinuCare also provides retail pharmacy goods and services at four
locations in Hamilton County. The Primary Health System owns 100% of the stock of
ContinuCare. Separately audited financial statements for ContinuCare HealthServices,
Inc. may be obtained by mailing a request to 1501 Riverside Drive, Suite 140,
Chattanooga, Tennessee 37406.

2. Cyberknife of Chattancoga, LLC (Cyberknife) provides radiation therapy services,
specifically robotic stereotactic radiosurgical services, through the use of a cyberknife
stereotactic radiosurgery system on the Primary Health System’s campus. The Primary
Health System owns 51% of Cyberknife’s outstanding membership units and
Cyberknife is fiscally dependent on the Primary Health System.

A condition of admission as a Member of Cyberknife, is to deliver limited guaranties,
guaranteeing pro-rata repayment of indebtedness of Cyberknife incurred to finance its
equipment costs and its working capital needs. As of June 30, 2015, total debt
outstanding was $3,092,057 with payments due through 2017, Management believes
that the Primary Health System will not be required to make any payments related to
the guarantee of this indebtedness.

3. UT-Erlanger Medical Group, Inc. (the Medical Gi-oup) was formed on June 30, 2011
and will provide professional healthcare and related services to the public through
employed and contracted licensed physicians and other supporting healthcare providers.
The Medical Group has no members; however, the Primary Health System may access
the Medical Group’s services. The Primary Health System is not entitled to any
potential earnings of the Medical Group except for compensation for services rendered
to the Medical group on its behalf. However, based upon the significance of the
Medical Group’s potential operation to the Primary Health System, management
believes its exclusion would be misleading and as such, includes the Medical Group as
a component unit. The Medical Group is currently not active.

Erlanger Health System Foundations (the Foundation): The Foundation assists the Primary
Health System to promote and develop charitable and educational opportunities as they relate to
healthcare scrvices provided by the Primary Health System. The Primary Health System is not
financially accountable for the Foundation and as a result, the Foundation has not been included
in the combined financial statements.
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Contributions from the Foundation totaling approximately $32,000 for the year ended June 30,
2015 were recognized as contribution revenue by the Primary Health System. The Primary
Health System provided support to the Foundation of $594,000 in 2015.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the combined financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the combined financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Enterprise Fund Accounting: The Primary Health System and its blended component units
utilize the enterprise fund method of accounting whereby revenue and expenses are recognized
on the accrual basis using the economic resources measurement focus.

Recently Issued or Effective Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2012, the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions. Statement No. 68 provides guidance for improved accounting and
financial reporting by state and local government entities related to pensions. It also replaces the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 and Statement No. 50, as they relate to pensions that
are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet
certain criteria. Additionally, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which is effective concurrent with
Statement No. 68. Among other requirements, the Primary Health System recorded a net
pension liability that is based on fiduciary plan net position rather than on plan funding. The
Primary Health System adopted these Statements in 2015 and a cumulative effect adjustment has
been recorded as a restatement of net assets as of June 30, 2014 in the combined financial

statements.

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. Statement No. 72 defines fair value and describes how fair value should be
measured, what assets and liabilities -should be measured at fair value, and what information
about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This statement will
become effective in fiscal 2016 and management does not expect any significant impact on the -
combined financial statements other than additional disclosures.

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual
basis in the period in which services are provided at rates which reflect the amount expected to
be collected. Net patient service revenue includes amounts estimated by management to be
reimbursable by third-party payer programs under payment formulas in effect. Net patient
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revenue also includes an estimated provision for bad debts based upon management’s evaluation
of collectability based upon the age of the receivables and other criteria, such as payer
classification and management’s assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of
action it expects to take. The Primary Health System’s policies do not require collateral or other
security for accounts receivable, although the Primary Health System routinely accepts
assignment or is otherwise entitled to receive patient benefits payable under health insurance
programs, plans or policies. Supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee are recognized
when determinable (see Note B). :

Charity Care: The Primary Health System accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A
patient is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain policies established by the County
Auditor with regard to the Hamilton County indigent program or by the Primary Health System
for other patients, Essentially, these policies define charity services as those servicey for which
minimal payment is anticipated. In assessing a patient’s inability to pay, the County and the
Primary Health System utilize the generally recognized poverty income levels, but also include
certain cases where incurred charges are significant when compared to the income of the patient.
These charges are not included in net patient service revenue,

Cash Equivalents: The Primary Health System considers all highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased, excluding amounts whose use is limited by
board designation, held by trustees under indenture agreement, or otherwise restricted as to use,
to be cash equivalents.

Inventories: Inventories consist principally of medical and surgical supplies, general store
supplies, and pharmacy items and are stated at lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or fair market
value.

Investments: The Primary Health System’s investments (including aésets limited as to use) are
reported at fair market value based on quoted market prices. Assets limited as to use include
funds designated by the Board, funds held by trustees under trust indentures, and funds restricted
by donors or grantors for specific purposes. The Primary Health System considers those
investments with maturities of more than three months when purchased, maturing in more than
one year and whose use is not limited by board designation, held by trustees under indenture
agreement, or otherwise restricted as to use, to be long-term investments.

Temporary Investments: The Primary Health System considers all highly liquid investments
with maturities of more than three months when purchased and maturing in less than one year,
excluding amounts whose use is limited by board designation, held by trustees under indenture
agreement, or otherwise restricted as to use, to be temporary investments.
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Net Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is recorded on the basis of
cost. Donated assets are recorded at their fair market value at the date of donation. Leases that
are substantially installment purchases of property are recorded as assets and amortized over
their estimated useful lives ranging from three to thirty years; related amortization is included in
depreciation expense. Depreciation expense is computed over estimated service lives of the
respective classes of assets using the straight-line method. The Primary Health System has
established a capitalization threshold for property, plant and equipment of $2,500 except for
computer equipment, which has a threshold of $1,000. Interest expense and interest income on
borrowed funds related to construction projects are capitalized during the construction period, if
material. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

The Primary Health System reviews the carrying value of capital assets if facts and
circumstances indicate that recoverability may be impaired. A capital asset is considered
impaired when its service utility has declined significantly and unexpectedly. The Primary
Health System did not experience any prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting
capital assets which would require determination as to whether impairment of a capital asset has
occurred during the year ended June 30, 2015.

Prepaid Bond Insurance: Financing costs related to insurance associated with bond issues are
being amortized over the terms of the respective debt issues by the effective interest method.

Compensated Absences: The Primary Health System recognizes an expense and accrues a
liability for employees’ paid annual leave and short-term disability in the period in which the
employees’ right to such compensated absences is earned. Liabilities expected to be paid within
one year are included as accrued salaries and related liabilities in the accompanying combined
statements of net position.

Derivative Instruments: The Primary Health System records all derivatives as assets or liabilities
on the combined statements of net position at estimated fair value and includes credit value
adjustments. The Primary Health System’s derivative holdings consisted of interest rate swap
agreements. Since these derivatives have not been determined to be effective, the gain or Joss
resulting from changes in the fair value of the derivatives is recognized in the accompanying
combined statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position. The Primary Health
System’s objectives in using derivatives are to take advantage of the differences between taxable
and tax-exempt debt, and manage exposure to interest rate risks associated with various debt

instruments (see Note N).

Pensions: Pension amounts (net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of résources related to pensions, and pension expense, fiduciary net position of the
Primary Health System’s pension plan and additions to or deductions from the plan’s fiduciary
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net position) have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Primary Health
System. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value

Income Taxes: The Primary Health System is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(a)
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). In
addition, it qualifies for exemption from federal income taxes pursuant to IRC Section 115 as an
instrumentality of the State of Tennessee. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been
recognized in the accompanying combined financial statements for the Primary Health System.

As a for-profit entity, ContinuCare is subject to state and federal income taxes. ContinuCare
HealthServices, Inc. and its subsidiary file consolidated federal income tax returns separately
from the Primary Health System. At June 30, 2015, ContinuCare had no significant uncertain
tax positions. Tax returns for the years ended June 30, 2010 through 2014 are subject to
examination by taxing authorities.

As a limited liability corporation, Cyberknife, is subject to State of Tennessee income taxes. At
June 30, 2015 Cyberknife had no significant uncertain tax positions. Tax returns for the years
ended June 30, 2010 through 2014 are subject to examination by taxing authorities.

Contributed Resources: Resources restricted by donors for specific operating purposes are held
as restricted funds and are recognized as operating or capital contributions in the accompanying
combined financial statements. When expended for the intended purpose, they are reported as
operating distributions and are recognized as other operating revenue. When an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, restricted
resources are used first. Contributed resources consist of amounts restricted by donors for
specific putposes. Fundraising expenses are netted against contributions recognized.

Net Position: The net position of the Primary Health System is classified into three components.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital and other assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the current balances of any outstanding borrowings used to finance
.the purchase or construction of those assets. The restricted expendable net.position consists of
assets that must be used for a particular purpose that are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The unrestricted net position is remaining
assets that do not meet the definition of net investment in capital assets or restricted expendable.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts reported in the combined statements
of net position approximate fair value except as described below.
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The carrying value of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (including the current portion)
was $217,884,917 as of June 30, 2015. The estimated fair value of long-term debt and capital
lease obligations (including current portion) was $223,253,248 at June 30, 2015. The fair value
of long-term debt related to fixed interest long-term debt and capital lease obligations was
estimated using discounted cash flows, based on the Primary Health System’s incremental
borrowing rates or from quotes obtained from investment advisors. The fair vatue of long-term
debt related to variable rate debt approximates its carrying value.

Subsequent Events: The Primary Health System evaluated all events or transactions that
occurred after June 30, 2015 through September 17, 2015 , the date the combined financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE B--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE
A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates by the

Primary Health System to net patient service revenue as presented in the combined statements of
revenue, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Primary
Health System

Inpatient service charges : $ 1,231,642,020
Outpatient service charges 934,797,502
Gross patient service charges 2,166,439,522
Less: Contractual adjustments and other discounts 1,311,598,641
Charity care 92,023,486
Estimated provision for bad debts 92,953,845
1,496,575,972

Net patient service revenue $ 669,863,550

-Charity Care and Community Benefit: The Private Act of the State of Tennessee establishing the
Primary Health System obligates the Primary Health System to make its facilities and patient
care programs available to the indigent residents of Hamilton County to the extent of funds
appropriated by Hamilton County and adjusted operating profits, as defined. The annual
appropriation from Hamilton County totaled $1,500,000 for fiscal year 2015. Total charity care
charges for services provided to the certified indigent residents of Hamilton County (net of the
appropriation) were approximately $7,373,000 for the year ended June 30, 2015 for the Primary
Health System.

22



154

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Notes to Combined Financial Statements - Continued

Year Ended June 30, 2015

In addition to charity care provided to specific patients within the hospital setting, the Primary
Health System also provides unreimbursed services to the community which includes free and
low cost health screenings. The Primary Health System also hosts health fairs and helps sponsor
many other events that are free to the public and are spread throughout the year in various
community locations,

The Primary Health System’s Community Relations department includes HealthLink Plus, a free
adult membership program with over 13,000 members in the Chattanooga Statistical
Metropolitan Service Area. The Community Relations department hosts several free community
events throughout the year utilizing the services of physicians, nurses, volunteers, educators,
registered dietitians, social workers, secretaries and management personnel of the Primary
Health System.

The Primary Health System’s consumer call center, Erlanger HealthLink (423-778-LINK) is a
free call center staffed by RN’s to answer health questions, offer free physician referrals and to
register participants in the programs offered by Community Relations, Women’s & Infant
Services and other departments and divisions of the Primary Health System.

Uncompensated Care Costs: The following table summarizes the estimated total uncompensated
care costs (based on the ratio of total operating revenue and expenses) provided by Erlanger
Medical Center as defined by the State of Tennessee for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Uncompensated cost of TennCare/Medicaid $ 31,782,618
Traditional charity incompensated costs 26,681,372
Bad debt cost 26,649,921
Total estimated uncompensated care costs $ 85,113,911

The uncompensated cost of TennCare/Medicaid is estimated by taking the estimated cost of
providing care to the TennCare/Medicaid patients less payments from the TennCare and
Medicaid programs. The payments exclude revenues from essential access and other, one-time
supplemental payments from TennCare of approximately $17,415,000 for the year ended June
30, 2015 and such payments are not guaranteed for future periods.

Revenue from Significant Payers: Gross patient service charges related to the Medicare program
accounted for approximately 31.6% of the Primary Health System’s patient service charges for
the year ended June 30, 2015. Gross patient service charges related to the TennCare/Medicaid
programs accounted for approximately 22.6% of the Primary Health System’s patient service
charges for the year ending June 30, 2015. TennCare typically reimburses providers at an
amount less than their cost of providing services to TennCare patients. At June 30, 2015, the
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Primary Health System has a credit concentration related to the Medicare and TennCare
programs.

During 2015, the Primary Health System recognized revenue from these programs related to
trauma fund payments of approximately $1,111,000. Further, during 2015, the Primary Health
System received disproportionate share payments of approximately $5,030,000 which have not
been recognized as revenue. All such amounts will be recognized when the Primary Health
System’s eligibilify to receive such funds has been confirmed. Such amounts are subject to audit
and future distributions under these programs are not guaranteed. In 2015 the Primary Health
System also received and recognized a net payment of $18,781,788 from the Public Hospital
Supplemental Payment Pool. Such amounts are expected to be received as long as the current
TennCare waiver is intact.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and TennCare/Medicaid programs are complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates, as they relate to revenue recognized from these programs, will change by a material
amount in the near term. The estimated reimbursement amounts are adjusted in subsequent
periods as cost reports are prepared and filed and as final settlements are determined. Final
determination of amounts earned under prospective payment and cost reimbursement activities is
subject to review by appropriate governmental authorities or their agents. Management believes
that adequate provisions have been made for adjustments that may result from final
determination of amounts earned under Medicare and Medicaid programs. The effect of prior
year cost report settlements, or changes in estimates, decteased net patient service revenue by
approximately $1,770,000 in 2015.

The Primary Health System has also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain
commercial insurance companies, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for reimbursement under these agreements includes prospectively
determined rates, per diems and discounts from established charges.

NOTE C--CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents reported on the combined statements of net position include cash on
hand and deposits with financial institutions including demand deposits and certificates of

deposit, as well as, money market accounts that are held in investment accounts and meet the
definition of a cash equivalent.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
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Primary
Health System
Demand deposits $ 90,410,005
Cash on hand 11,479
Cash equivalents 2,221,018
$ 92,642,502
Bank balances consist of the following at June 30, 2015:
Primary
Health System
Insured (FDIC) $ 599,794
Collateralized under the State of Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool - 90,481,991

$ 91,081,785

The Primary Health System’s deposits would be exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized or are collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the
depositor government’s name. The risk is that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the Primary Health System will not be able to recover deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

NOTE D-DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES

Patient Accounts Receivable, Net: Patient accounts receivable and related allowances are as
follows at June 30, 2015:

Primary
Health System
Gross patient accounts receivable $ 359,183,176
Estimated allowances for contractual adjustments and uncollectible accounts (265,395,717)
Net patient accounts receivable $ 93,787,459
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Other Current Assets: Other current assets consist of the following at June 30, 2015:

Primary
Health System
Prepaid expenses $ 4,319,594
Other receivables 7,512,679
Total other current assets $ 11,832,273

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses: Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the
following at June 30, 2015:

Primary
Health System
Due to vendors $ 48,638,243
Other 4,285,022
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 52,923,265

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Other long-term liabilities, and the related activity, consist of the
following:

Balance at Unearned
Beginning of Revenue Payments Balance at
Year Recognized /Other End of Year
Compensated absences $ 10,638,408 $ - $ - $ 10,638,408
Medical malpractice 5,066,000 - (131,100) 4,934,900
Job injury program 1,253,139 - - 1,253,139
Interest rate swaps 3,982,646 - (3,982,646) -
Deferred revenue 2,973,643 (393,607) - 2,580,036

Other - 89,760 89,760
Total other long-term liabilities $§ 23,913,836 $ (393,607) $ (4,023,986) $ 19,496,243

NOTE E--NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Net property, plant and equipment activity for the Primary Health System consisted of the
following: )
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Balance Balance
at June Reductions/ at June
30, 2014 Additions Transfers 30, 2015
Capital assets: ‘
Land and improvements $ 25966917 $ 152,048 § (5,126,037) $ 20,992,928
Buildings 233,622,494 2,986,741 (6,858,056) 229,751,179
Equipment 376,690,494 15,058,319 (4,369,827) 387,378,986
636,279,905 18,197,108 (16,353,920) 638,123,093
Accumulated depreciation :
Land and improvements (12,072,718) (332,824) 3,624,843 (8,780,699)
Buildings (176,094,670) (6,341,721) 3,389,921 (179,046,470)
Equipment (304,859,236) (18,450,543) 4,207,750 (319,102,029)
(493,026,624) (25,125,088) 11,222,514 (506,929,198)
Capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation 143,253,281 (6,927,980) (5,131,406) 131,193,895
Construction in progress 5,291,923 18,338,139 (12,697,599) 10,932,463

$ 148545204 § 11,410,159 $ (17,829,005) $ 142,126,358

Construction in progress at June 30, 2015 consists of various projects for additions and
renovations to the Primary Health System’s facilities. The estimated cost to complete
construction projects is approximately $85,000,000.

During 2012, the Primary Health System entered into an agreement to sell certain professional
office buildings (POBs) and concurrently entered into agreements to lease space from the
purchaser. The sales price of the POBs was approximately $13,333,000, and a gain of
approximately $6,695,000 was realized. Since the Primary Health System is leasing back certain
space, a portion of the gain has been deferred and is being recognized over the terms of the
leases. Amortization of the deferred gain is included in non-operating revenue (expenses) for the
year ended June 30, 2015. The leases entered into (or committed to) under this sale/leaseback
agreement include certain leases which meet the criteria for capitalization and are included in
Note M.

NOTE F--INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

The Primary Health System invests in United States government and agency bonds, municipal
* bonds, corporate debt, certificates of deposit and short-term money market investments that are
in accordance with the Primary Health System’s investment policy. Tempotary investments at
June 30, 2015 consist primarily of cash equivalents, government bonds and commercial paper.
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The carrying and estimated fair values for long-term investments, and assets limited as to use, by
type, at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Primary
Health System
U.S. Government and agency bonds, including municipal $ 132,355,866
bonds, mutual funds, and other
Corporate bonds and commercial paper 41,572,069
Short-term investments and cash equivalents 12,916,366
Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 186,844,301
Assets limited as to use are designated for the following purposes:
Primary
Health System
Capital investment funds $ 102,544,397
Under bond indentures - held by trustees 76,706,179
Self-insurance trust 5,645,447
Health plan trust 1,623,416

$ 186,519,439

Assets limited as to use for capital improvements are to be used for the replacement of property
and equipment or for any other purposes so designated.

Funds held by trustees under bond indenture at June 30 are as follows:

Primary
Health System
Debt service reserve funds $ 6,195,383
Construction fund 70,510,796
Total funds held by trustees under bond indenture $ 76,706,179

The debt service reserve fund is to be used only to make up any deficiencies in other funds
related to the Hospital Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2004. The construction fund may
be used for various construction and renovation projects related to the Series 2014 bonds.
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The Primary Health System’s investment policy specifies the types of investments which can be
included in board-designated assets limited as to use, as well as collateral or other security
requirements. The investment policy also specifies the maximum maturity of the portfolio of
board-designated assets. Assets limited as to use and held by trustees are invested as permitted
by the bond indenture.

Custodial Credit Risk: The Primary Health System’s investment securities are exposed to
custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the Primary
Health System, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or
agent but not in the Primary Health System’s name. The risk is that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty to a transaction, the Primary Health System will not be able to recover the value
of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of June 30, 2015, the Primary Health System’s investments, including assets limited as to use,
were comprised of various short-term investments, U.S. government and government agency
bonds, municipal obligations, corporate bonds, commercial paper, and other U.S. Treasury
obligations. Substantially all of the Primary Health System’s investments, including assets
limited as to use, are uninsured or unregistered. Securities are held by the counterparty, or by its
trust department or agent, in the Primary Health System’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk: This is the risk associated with the amount of investments the
Primary Health System has with any one issuer that exceeds 5% or more of its total investments.
Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and investments in mutual
funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from this
requirement, The Primary Health System’s investment policy does not restrict the amount that
may be held for any single issuer. At June 30, 2015, none of the Primary Health System’s
investments with any one issuer exceed 5% of its total investments except certain U.S,
Government agencies.

Credit Risk: This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. GASB No. 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt
security investments except for obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. Government. The Primary Health System’s investment policy provides
guidelines for its fund managers and lists specific allowable investments,

The credit risk profile of the Primary Health System’s investments, including assets limited as to
use (excluding U.S. Government securities), as of June 30, 2015, is as follows:
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Balance as Rating
of June 30,
Invesiment Type 2015 AAA AA A ERB N/A
U.S Government
agency bonds $ 63,486,611 $ 61,980,956 § 1,505,655 § -3 - § -
Municipal bonds 21,187,282 12,730,094 6,746,950 1,710,238 - -
Bond mutual funds 5,593,772 5,593,772 - - - -
Corporate bonds and
commercial paper 36,093,132 - - 36,093,132 - -
Cash equivalents 12,745,231 - - - - 12,745,231
Total investments $ 139,106,028 §$ 80,304,822 § 8,252,605 § 37,803,370 $ - §$ 12,745,231

Interest Rate Risk: This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Primary Health System’s investment policy authorizes a strategic
asset allocation that is designed to provide an optimal return over the Primary Health System’s
investment horizon and within specified risk tolerance and cash requirements.

The distribution of the Primary Health System’s investments, including assets limited as to use,
by maturity as of June 30, 2015, is as follows:

Remaining Maturlty
Balance as 12
of June 30, months 13-24 25-60 Over 60
Investment Type 2015 or lesy Months Months Months N/A
U.S. Government bonds
and agency funds $ 111,224,887 $ 40,933,561 $ 26,492,971 § 15,186,259 $ 28,612,096 $ -
Municipal bonds 21,187,282 11,629,322 3,065,355 6,492,605 - -
Bond mutunal fands 5,593,772 ! 5,593,772
Corporate bonds and !
commercial paper 36,093,132 36,093,132 - - - &
Cash equivalents 12,745,228 12,745,228 - - - -
Total investments $ 186,844,301 $101,401,243 $ 29,558,326 § 21,678,864 § 28,612,096 §$ 5,593,772
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Long-term debt at June 30, 2015 consists of the following:

Primary
Health System
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 20144, including
bond premium of $8,511,142 $ 158,431,142
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2004, net of bond discount of
$374,681 and including bond issue premium of $719,347 40,429,666
Total bonds payable 198,860,808
2014B Note payable 12,000,000
Other loans 644,748
Capital leases - Note M 6,379,361
217,884,917
Less: current portion (4,782,194)

$ 213,102,723

On December 1, 2014, the Primary Health System issued $149,920,000 Series 2014A bonds for
the purpose of advance refunding $20,615,000 of the outstanding Series 2004 bonds (described
below), $30,300,000 of the outstanding Series 2000 bonds, $17,375,000 of the Series 1998A
bonds, and $27,465,000 of the outstanding Series 1997A bonds. The Primary Health System
also utilized the proceeds to pay certain issuance costs and deposited a portion of the bond
proceeds in the amount of $71,000,000 into a construction fund. The advance refunding of the
of the Series 2004 bonds, Series 1998A bonds, and 1997A bonds resulted in a loss of $1,116,755
that is reported as a deferred outflow of resources and will be amortized over the term of the
Series 2014A bonds.

The Series 2014A bonds consist of series bonds maturing annually beginning October 1, 2016
through 2034 and term bonds maturing on October 1, 2039 and 2044. The term bonds are
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption beginning October 1, 2035. The Series 2014A
bonds are also subject to redemption by the Primary Health System at any interest payment date
at a redemption price equal to the principal amount plus accrued interest.

Interest rates for the Series 2014 A bonds are as follows:

Series bonds ~3.0% 10 5.0%
Term bonds -4.125% to 5.0%
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In conjunction with the issuance of the Series 2014A bonds, the Primary Health Systems issued a
$12,000,000 note payable (2014B note) through a financial institution to advance refund the
remaining $11,775,000 of outstanding Series 1997A bonds and pay issuance costs. Principal
payments of $100,000 are due annually beginning October 1, 2018 until the maturity date of
October 1, 2021. The 2014B note bears interest, payable monthly, at a variable rate equal to the
1-month London Interbank Offered Rate plus a margin ranging from .73% to 2.25% based on the
debt rating of the Primary Health System. The applicable interest rate at June 30, 2015 was
1.174%.

On January 1, 2004, the Primary Health System issued $85,000,000 insured Series 2004 bonds
for the purpose of refunding $80,925,000 of the total outstanding Series 1993 bonds. The
Primary Health System also utilized the proceeds to pay certain issuance costs and establish a
debt service fund. The outstanding Series 2004 bonds mature annually on October 1 through
2022 in varying amounts. The Series 2004 bonds maturing after October 1, 2019 may be
redeemed by the Primary Health System after October 1, 2019 at a redemption price equal to the
principal amount plus accrued interest. Interest rates for the outstanding Series 2004 bonds
range from 4.0% to 5.0%.

During 2015, a portion of the Series 2004 bonds totaling $20,615,000 were defeased with the
issuance of the Series 2014A bonds proceeds through the deposit of funds into an irrevocable
escrow account in amounts sufficient to pay the principal and interest when due. A portion of
the defeased Series 2004 bonds totaling $8,135,000 has been redeemed. The escrow balance for
payment, of the remaining principal and interest totaled $13,903,430 at June 30, 2015.

The Series 2014A bonds, Series 2004 bonds and 2014B note were issued on parity, with respect
to collateral, and are also secured by a mortgage on a portion of the Primary Health System’s
main campus. The trust indentures and related documents underlying the bonds contain certain
covenants and restrictions. As of June 30, 2015, management believes the Primary Health
System is in' compliance with all such covenants.

In August 2000, the Primary Health System issued $47,300,000 insured Series 2000 bonds for
the purpose of refunding $40,000,000 of the outstanding Series 1987 bonds and funding a debt
service reserve fund and to pay issuance costs. The outstanding Series 2000 bonds were
redeemed with the proceeds of the Series 2014A bonds during 2015.

The Primary Health System’s 1997A and 1998A Hospital Revenue Bonds were issued to fund
capital improvements for Erlanger Medical Center and establish a debt service reserve fund
(1998A only). The outstanding Series 1997A and Series 1998A bonds were redeemed with the
proceeds of the Series 2014A bonds and 2014B note during 2015.
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Long-term debt activity for the Primary Health System for the year ended June 30, 2015
consisted of the following:

Balance Balance
at June Additions/ Reductions/ at June
30,2014 Amortizations  Accretions 30, 2015
Bonds Payable
Series 2014 $ - $ 158,600,880 $ 169,738 $ 158,431,142
Series 2004 66,859,457 68,518 26,498,309 40,429,666
Series 2000 32,558,296 - 32,558,296 -
Series 1998A 18,159,154 265,846 18,425,000 -
Series 1997A 41,000,000 - 41,000,000 -
Total bonds payable 158,576,907 158,935,244 118,651,343 198,860,808
2014B Note payable - 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
Other loans 4,978,158 865,000 5,198,410 644,748
Capital leases 6,575,290 - 195,929 6,379,361

Total long-term debt  $§ 170,130,355 $ 171,800,244 $ 124,045,682 § 217,884,917

The Primary Health System’s scheduled principal and interest payments (estimated for variable
rate debt based on rates at June 30, 2015) on bonds payable and other long-term debt (excluding
capital leases) are as follows for the years ending June 30:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 4,701,350 §$ 9,265,265 $ 13,966,615
2017 4,643,398 9,048,385 13,691,783
2018 4,575,000 8,854,983 13,429,983
2019 5,060,000 8,635,334 13,695,334
2020 5,295,000 8,395,029 13,690,029

2021-2025 26,425,000 38,156,610 64,581,610
2026-2030 25,850,000 33,545,955 59,395,955
2031-2035 32,675,000 26,695,969 59,370,969
2036-2040 41,330,000 17,907,853 59,237,853
2041-2045 52,095,000 6,765,875 58,860,875

TOTAL § 202,649,748 § 167,271,258 §$ 369,921,006
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NOTE H-PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: The Primary Health System sponsors the Chattanooga-Hamilton County
Hospital Authority Pension Retirement Plan & Trust (the Plan), a single-employer, non-
contributory defined benefit pension plan covering employees meeting certain age and service
requirements.

The Primary Health System has the right to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the
provisions of the plan. Effective July 1, 2009, the plan was amended to be closed to new
employees or rehires, and to further clarify the maximum years of service to be 30. During June
2014, the plan was amended to freeze the accrual of additional benefits.

Benefits Provided: Tn addition to normal retirement benefits, the. Plan also provides for early
retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are calculated as a percent of the
employce’s average monthly salary for the last 10 calendar years times the employee’s years of
service. Employees earn full retirement benefits after 30 years of service. Early retirement
benefits are available once an employee has reached age 55 and 10 years of service at a reduced
rate based on age. Disability retirement benefits are available after 3 years of credited service,
determined in the same manner as retirement benefits and are payable at the normal retirement
date. Death benefits equal the actuarial equivalent value of the employee’s vested accrued benefit
as of the date of death. An employee who terminates service for other reasons after three years of
credited service will receive retirement benefits at the normal retirement date

Employees Covered: At January 1, 2015, the following employees were included in the Plan:

Active employees 2,103
Inactive employees with defetred benefits 1,364
Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 179

3,646

Contributions: The Primary Health System funds the plan as contributions are approved by the
Board of Trustees based on an actuarially determine rate recommended by an independent
actuary. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs
of benefits earned during the year with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued

liability.

Net Pension Liability: The Primary Health System’s net pension liability was measured as of
Tune 30 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2015. The total pension liability in the
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actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.5%
Salary ncreases N/A
Investment rate of return _ 7.5%
Discount rate 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality for Employees, Healthy Annuitants, and
Disabled Annuitants, with generational projection per MP-2014.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a

method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums,

net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class are summarized as follows:

Long-term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed income 10.00% 1.54%
Short-term bonds 5.00% 1.08%
Domestic equities 25.00% 5.71%
Global equities 17.50% 5.76%
Foreign equities 20.00% 6.01%
Real estate 5.00% 5.19%
Hedge funds 17.50% 5.50%

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees assuming the actuarially
determine contributions are made each year, although not required by the funding policy.
Therefore, the discount rate for determining the total pension liability is equal to the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability:

Changes in the Primary Health System’s net pension liability are as follows for the year ended
June 30, 2015:
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Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

Balance, June 30, 2014 $§ 130,245,072 $ 85,753,713 § 44,491,359
Interest 9,278,335 - 9,278,335
Liability gains or losses (386,473) - (386,473)
Assumptions changes 2,284,765 - 2,284,765
Benefit payments (13,308,452) (13,308,452) -
Administrative expenses - (515,072) 515,072
Investment income - 5,922,518 (5,922,518)
Investment gains or losses - (2,596,923) 2,596,923
Employer contributions - 1,000,000 (1,000,000)

Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 128,113,247 $§ 76,255,784 § 51,857,463

The following presents the net pension liability of the Primary Health System calculated using
the current discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

-

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
6.5% 7.5% 8.5%
Total pension liability $ 137,256,238 $ 128,113,247 $ 120,128,551
Fiduciary net position 76,255,784 76,255,784 76,255,784
Net pension liability - 61,000,454 51,857,463 43,872,767

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources: For the year ended
June 30, 2015, the Primary Health System recognized pension expense totaling $4,725,070. At
June 30, 2015, the Primary Health System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 318,312
Changes of assumptions 1,881,808 -
Differences between projected and actual earnings 2,077,533 -

$ 3,959,341 § 318,312
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2016 $ 854,181
2017 854,181
2018 854,181
2019 854,181
2020 224,312

NOTE I--OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS

The Primary Health System maintains defined contribution plans under Section 403(b) and
401(a) of the IRC which provides for voluntary contributions by employees. The Plans are for
the benefit of all employees 25 years of age or older with at least 12 months of employment.

The Primary Health System matches 50% of each participant’s contribution up to 2% of the
participant’s earnings. For eligible employees hired on or after July 1, 2009, the Primary Health
System will make profit sharing contributions equal to 3% of their eamings, regardless if the
employee is making contributions. Additionally, active employees in the frozen pension plan
will receive an additional 2.5% contribution through fiscal year 2019. Employer and employee
contributions to the plans were approximately $1,740,000 and $7,500,000, respectively for the
year ended June 30, 2015.

NOTE J--POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Primary Health System sponsored three post-employment benefit plans other than pensions
(OPEB) for full-time employees who had reached retirement age, as defined. The respective
plans provided medical, dental, prescription drug and life insurance benefits, along with a limited
lump-sum cash payment for a percent of the hours in the participant’s short-term disability at
retirement. The postretirement health, dental and prescription drug plan was contributory and
contained other cost-sharing features, such as deductibles and coinsurance. The life insurance
plan and the short-term disability were noncontributory.

During 2014, the postretirement health, dental and prescription drug plan were amended to
increase the amount of required participant contributions. Additionally, eligibility for the short-
term disability was limited to employees that had attained age 55 and completed 10 years of
service as of January 1, 2014 or attained age 65 with at least 5 years of service as of this date.
The lump-sum payout for the short-term disability was also reduced from 50% to 20% of the
amount accumulated. During 2015, all post-employment benefit plans were terminated and no
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further benefits will be paid. The termination of these plans reduced other long-term liabilitics
by approximately $3,650,000 and is reported as a reduction of operating expenses in the
combined financial statements.

NOTE K--MEDICAL MALPRACTICE AND GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS

As of January 1, 1976, the Primary Health System adopted a self-insurance plan to provide for
malpractice and general liability claims and expenses arising from services rendered subsequent
to that date. In 1980, the Primary Health System’s Self-Insurance Trust Agreement (the
Agreement) was amended to include all coverages that a general public liability insurance policy
would cover. In 1988, the Agreement was amended and restated to comply with amendments to
the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act and to formally include any claims and expenses
related to acts of employees of the Primary Health System. The Primary Health System is
funding actuarial estimated labilities through a revocable trust fund with a bank. The trust assets
are included as a part of assets limited as to use in the accompanying corbined statements of net
position. Such amounts in the trust can be withdrawn by the Primary Health System only to the
extent there is an actuarially determined excess. The annual deposit to the self-insurance trust
fund is determined by management based on known and threatened claims, consultation with
legal counsel, and a report of an independent actuary. Losses against the Primary Health System
are generally limited by the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act to $300,000 for injury or
death to any one person in any one occurrence or $700,000 in the aggregate. However, claims
against healthcare practitioners are not subject to the foregoing limits applicable to the Primary
Health System. Any such individuals employed by the Primary Health System, excluding
employed physicians for which the Primary Health System has purchased insurance coverage,
are covered by the Trust to the limits set forth therein.

In the opinion of management, the revocable trust fund assets are adequate at June 30, 2015 to
cover potential liability and malpractice claims and expenses that may have been incurred to that
date.

The Primary Health System provides for claims and expenses in the period in which the
incidence related to such claims occur based on historical experience and consultation with legal
counsel. It is the opinion of management that the reserve for estimated losses and loss
adjustment expense (LAE) at June 30, 2015 is adequate to cover potential liability and
malpractice claims which may have been incurred but not reported (IBNR) to the Primary Health
System. Such reserve for IBNR claims reflects a discount rate of 5.5% based on the Primary
Health System’s expected investment return during the payout period.
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NOTE L--COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation: The Primary Health System is subject to claims and suits which arise in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of such pending legal
proceedings has been adequately provided for in its combined financial statements, and will not
have a material effect on the Primary Health System’s results of operations or financial position.

The prior Chief Executive Officer (CEO) resigned from the Primary Health system on December
31, 2011, after an interim CEO (the Executive Vice President) was established December 1,
2011. The interim CEO was replaced by the current CEO, hired on April 1, 2013. The Executive
Vice President's employment ended when her leave expired in June, 2013. She has filed a
wrongful termination lawsuit against the Primary Health System for $25 million, which the
Primary Health System, in conjunction with its Directors and Officers insurance carrier, is
currently defending. Management believes that insurance coverage is adequate to cover any
settlement. The ultimate outcome of this lawsuit is uncertain and, therefore, no estimate of loss
has been recorded in the combined financial statements.

Workers Compensation: The Primary Health System has a job injury program to provide
benefits to workers injured in employment-related accidents. This program provides medical
and indemnity benefits to employees injured in the course of employment for a period up to 24
months from the date of injury. The Primary Health System has recorded a projected liability
that is included in other long-term liabilities in the combined statements of net position. The
projected liability was discounted using a 4% rate of return at June 30, 2015.

Healthcare Benefits: The Primary Health System maintains a self-insured healthcare plan to
provide reimbursement for healthcare expenses for covered employees. The Primary Health
System has estimated and recorded a liability for claims incurred but not reported in the
combined financial statements.

Regulatory Compliance: The healthcare industry is subject to numerous law and regulations of
federal, state and local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily
limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation, government healthcare program participation
requirements, reimbursement for patient services, Medicare fraud and abuse, and most recently
under the Provision of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, matters
related to patient records, privacy and security. Recently, government activity has increased with
respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse
statutes and regulations by healthcare providers, such as the Medicare Recovery Audit
Contractor Program. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from
government healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such
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laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as
regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.

In the normal course of business, the Primary Health System continuously monitors and
investigates potential issués through its compliance program. Management believes that the
Primary Health System is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations or has reported any
amounts payable related to known violations, including amounts identified through the Medicare
Recovery Audit Contractor program, or similar initiatives, and any settlements will not have a
significant impact on the combined financial statements. However, due to the uncertainties
involved and the status of ongoing investigations, management’s estimate could change in the
near future and the amount of the change could be significant.

Health Care Reform: In March 2010, Congress adopted comprehensive healthcare insurance
legislation, Patient Care Protection and Affordable Care Act and Health Care and Education
Reconciliation Act. The legislation, among other matters, is designated to expand access to
coverage to substantively all citizens through a combination of public program expansion and
private industry health insurance. Changes to existing TennCare and Medicaid coverage and
payments are also expected to occur as a result of this legislation. Implementing regulations are
generally required for these legislative acts, which are to be adopted over a period of years and,
accordingly, the specific impact of any future regulations is not determinable.

NOTE M-LEASES

Capital: As discussed in Note E, during 2012, the Primary Health System entered into a
sale/leaseback arrangement, under which certain leases of office space meet the criteria as capital
leases. Interest on these leases has been estimated at 7% per annum.

During 2011, the Primary Health System acquired a parcel of land from the Industrial
Development Board of the City of Chattanooga, Tennessee for a nominal amount.” The Primary
Health System also entered into a project development agreement with a developer to facilitate
final design, financing and comstruction of a medical office building for the benefit of
Volkswagen Group of America Chattanooga Operations, LL.C (Volkswagen) on this land. The
Primary Health System has entered into a forty-year ground lease, with the option of two ten-
year renewal terms, of the parcel to the developer. Additionally, in 2012, the Primary Health
System has entered into a twenty year lease with the developer for certain space in the medical
office building for a wellness center and other operations under a capital lease agreement.

The following is a summary of the property under capital leases by major classes at June 30,
2015:
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Primary
Health System
Buildings $ 6,599,976
Equipment 494,905
7,094,881
Less: accumulated amortization - (1,762,056)
$ 5,332,825
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases:
Year Ending June 30, .
2016 $ 733,585
2017 729,999
2018 744,453
2019 759,311
2020 774,587
2021-2025 3,728,737
2026-2030 4,137,530
2031-2033 1,041,823
Total minimum lease payments 12,650,025
Less: amount representing interest (6,270,664)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 6,379,361

Operating: The Primary Health System rents office space and office equipment under non-
cancelable operating leases through 2033, containing various lease terms. The leases have other
various provisions, including sharing of certain executory costs. Rent expense under operating
leases was approximately $9,810,000 in 2015.

Future ‘minimum lease commitments for all non-cancelable leases with terms in excess of one
year are as follows:
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Year Ending June 30,
2016 $ 6,231,365
2017 4,242,932
2018 3,765,250
2019 3,573,659
2020 3,020,973
Thereafter 18,879,687

$ 39,713,866

Rental Revenues: The Primary Health System leases office space to physicians and others under
various lease agreements with terms in excess of one year. Rental revenue recognized for the
years ended June 30, 2015 totaled approximately $3,016,000. The following is a schedule of
future minimum lease payments to be received:

Year Ending June 30,
2016 $ 2,131,770
2017 943,730
2018 740,605
2019 532,025
2020 503,251
Thereafter, 493,686

$ 5,345,067

NOTE N--DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Simultaneous with the issuance of the $85,000,000 Series 2004 bonds discussed in Note G, the
Primary Health System entered into two distinct interest rate swap agreements with a third party
(described below) in an effort to take advantage of the differences between taxable and tax-
exempt debt. The interest rate swap agreements were terminated during 2015.

i
With respect to the 1997A Series bonds, the Primary Health System executed a swap agreement
whereby the Primary Health System received a variable rate equal to the one-month LIBOR-
BBA rate and paid a fixed rate equal to 5.087% on a notional amount of $41,000,000.

With respect to the 1998A Series bonds, the Primary Health System executed a swap agreement
whereby the Primary Health System received a fixed rate of 3.932% and pays a variable rate
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equal to the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Municipal Swap
Index on a notional amount of $16,305,000.

Although these swap instruments were intended to manage exposure to interest rate risks
associated with the various debt instruments referred to above, none of these swap agreements
were determined to be effective hedges. Accordingly, the changes in the value of the swaps are
reflected as a component of non-operating revenues in the combined statements of revenue,
expenses and changes in net position. The termination of the swap agreements resulted in a
payment of approximately $3,200,000 and a reduction of other long-term liabilities.

NOTE O-MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

On April 13, 2011, the Primary Health System's Board of Trustees approved a resolution
authorizing a management agreement (the Agreement) between the Primary Health System,
Hutcheson Medical Center, Inc. and affiliates (collectively, Hutcheson) and the Hospital
Authority of Walker, Dade and Catoosa Counties in Georgia (the Hospital Authority).

Under the terms of the Agreement, the Primary Health System proposed general operating
policies and directives for Hutcheson; was responsible for the day-to-day management of
Hutcheson and provided oversight of ancillary aspects of Hutcheson, such as physician practices,
education, research, and clinical services. The Agreement's initial term was to be through March
31, 2021 with the Primary Health System to have the option to extend the agreement for two
additional five year terms. The Primary Health System was authorized to terminate the
Agreement, without cause, upon written notice at any point subsequent to May 25, 2013. Upon
such termination, Hutcheson was to be obligated to make a Termination Payment to the Primary
Health System consisting of all expenses then owed by Hutcheson and any outstanding advances
under a Line of Credit Agreement, discussed below. Hutcheson could also terminate the
agreement without cause at any point subsequent to May 25, 2013 by paying the Termination
Payment, as well as the lesser of ) $1,000,000 per year for each year the Agreement has been in
place, or b) $1,000,000 less any management fees paid in each Agreement year.

In addition to the Agreement, the Primary Health System agreed to extend a Line of Credit (the
Line) to the Hospital Authority. The maximum amount available under the Line was
$20,000,000 and at June 30, 2015, the draws on the Line totaled $20,000,000.

The Line called for interest only payments each month on the outstanding balance, based on the
London InterBank Offered Rate plus 4% or a rate of 5%, whichever is greater, However, any
unpaid interest through March 31, 2013 was deferred and to be paid over a twelve-month period
commencing on that date. All outstanding draws were due at the maturity date, which is
consistent with the Agreement termination dates, discussed above.
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The Line is secured by a Security Agreement on the primary Hutcheson medical campus.
Further, the Counties of Walker and Catoosa, Georgia (collectively, the Counties) have provided
additional security in the form of guarantees under an Intergovernmental Agreement. Under the
Intergovernmental Agreement, the Counties have each agreed to a maximum liability of
$10,000,000 to secure the line. The form of such guarantee was to be at the option of the
Counties and were to become enforceable upon a notice of default delivered by the Primary
Health System. The form of the guarantee selected by the Counties can include a) a payment of
50% by each County of the amounts owing under the Line, b) payments as they become due up
to the respective $10,000,000 limits or c) after non-Judicial foreclosure under the Security
Agreement, each County could elect to pay 50% of any deficiency between the amount
outstanding under the Line and the then fair market value. Both Counties previously agreed to
levy annual property taxes, if needed to honor these guarantees.

In June 2013, the Agreement was modified to allow Hutcheson to issue requests for proposals for
the lease or sale of Hutcheson properties without creating a breach of the Agreement. As part of
the Agreement, Hutcheson committed to obtain alternative financing and repay the line of credit
upon the eatlier of the replacement financing being obtained by Hutcheson, or June 1, 2014.

In August of 2013, however, Hutcheson terminated the Agreement. In response thereto, the
Primary Health System declared Hutcheson to be in default under the Agreement and made
formal demand of Hutcheson as to all amounts then due and payable. In February 2014, the
Primary Health System filed suit against Hutcheson in order to collect the moneys, including
principal, interest and penalties, then due. In response to such filing, Hutcheson has asserted
multiple counter claims against the Primary Health System alleging mismanagement and other
failures under the Agreement. Additionally, another senior creditor has filed a separate lawsuit
against the Primary Health System alleging priority over the Primary Health System’s security
interest and, presumably, the County guarantees relating to Hutcheson. The litigation is
currently pending in the United States District Court in the Northern District of Georgia, Rome
Division.

During the pendency of the litigation, Hutcheson’s operating entities (Hutcheson Medical
Center, Inc. and Hutcheson Medical Division, Inc., but not the Hospital Authority) filed for
Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in the Northern District of Georgia. Such filing automatically
stayed the pending litigation to the extent it pertains to Hutcheson’s operating entities. As of the
date of this Note, the Hutcheson entities, remains in Chapter 11 still with no plan of
reorganization. On September 15, 2015, the Bankruptcy Court appointed a Chapter 11 Trustee
in order to facilitate a sale of Hutcheson’s interests. The Primary Health System remains
actively involved in the bankruptcy action to ensure that its interests remain adequately
protected.
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Regions Bank (Regions) is also a creditor of Hutcheson and initiated related litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia in Rome (Case No. 4:14-cv-00191) against
the Primary Health System in its effort to protect its interest, if any, in the litigation. Specifically,
Regions claims the Primary Health System’s interest is subordinate to its interest and seeks a
declaration of such priority. Regions claims that Hutcheson owes Regions in excess of $22.3
million that is allegedly a senior debt to the debt Hutcheson owes to the Primary Health System.
Regions further claims that the Primary Health System’s attempted foreclosure constitutes a
breach of the Management Agreement to which Regions is allegedly a third party beneficiary
-and related contracts. Regions filed a Motion for a temporary restraining order on July 28, 2014,
seeking to enjoin the foreclosure proceedings. The Court denied Regions Motion for a temporary
restraining order as moot in light of the injunctive relief it granted to Hutcheson in the related
litigation. Regions filed a second Motion for a temporary restraining order on October 15, 2014,
which was heard on October 24, 2014. The Court again denied the Motion for a temporary
restraining order as moot due to the injunctive relief granted to Hutcheson in the related
litigation. The Primary Health System filed a Motion to Dismiss in the Regions suit, which was
granted on October 29, 2014 and dismissed all claims against the Primary Health System in their
entirety. Regions appealed the dismissal to the 11™ Circuit. To date, that court has yet to rule on
the appeal.

NOTE P--OTHER REVENUE

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and the Health Information Technology
for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act established incentive payments under the
Medicare and Medicaid programs for certain healthcare providers that use certified Electronic
Health Record (EHR) technology. To qualify for incentive payments, healthcare providers must
meet designated EHR meaningful use criteria as defined by the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS). Incentive payments are awarded to healthcare providers who have
attested to CMS that applicable meaningful use criteria have been met. Compliance with
meaningful use criteria is subject to audit by the federal povernment or its designee and incentive
payments are subject to adjustment in a future period. The Primary Health System recognizes
revenue for EHR incentive payments when substantially all contingencies have been met.
During 2015, the Primary Health System recognized approximately $1,456,000 of other revenue
related to EHR incentive payments.

NOTE Q--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is condensed, financial information related to the discretely presented component
units as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015:
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Due from other governments
Other current assets :
Total Current Assets
Net property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets
Due to other governments
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Total Liabilities
Net position
Unrestricted
Net investment in capital assets
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position
Net patient and operating revenue
Operating expenses;
Salaries, wages and benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Nonoperating expenses
Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Period
Net Position at End of Period

ContinuCare Cyberknife
$ 289425 § 120,400
10,998,935 615,455
11,288,360 735,855
4,767,830 3,691,914
500,663 56,482

$ 16,556,853 § 4,484,251
$ 130,037 $ -
2,623,920 3,051,492
12,753,957 3,051,492
25,035 - 85,186
2,778,992 3,136,678
9,064,490 691,234
4,713,371 656,339
13,771,861 1,347,573
16,556,853 4,484,251
$ 27,536,041 $ 1,935,000
13,841,457 222,148
12,705,142 663,305
522,014 626,340
27,068,613 1,512,293
467,428 422,707
(253,723) (148,025)
213,705 274,682
13,564,156 1,072,891
$ 13,777,861 $ 1,347,573

ContinuCare owes the Primary Health System for various services, supplies, and rents provided,
or expenses paid on its behalf. Actual expenses incumred related to these services were
$2,022,540 in 2015. In addition, ContinuCare provides staffing, contract nurse visits, and
administrative services to the Primary Health System. Revenues from such services were
$538,569 for the year ended June 30, 2015. Amounts due at June 30, 2015 are included in
amounts due to/from other governments in the accompanying combined financial statements. As
of June 30, 2015, Cyberknife owes the Primary Health System for various services, supplies and
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rents provided, or-expenses paid on its behalf. The Primary Health System owes Cyberknife for
radiation services provided by Cyberknife to the Primary Health System’s patients. Revenues
related to those services provided to the Primary Health System were $1,935,000 in 2015.
Amounts due at June 30, 2015 are included in amounts due to/from other governments in the
accompanying combined financial statements.
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CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

(d/b/a Erlanger Health System)

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Year Ended Tune 30, 2015
Total pension liability

Interest $ 9,278,335
experience (386,473)
Changes of assumptions or inputs 2,284,765
Benefit payments (13,308,452)
Net change in total pension liability (2,131,825)
Total pension liability, beginning of year 130,245,072
Total pension liability, end of year $ 128,113,247

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer
Net investment income, net
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position, beginningof year
Plan fiduciary net position, end of year

Net pension liability, end of year
Fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

$ 1,000,000
3,325,595
(13,308,452)
(515,072)

(9,497,929)
85,753,713

$ 76,255,784

$ 51,857,463

59.52%
$ 117,027,000

44.31%
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Description " Section / Item
Erlanger Medical Center License C-I1I-7-b
Erlanger Accreditation Letter C-ITII-7-b
CMS Acceptance Letter C-III-7-c

Erlanger State Licensure Sﬁrvey Report C-IT1-7-c
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Tuly 8, 2014 '
. Re: #7809
CCH: #440104
] Program: Hospital
Acoreditation Bxpiration Date: Apsil 05, 2017
: )

Kevin M, Spiegel !
Prestdent and CEO )
Brlanger Heafth System

975 Bast Third Street

Chaitanoogs, Fentessen 37403

Dear M, Splegel: /
This Jetfor confirms that your Match 32, 2014 - Apetl 04, 2014 unannonnged fill resuryey was vonducied
Tor the purposes of assessing compliance with the Medicare conditions for hospitals through The Joint
Commisston’s deemed status survey process.

Based upon the submission of your evidence of standards campliance on Jime 20, 2014 and Jyne 27, 2014
and the suceessful on-sife Medicate Defieency Follow-up event conducted on My 19, 2014, the areas o:f"
deficienay Hsted helovw have been removed, The Jofnf Commissfon is granting your oxpanizationan * % -

acereditation decision of Acoredited with an effective dats of April 05, 2014, Wo congrafulaie VOTL Ol
your effeciive resoluifon ofthese deficiencies, . .

§482.12 Governing Body
§482.41 Physical Bnvironment

§482.42 Infection Confrel

The Joint Commission is also meominending you ovganization for conthmed Medivare cerlification
eifoutive Apl 03, 2014, Pleaso wfo fhat the Centers for Medicars and Medicald Services (CMS)
Regional Office (RQ) makes the final determination regarding yom Medicars participation end the
etfective dafe of participation in accordance with the regulations at 42 CER 489,13, Your organization s
encouraged to share a copyrof this Medicare recommendation lefter with your State Survey Ageacy.

This recommendation applies to the folfowing locations:

Acadere Intexnal Mediclue and Bndoorfnology .
979°E, ‘Third Sireet, Suito B-601, Chattamoogg, T, 37403

Academio Gasfroenterology
979 EHast Third Strest; Snite (C-825, Chaﬁanoo_ga, TN, 37403

Acadario Urologlst 5% Frtanges
979 Bast Fhird Stveet, Sulte C - 535, Chatfanoogz, TN, 37403

Iipadguariars

Gine Remilstance Bouleand
Vubbrack Termwe, I, 60131
536792 5008 Yales

Wwwjohicomniasion,any
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Alton Parle (Sonthsids) Commuynity Hoalth Contex
100 Hast 37th Sireat, Chatianaega, TN, 37410

Badson Avenve Communify Health Center
i260 Dodsnn‘A?anue, Chatfanoogs, TN, 37406

Brlangsr Aeademm Umlng{sts

1755 Gunbarxel Road, Sute 209, Chatlanooza, T, 37421

ErIanger at Volkswagon Drive Wellness Center
7380 Vollossvapon Disive, Suite 110, Chatiancoga, TIV, 37416

Erlanger Bast Family Practics

1755 Guabarre] Road, Suite 201, Chatianooga, TN, 37421

Etlanger Bast Tmaging

1751 Gunbarrel Road, Chattanooga, T, 37421

Erlanger Health System - East Cainpus

1751 Gunbamel Road, Chaitanooga, TN, 37421

" Erlangor Health Systom - Main Site

973 East Thitd Sirest, Chattanooga, TN, 37403

Erlanger Heakth System ~ North Campus

632 Morrdson Springs Road, Chattanooga, T, 37415

Erlanger Bypertension Management Confoer

- 079 East Thiid Siveet, Suife B601, Chattanoogs, TN, 37403

W

Brlanger Metabolic and Barfatric Swgery Center
979 B, Third Sireef Suite {620, Chattanooga, TN, 37403

Erlanger Nevralogy/Southeast Regiotial Stroke Center
979 East Third Street, Snite €830, Chattancoga, TN, 37403

Extenger North Family Practice, Neurobehavioral & Memoty Bvs
632 Morrison Springs Road, Snile 202, Chattanoopa, TN, 37415

Eranger Notth Slesp Medicine and Newiology .
632 Morzison Springs Road, Suite 300, Chattanooga, TN, 37415

" Belanger South Family Practics

60 Brianiper Drive, Snite A, Ringpold, GA, 30736

wiLjaindodinimisslop.org

Headpuarters
OneRenaisances Batifavand
Erldrpok Tersce, 1L GOISE
407905 5006 Vil
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Edanger Specialty Care for OB and Peds
1504 Noxth Thornlon Avenue, Suite 104, Dation, GA, 30720

Hypetfension Management - Chattanooga Lifestyle Cenfer
325 WMarket Siveet, Snite 200, Chatignoogs, TN, 37401

Lifz Style Center » Catdiac Behab
325 Market Streef, Chattenooga, TH, 37401

etho South
979 East Thitd Strectsuite C 430, Chattanonga, THY, 37403

Soufhern Crihopasdis Trauma Surgeons
979 Fast Third Sfrest Suite G225, Chaﬁa}noega, TN, 37403

TCT Cardiplogy/(71/Genstios
910 Blaclford Strest - 37d ¥l Massoud, Chattanooga, TIN, 37403 -

TOT Childten's Subspecialty Centfor”
270G West 8de Drive, Cleveland, TN, 37312

TCT Endoeting
10 Blackford, 1st £l dassoud, Chattanooga, TV, 37403

TCT Hemafolopy/Oncology -
910 Blacktord Street - Sih £l Massoud Bl, Chatianoogas, TIN, 37403

" TCT Nephrology '
910 Blackford Bt, Ground Level, TCTCH, Chaifanoogs, TN, 37403

UmversﬂyHeaIth Ohgtefries & Gynecalogy
279 Bast Third Steest, Suite {3—725 Ghzﬁanooga, ™, 37403

Ustivezsity Medioal Assoc
960 East Third Strest, Whitchall Building, Suife 208, Chattanooga, TN, 37403

University Orthopedics
979 Bast Third Streef, Suite C-220, Chattanooge, TN, 37403

Univessify Pediatrics
910 Bigckford Strest ~ Gt floor Massoud, Chaftanoega, TN, 374063

Univesrsify Pulmonary and Critical Care
979 Bast Third Street, Suife C 735, Chatianoopa, TN, 37403

Headuhaiters

One Rensfssance Boufavard
Oalibrock Termacs 1166181
G20 702 5000 Yoloz

wehwIsiiteonuniseion.org
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].

University Rhepmatology Associafes
979 Bast Thivd Streef, Sulie B-805, Chaflanooga, TN, 37403

UT Dexmatology
979 Bast Third Sttest, ~ Suite 425 A -~ Megi Mall, Chattanooga, TN, 37403

UT Edlanger Cardiology
975 Bast Third Streef, Suits C-520, Chaﬁanaoga, TN, 37403

ﬂTEllangerCaldmiugyEast
1614 Guubarrel Road, Ste 101, Chaﬁanooga} TN, 37421

It EgIangerHea]th & Weliness@Signal Min
2800 Taft Highway, Signal Mountain, TN, 37377

UT Erlanger Lookont MinPrimaty Cate
100 MdcFarland Road, Lovkont Mountain, GA, 30750

YT Erlanger Privngary and Aihletic Health
1200 Pineyville Ruad, Chattanooge, T, 37403

UT Baily Pravtice
1200 East Third Sireet, Chatianoega, THJ, 37403

Waorkforee at UT Family Practice
1100 Bast 31 Sirveet, Chaltanooga, TN, 37403

We direct your altenfion fo sone Jmporfant Joint Commission policdes. Rirst, your Medicare raport is
publicly accessibls as required by the Joint Commissiot’s agresment with the Centers for Medicars and
Medicaid Services. Second, Joint Cotamission policy requires that you fnform us of any changes in the

name or ownership of your organization, or healih oare services you provide.

Sincerely,

z@ﬂﬂ%ﬁ

Mark G, Pelletioy, RN, M8

Chief Operating Officer
Division of Aceredifation and Certification Operations

CMB/Central Qffice/Survey & Cettifioation Group/Division of Aculs Care Setvices
CMS/Repionat Office 4 /Swrvey and Certification Staff

Headguaréera

Oin Renafisanos Bouferand

Oulbmok Tomes, IL67181

B3792 5060 Valos

[

wivstjehnte dsmnissianery



Dapartment: of Health & Human Services
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Sexvices 194
61 Forayth Street, SW, Suite 4120

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8909 _
CONSORYIUR FOR QUALITY IR ROVEMERT
ARD SURVEY & CERTIFICATION QRERATIONS

Reference M:2014, Exlanger.Med.Cfr.440104.Co.No,33779.11.18.14.accept poc

December 8, 2014

Mr. Kevin Spiegel, CEO
Erlanger Health System

975 H. 3 Street

Chattanooga, Tennesses 37403

RE: Erlanger Health System
CMS Certification Number (CCN) 44-0104
EMTALA Complaint Control Number: TNOO033779

Dear Mr. Spiegel:
T am pleased to inform you that the plan of correction for Frlanger Medical Center
Hospital has been reviewed and found to be acceptable. '

When the Tennessee State Agency has determined that the noncompliance with EMTAILA.
requireménts has been corrected during their revisit, CMS will withdraw its current termination action.
Failure to comrect the deficient practice by February 16, 2014, will result in the termination of your

Medicare provider agreement.
A copy of this Ietter is being forwarded to the Tennessee State Agency.

We thank you very much for your cooperation and Iook forward to working with you on a
continuing basis in the administration of the Medicare program. Please contact our office
if you have any questions and speak with Rosemary Wilder at 404-562-7452 or email:
rosemary. wilder@cms.hhs.gov.

Sincerely yours,

Sandra M. Pace
Associate Regional Administrator

cc: North Carolina State Agency
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PRINTED: 11/18/2014
FORMAPPROVED

OMB NO, 0838-0881

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES Pl
STATEMENT OF DERICIENGIES {X1} PHOVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA {X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUGTION {X9) DATE SURVEY
AND PLAM OF CORREGTION IDENTIFIGATION NUMBER: A BUILDING COMPLETED
C
440104 B. WiNa _— 06/18£2014
\ NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, GITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
2 975 K aRD'ST
ER .
LANGER MEDICAL CENTER _ CHATTANOOGA, TN 87403 ) :
(%4) Ip SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENGIES I PROVIDER'S PLAN OF GORREGTION (6]
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PREGEDED BY FULL * PAEFIX (EACH GORRECTIVE AGTION SHOULD BE GOMPLETION
TAQ REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAQ GHGG&HEFE’HEII;‘\!;EEJEND '.l;l(-}F:‘APFHDFHIATE DATE
. G _

A000| INITIAL, COMMENTS
On May 18, 2014, investigation of EMTALA

Medigal Center was found out of comp
Requirements for the Rasponsibliities of

track would bs im

February 18, 2015, .
489.20(1) COMPLIANCE WITH 489.24. .

A2400
[The provicier égrees,] In ‘the case of a hospital as teview of facility poley, review of
deflned In §489.24(b), to comply with §480.24., medical staffrales and regulations,
3 - and inferview, the Gcllity failed o
This STANDARD s not met as svidenced hy; pravide appropriate transtbrs for 4
Based on medloal record review, review of facility patients @7, #8, #9, and #11),
polioy, review of Medleal Staff Rules and '
Regulailons, and Inferview, the Tacllily fajled fo Plan of Correction Responsibility:
provide appropriate transfers for four patlents (#7,| The Chinf Medival Officer and the
#8, #9, and#11). Chief of Bmergency Medicine is
! rosponsible for the cortective acti
The findings Included: p;:,;ﬁ and mgoﬁ,gmpﬁ(;m;o 3
' Refer to A-2401 for fallure to rsport recelpt of an When/Hoy Corrected:
inappropriate fransfer, ; Ses A2401 section and AZ402 for corvective
tion plans,
Please refer to A-2402 for faflure to g i
conspicuously post signs., Tmprovement fo fie Process
See A2401 seotion and A2402 for
corrective action plans,

Please refor to A-24089 for fallurs to provide '

appropriate fransfer,
480.20(m), REGEIVING AN INAPPROFPRIATE

TRANSFER

compleint TN-83779 was completed. Etlanger
liahoe with

Medicare Particlpating Hospitals In Emergenay
Cases 42 CRT Part 489,20 and 42 CFR 489.24,

“The administrator was notified via ovemight mal

on Novemiber 18, 2014 that a 50 day termination
posed. The terminatlon date Is

[The provider agrees,] in the case of a hosplial as

A 000

A2400; -489:20(1) Compllance with
28924 - - -

The findings included; This
STANDARD is not met as svidenced
by : bgsed on Medioal Record review,

A2400

A2401 Fdneation:
A2401 secton and 42402 for cotrective

action plans.

i

TITLE ¢ : {X6) DATE

BORA GIDR'S OR FROVIDER/SUPFLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S BIGNATURE ! \
20 er . ONE Cld W, Bt 21
Eﬁaﬂak {*) denoles a dellelsnoy which the Instittilon may he exoused from gorracling providing [t Is determlied that

the findings stated above ate disclosable 80 days

W doficlency stategient ending with an
Vide sufffolent proteellon o the patienis, (See insfiustions,) Exeeptfor nursing homes,
lowing the date of survey whether or not & plan of sorrentlon s provided. For nuraing homes, the above findings and plans of correctlon are disclosabla 14.
ese dosuments are made avallable to the facillly,

B} safagl

v fullowing the date th
Jgram particlpation,

Event ID; TVOI
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A2401

A2401 | Continued From page 1

defined in §489.24(b), fo report to CMS or the

.| State survey agency any fime it has reason 1o
belleve ft may have recelvad an individual who

has been transferred In an unstable emergency

medical condftion from another hospital in

violation of the requirements of §489.24(c).

This STANDARD is nof met as evidenced by:
Based on review of facllity pollcy, medical record
review, and Interview, the facilfly falled to report
recelpt of a patlent transferred in an unstahle
emergency medical condition from the faclfiiy's
East campus (Hospital #1) io the hospital's
primary location (main campus - Hospital #2), a
distance of 10.2 miles, for one patient (#7) of
sixteen patients reviewed.

The findings Included:

Review of facility policy titled "Transfers...PC.074"
most recently revised In February, 2012,
reveated, ... To establish guldelines for
transferring patient within a faciiity, to an
alternative level of care, or to another acute care
| fallity while assuring medically appropriaie
continuily of care and compliance with EMTALA
(Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Lahor
Aci) regulation...The transferring physician
determines the method of patient transport and
the amatunt of support that will be needed during

transport..."

Review of a polioy titled *(Faoility) East
Emergency Services Scope of Services"
revealed, "Origination Date: 8/14" and the
approval date was blank, indleating it had not
been approved by the Medical Staff or the

Governing Body.

AZ401: 489.20(m) Receiving an
Inappropriate Transfer

The findings included: This

- STANDARD is not met as evidenced
by: based on Medical Record review,
review of facility policy, and

. Interview, the facility failed to report
receipt of a patient fransferred in an
unstable emergency medical conditi
from the facility Erlanger East
Campus (Hospital #1) to the
Hospitals® primaty location (Main
Campus- Hospital #2), a distance of
10.2 miles, for one patient #7 of 16

patients reviewed,

Plan of Correction Responsibility:
The Chief Medical Officer and the
Chief of Emergency Medicine is
responsible for the corrective action
plan and ongoing compliance,
When/Hovw Corrected:

Hospital # 1 is within the Erlanger
Health System; however this was not
reflected in the EMTALA Transfer

Policy and fs now reflected in the
policy draff. A new system wide
policy was developed to teflect this
language and inclusion of current
EMTALA and associated State lavw,
The draft of this policy was reviewed
by the Medical Executive Committee |
on December 1, 2014, The commiifes
roviewed the policy and requested
additional information. The final
draft will be approved by the Medical
Executive Committes on Jarmary 5,
2015,
' (Ses attachment # 7 - Drafi

Feoll. BMTALA Transfer Palicy)

12/1/2014

1/5/2015

sheet Page 2 of 34
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(See attachment # 7 — Medical Staff
Executive Committee Mesting
Apgenda)
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-~ (X4 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF. CORRECTION 5]
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENGY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORREGTIVEACTION 8HOULD BE | COMPLETION
TAG AEGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATIDN) TAQ CROSS'HEFERESESE,ER J%EAFPHDPHIAT[:
' The Emergency Services Scope of
A2401 | Gontinued From page 2 A2401 Services policies (EMS #280 and
Review of facility policy for the hospital's main EEED #7174.100) were reviewed
campus titled "Emergency Department Scope of and approved fo include
Services Number: EMS.280" most recently documentation of approval by the
revised in March, 2010, revealed, "...An Chief of Emergency Medicine, and
Emergency Medical Conditlon Is defined as a vevision of the staffing model for
medigal condition manifesting ftself by acute Exlanger Baroness Campus.
symptoms of sufflcient severlty such that the These policies are deparintental
absence of prompt and appropriate medical policies that are required by all
attentlon could result in...plaging the health or departments explaining the scope of
safety of the patient or unborn child in serious the services the deparfment
[eopardy...The following conditlons are declared provides, staffing for the -
to be emergenay condltions by statute and department, special squipment and
regulation ... preglnancy with coniractions procedures, : .
resent...Evalyation, management, and treatment ;
gf patienis is appropriate and (Seo atfachment 2 and A10.) 11/2472014
expedient...Immediate evaluation and L
stahilization, to the degree reasonably possible, - A dnew tamafr f‘:ﬁl’l “tfs developed
will be available for each patient who presents ;‘n'}o‘_”as approved by the Health
with an emergency medical condition...Patients & 1mation Management Forms
are to be transported to the nearest appropriate y o;;am];tt_eeta gﬁ 11?‘” 14, tIt ‘?S ?‘;’g
ED (emergency department) In accordance with 0 de fm(’j__ “]’JP for print and will be p—
applicabls laws, regulations, and guidelines...All L. Teady for distribution by 12/5/2014. 12/5
transfers will comply with local, state, and federal ! (See stzshment #4)
n fr——— e
s . Education: [
Revlew of an Emergency Reom Log dated April —JEdueation ;;? be tl;lll‘[);idﬂd ;{; all
2, 2014, revealed Patient #7 presented to the wwﬂ
facility's East campus with complaint of Vaginal %ﬁf On
i poliey, il Al.A-E TOVISION DL 322
Blee.dmg' . Call Coverage Policy , the new
Madical record review of a Triage note dated April EMTALA Transfer Form and the
2, 2014, revealed, "...(6:37 a.m.) Gomplaint: g@s&ﬂ.&gﬂmmmdﬂ
Vaglnal bleeding...(6:49 a.m.) Pain level 9 M‘M&%@f
(0-10)...Quallty Is cramping. Since education will be distributed in
yesterday...slates...is a 'couple weeks M&i@mm i
pregnant’...had a miscarriage in Jan (January) wammﬁi_tl
LMP (Last Menstrual Period): 11-15-2018 (history W
i H E .
SI Jgﬁaﬁﬁgﬁfgﬁ' three delivered _—~_——g@‘»’s———h e ot i W B P 12/31/2014
required fo read and acknowledge ——08F——
Facilty G 1, siornature understanding of the et Page 3ofd4

new policies and processes by
December 31, 2014,
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NAME QF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, CGITY, STATE, ZIF CODE
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(X4) I SUMMARY STATEMENT OFF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF GORREGTION (5)
PHEFIX (FACH DEFICIENGY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX GH GORREGTIVEACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
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’ Moniforing of the Corrective
* A2401 | Continued From page 3 A2401 ﬁ:,-ﬂ:f‘;:mccis, ———
’ 1. Monitoring will be conducted
Medical record review of a history and physical monthly for 4 continnous months
dated April 2, 2014, at 7:14 a.m.,, revealed, "pt beginning January 2015- April 2015
(patient) w/ (with) abd (abdominal) pain, Imp (last by the Emergency Department
menirual petlod) 11/5/18. thought she had Nurse Manager at Erlanger Bast. A
miscarriage In January due to heavy hleeding and review of 70 cases per month will be
passh'lg tissue, Was told last weel that she Is ;:andomly selected to assess for
pregnant again. now having severe cramps. had compliance of appropriate completion
some light bleeding past 2 days, today no of the new EMTALA. Transfar Form
bleeding but severe cramps. vomit x (times) 2. no with a minimum of 90% compliance
diarrhea. no urinary sx (symptoms). no rate. Ifthis is not met after 4 months
fever...Sudden onset of symptoms, Sympioms of review, the review of records will
are worsening, are constant. Maximum severity be contitmed for an additional 4
of symptoms severs, Currently symptoms are months until 90% compliance is
severe. In my professional medical achieved, Results will be reported o
- Judgment...this patlent presents with an the Erlanger Health System Quality
efnergency medical condition manifesting itself by 1/2015-4/1015

acute symptoms of suificient severfty (including
severe pain) that in the absence of immediate
medical attention could reasonably be expected
to result In placing the patient's health In serious
Jeopardy; serious impairment to bodlly function, or
serlous dysfunciion of a body organ...(7:18 a.m.)
Abdominal exam included findings of ahdamen
tender, 1o the left upper quadrant, o the left lower
quadrant, to the right lower quadrant, modlerate
Intensily, no distension, firm uterus at
umbllicus...Medical History...miscarriage x
2...cesarean section,.,”

Medical record review of a physiclan's progress
notedated April 2, 2014, at 7:20 a.m., revealed,
"...BSUS (Bedside Ulirasound) shows [UP
(Intrauterine Pregnancy) at approx 20 wks
(approximately 20 weeks)., Will obtaln formal us
(ultrasound), labs, and ob (obstetric) consult.,."

Medical record review of the Nursing
Assessment: Continuing Assessment dated April |.

Oversight Commitice,

ORM CMS-2587(02-95) Previous Versiong Obsolete Event ID; TVali1

Facliity ID: TNP531140 {f continuatlon shest Page 4 of 84
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STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENCIES
AND FLAN OF CORREGTION

440104

(X2) MULTIPLE GONSTRUGTION
+| A. BULDING :
C

05/13/2014

STREET ADDRESS, GITY, STATE, ZIP GODE

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER
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TAG

(EACH GORRECTIVE AGTION SHOULD BE Ll

PREFIX
CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE

DEFIGIENGY)

A2401 | Continued From page 4
2, 2014, revealed, "...(7:24 a.m.) per pt she
miscarried in January at home and was never
seen by OBGYN (Obstetrician/Gynsacologist) to

and was told her blood pregnancy fest was
positive. Pt sis she is 'a couple of weeks

pregnani'...pailent appears, restless,

and new medication order recelved...Patient
appears restless, uncomfortable...(8:56 a.m.)

(9:10 a.m.) States worsening pain...Patient
appears, unconvoriable..."

Final: Primary Preterm Labor.®

Medical record review of a nurse's note dated

service contacted...Estimated time of arrival
15-20 min (minutes)." i

Medical record review of a nurse's note dated
April 2, 2014, at 8:08 a.m., revealed, “Indocin
(medication to delay labor) ordered by (Medical
Doctor - M.D, #1). Pharmacy called and we do
not carry that medicatlon on this campus. MD
(MD #1) aware, medicatlon order canceled."

Medical redord revlew of a nurse's note dated
April 2, 2014, at 9:14 a.m., revealed, "Transfer;

A2401

confirm. Ptsis (states) she was sesn by OBGYN
recently, but could not give specifle day or date,

uncomfortable...(7:40 a.m.) pt rates pain 8 on a
seale of 1-10, MD notified new medication order
received..,(8:12 a.m.) States worsening pain, pt
still ¢/o pain an 8 on a scale of 1-10, MD noiified

States decreased pain, Patient states decreased
pain, although she still rates ft 7 out of 10, She s
not as restless and seems In no pain disiress at
this time. paln is more intermittent at this fime...

Medical record review of a physician's note dated
Aprll 2, 2014, at 8:58 a.m., revealed, "Diagnosis

April 2, 2014,.at 8:54 a.m., revealed, "Ambulance

Indocin is now stocked at the

Erlangey Kast campns pharmaey

and availahle — Indomethacin

dosage =25mg x2 (50mg) PO stat

then 25mp PO every 6 hours.
Magnesinm and Terbutaline ave
also available if yeguested.

If continuation sheet Page & of 34
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A24D e Indocin is now stocked at the
. d COﬂTanE‘d FI'OIT) page ] A2401 Erlanger Tast camipus p]iarma(_zx .
and available — Tndomethacin 12/5/2014

Reason for fransfer need for spaclalized care,
Dlagnosis: preterm labor, Accepting Institutlon:
(Hospital #2) Labor and Delivery, Accepting
physician (M.D. #2)...Report cajled 1o receiving
facility..."

Medical record review of a Transfer Authorzation
dated April 2, 2014, at 9:18 a.m,, revealed,

transfer and no medioal deterioration of the
patient's condition Is likely, within reasonable
medical probability, to result from or ocour

the transfer of the individual from this Tacllity, or,

with respect to a pregnant woman having
coniractions, the woman has delivered (Including
the placenta) OR The Patient Is In & stats of an

emergency medical condition,
that based upon the Information avallable fo me

at this time, the medical bensfits reasonably
expected from the provision-of approprlate -
medical reatment at another facillty,
Increased risks to the individual and, in the case
of labor, to the unborn child from effecting the
transfer..." Review of the Transfer Authorization

review revealed, "...appropriate fransporf, .

service...Advanced...The recelving facllify has

agreed o accept the patient...Facility (Hospital
physician (M.D, #2)..." Continued

#2)...accepting
d, "...Reason for transfer; preterm

review reveale
labor Risk of transfer: death hy MVG (motor
vehicle orash) Benefits of fransfer: higher level of

care..."

Medical record review of a physiclan’s progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 9:22 a.m., revealad,
"formal us (Ultrasound) shows (20.week

infrauterine pregnancy) and incompetent cervix.
Discussed results (with M.D. #2 - patient's

"STABILITY The patient s stabillzed at the time of

durlng-

and | hereby ceriify

outwelgh the

revealed both statements were checked. Further

Faclity ID: TNP531140

dosage =25mg x2 (50mp) PO stat
then 25mg PO every 6 hours.
Magnesium and Terbutaline are
also available if requesfed.
Hospital # 1 is within fhe Erlanger
Health System; however this was not
reflected in the EMTALA Transfer
Policy and js now reflecteéd in -
policy draff. A new system wido
policy was-developed fo reflect this
and inclnsion of eurrent
EMTALA and associated Stato Jaw,
The draft of this policy was reviewed
by the Medical Execntive Committes |
on December 1, 2014, The oommitiee,
reviewed the policy and requegled
additional Information. The fina] )
draftwill be approved by the Medical |
Ezeentive Commities on Jamary 5,
2015,
(See attachment # 7 - Draft
BMTATA Transfer Policy)
(See attachment # 7 — Medical Staff
Executive Committes Meeting

Apenda)

12/1/2014

1/5/2015 /

If continuation sheet Page 6 of 34
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confractions.

Review of an EMS (Emergency Medlcal Service)
Patient Care Report dated April 2, 2014, revealed,
"...Level of Care: ALS (Advanced Life '
Support)...At patient (8:15 a.m.)...Transport: (9:25
a.m.) At dest (destination): (9:43 a.m.)...Narrative:
Dispatched emer (emergent) fo (Faciliiy) to
transfer pt (patient) to (Hospital #2)...pt in
premature labor...nurse advised '...they
performed an ulirasound and the cervix was not
even visible so they called for transfer...have
given her 1 lfer NS (normal saline), 8 mg
(milllgrams) Morphine, 0.5 Difaudid, and 4 mg of

' Zofran, Pt has had no pain rellef.! Further ALS
asses (assessment) revealed pt was having
coniractions at 1-2 min's {minutes) apart, pt was
not on a fetal heart rate monitor, and had no*
Tocolytics (medicatlon to slow coniractions) on
board...continued to have coniractions at 1-2
mins part, right before arrival at (Hospital #2) pt

'| STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENGIES (1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA
AND PLAN OF GORREGTION IDENTIFIGATION NUMBER: A. BULDING
. . G
440104 B. WING ] 05/13/2014
NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER . STREETADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIF CODE
975 E3AD ST
ERLANGER WEDIGAL CENTEH CHATTANOOGA, TN. 37403
, TN,
(X4 ID SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFIGIENGIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF GORRECTION 6)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENGY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL . PREFIX {EACH GORREGTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COHEEETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSG IDENTIFYING INFORMATION}) TAG CROSS~HEFERE$1€§311E‘S GT‘II;;EAPF ROFPRIATE DAT
A2401 | Continued From page 6 A2401
obsteiriclan)...who.rec (recommended)
Indomethacin (Indocin) bu med (medication)’
unavallable here at east, due o early pregnancy
pt (patient) will go emergency transpert to
(Hospital #2) L/D (Labor and Dellvery) for OB
(Obstetrician) eval (evaluation).”
Medical record review of a nurse’s note dated
April 2, 2014, at 8:27 a.m., revealed, "Disposifion:
(Hospital #2) Transport: Ambulance, Patient left
the department.” g
Medical record review revealed OB did not see R—‘Ef]iﬁgﬁ‘i—ni@@im
the patient in the ED and was not notified of I’—‘*—_Ld@”m*ﬂl
Indocin belng unavallable. Further medical Mm‘f‘:“fe by the Chief of Emer,
recorel review revealed no documentation ledioine on 12/9/2014. Based o )
regarding a pelvic examination, fetal heart tones [his case new guidelines for
being monitared, or obtaining timing of any t”;zl;; I:?ent]gf 'f’;f"iﬁc atients in )
. £ ASL HLImergenc . 120/
Department has been developed 1

and approyed by the Chief of

Emerpency Medicine/Brlanger Ha

Medical Divector on 12/3/2014. (See
a 1)

tachment #1

Facllity 1D: TNP531140 If continuation sheet Paga 7 of 34
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A2401

A2401 | Continued From page 7
stated she felt like something was coming out.
Upon initial evaluailon nothing was seen, but then
her water broke and hoth the baby's feet
presented toes pointing upward...pt could not
push anymore, the feet were purple had no
movement, By this time we were-at (Hosplial #2)
and diverted straight to the ER (Emergency
Room). Moved pt1o bed...siaff started fo deliver
baby. When baby was fully delivered It was
lifeless and staff did not aitempt resuscitation..,pt
could not sign due fo staff rushing her to L&D..."

Medical record review of Hospital #2's ER record
dated Aprll 2, 2014, revealed, "Complaint; 21
vieek ab breech presentation Triage Time...(9:47
a.m.)...Pain: 10 (0-10)...brought in by...ems
(emergency medical service), transfer from
(facility)...feet of fetus are visible (9:49
a.m.)...Medications prior to arrival, morphine...8
mg (millgrams), dilaudid...0.5 mg...zofran 4 mg."

Medlcal record review of an ultrasovind report
dated April 2, 2014, at 8:00 a.m. (performed at
the faility before transfer), revealsd, "...Resulis:
Aviable intrauterine pregnancy Is identified,
estimated gestational age 20 weeks and 2 days.
The heatt rate...measures 186 beats per minute,
Of note the cervical canal is poorly [dentified, and
the cervical os appears o be abnormally dilated
lp to 4.2 om (centimeters)...findings compatible
with incompetent cervix. GYN (Gynecology)
assessment recommended.”

Medical record review of a Newborn [dentification
record dated April 2, 2014, revealed, "...Infant's
Birth Date April 2, 2014, at (9:50 a.m.) Sex
male...Weight 864 gm (grams) Length 26 cms

(centimeters)..."

If continuation sheet Page 8 of 34
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A2401 | Continued-From page 8 A2401 .
Medical record review of a physiclan's progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 9:59 a.m., revealed, :

v, ..NICU (neo-natal Infensive care unif) and OB
paged directly on arrival. Pt preterm did not
know...was pregnarnt, Did not go into
labor/contractions...Feius blue/red on arrival,
Fetus deliverad, non-viable with OB assistance In
ED (emergency department). Cord clamped...Pt
{ransported {o L+D (labor and delivery) for

placental.”

Medical record raview of a history and physical
dated April 2, 2014, revealed, "...(10:02 a.m.)
Chief Complaint: arrives ¢/o (complains of) lahor.
Breech presentation noted...Did not know she
was pregnant. 21 weeks by LMP. NO prenatal
care...Pain controlled, Fetus non viable. No
alleviating or aggrevating (aggravating) factors.
Pain cramping fo lower abd (abdomen). No sig
(significant) bleeding...In my professlonal medical
judgment...this patient presents with an
emergency medical condition manifesting itself by
. | acute symptoms of sufficient severity (including
severe pain) that the absence of immediate
medical attention could reasonably be expected
to result in placing the patient's health In serlous-
Jeopardy; serlous Imipairment to badily function, or
serious dysfunction of & body organ or |
part...reports vaginal bleeding, vaginal
discharge...Pelvic: Bimanual exam abnormal,
Cervix dilated 2 cm (centimeters), fefus in breech
presentation, legs at introlius on arrival,."

Medical record review of a physiclan's progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 10:57 a.m., revealed, |
“Precipitous Delivery...OB nofifled of patients
.| arrival fo.the emetgency depariment. Infart
delivered via vaginal delivery, at (9:50

a.m.)...Inftlal APGAR score...3 (0-10; higher score
Bvent ID: TVOH1
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A2401 | Continued From page 8

indlcative of better cfinical condition) Patlent
tolerated the procedure with difficuly...”

| Medical record review of a physician's progress

note dated April 2, 2014, at 11:00 am., revealed,
"...0B Called to ER for delivery of preterm with no
prenatal care...had presented fo (facility) with abd
pain and cramps...transferred to ER here where
she delivered non-viable male infant...Placenia
remains Intact,.."

Medical record review of a Bereavement Loss
Checkiist L&D dated April 2, 2014, revealed,
“...Complications this pregnancy: Preterm labor
Obstetriclan: (M.D. #2) Delivery Date/Time:
4-2-14 at (9:50 a.m.) Death date/Time: 4-2-14 at
(9:50 a.m.)...Sex; M (male),..”

Medical record review revesled, "...04/02/2014
(8:26 p.m.)...Delivery Time: Placenta - Manual."

Medical record review revesaled the patient was
discharged on April 2, 2014,

Interview with the Corporate Preparedness/Safety
Officar on May 9, 2014, at 2:40 pam., ina
conference room, revealed the facility dld not
have current approved EMTALA policles for
Hospltal #1 except for a transfer policy. Further
Interview confirmed the unapproved policy with an
orlgination date of March 2014 was under review,

Interview with the ER Nurse Manager on May 12,
2014, at 10:20 a.m., in a conference room,
revealed the facility had provided labor-and
delivery services since 1996, delivered infants of
85-86 wesles gestation through full term, had the
capability of providing monitoring of fetal heart
tones In the ED, and had OB on call. She stated,

FORM CMS-2667(02-99) Frevious Versions Obsolefe Event D: TVOH1
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A2401 | Continued From page 10 A2401
"...unless high risk, and under EMTALA we just
deliver, pray for the best, and after delivery J
transport downtown (Hospita] #2),"
Interview with the ED's Medical Director on May
12, 2014, at 11:58 a.m,, In a conference room, .
and in the presence of the facility's Corporate
Preparedness/Safety Officer, revealed Patfent #7
presented to Hospital #2 and he delivered Patlent
#7's infant. Continued interview confirmed the
facllity's East campus Inappropriately transferred
Patient #7 on April 2, 2014, and confirmed Patient
#7 was transferrad to Hospltal #2 In an unstable
medical condition. He stated, "...\When pafient
arived, | didn't have time fo read her paperwork,
The feet were already out and we had to deliver." .
A2402

489.20(q) POSTING OF SIGNS

[The provider agrees,] In the case of a hosplial as
defined in §489.24(h), to post conspicuously in
any emergency department or in a place or
places likely to be noticed by all Individuals
entering the emergency depariment, as well as
those Individugls waiting for examination and
treatment In areas other than {raditfonal
emergency departments (that Is, entrance,
admiting area, walting room, freatment area) a
sign (in a form specified by the Secretary)
specifying the rights of Individuals under dection
1867 of the Act with respect o examination and
tregtment for emergensy medical conditions and
women in labor; and to post conspicuously (in a
form specified by the Secretary) information
Indicating whether or not the hospiial or rural
primary care hospital (e.g., critical access
hospital) parilcipates in the Medicaid program
under a State plan approved under Tlile XIX.

A2402

A2402: 489.24(q) POSTING OF
SIGNS

The findings inclnded: This

STANDARD is not met as evidenced
the facility fhiled to conspicuously
post the required signs with respect to
the right to examination and freatment
for emergency medical conditions and

women in Iabor.

Plan of Correction Responsibility;
The Medical Director for Emergency
Services hag the responsibility for the
plan of correction.
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The signage was partially blocked at

A2402 | Continued From page 11
| This STANDARD Is not met as evidenced by:

Based on observation and interview, the facllity fho Erlanger Hast Emergency Room
falled to conspleuausly post the required signs euiraiics by the vending machines and
with respect fo the rght to examination and -0 2enagn was posted at the dek

inside the Emergency Department
registration/information counter,

freatment for emergency medical conditions and

women In labor. : :
1. The vending machines were moved

in order to have total view of the
required signage at the Erlanger Rast

"The findings included:
Emergency Department enfrance,

Observation of the facility's Emergency Room

(ER) with a Nurse Manager on May 8, 2014, at
10:20 a.m., revealed the required signs were not

Corrected during survey 5/12/2014 5712/2014

2. The required signage was posted | [

posted in the patient/family walting area of the
ER. (Required signs inform patfents of the right to 4
recelve an appropriate medical screering behind the Erlanger Bast Fmergency
Department registration/information
counter in the waiting room.

examination, necessary stabilizing treatment, and
If necessary an appropriate transfer If the patient
has a medical emergency, regardless of abliity to
pay, and if the faciliiy does/does not participate in

the Medicaid program.)

Interview with a Nurse Manager on May 9, 2014,
at approximately 10:30 a.m.; in the ouipatient
surgery entrance, confirmed the fagilily falled fo
conspicuously postthe required signs.
489.24(e)(1)-(2) APPROPRIATE TRANSFER

]

Corrected during Survey 5/21/2014 5/12/2014

3. Therequired signage was posted at
the Brlanger Bast Ambulatory

Enfrance

11/24/2014 ;

(Attachments #8 —photos of posted
required signage)

A2409

(1) General
I an individuaf at a hospltal has an emergency

medical condition that has not been stabllized (as
defined in paragraph (b) of this section), the
hospital may not transfer the individual unless -
(i) The transfer Is an appropriate transfer (within
the meaning of paragraph (e) (2) of this sectlon);
and ) :
()(A) The Individual {or a legally responsible
person acling on the individual's behalf) requests
the transfer, after being informed of the Hospital's

Facliity 10; TNP531140 If continuation sheet Page 12 of 34
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A2409

A2408 | Continued From page 12
obligatlons under this section-and of the risk of
transfer.

The request must be In writing and Indfeate the
reasons for the request as well as indicate that he
or she is aware of the risks and benefiis of the

transfer, ]

(B) A physiclan (within the meaning of section
1861(1)(1) of the Act) has signed a’cerliffcation
that, based upon the information available at the
time of transfer, the medical benefits reasonably
expected from the provision of appropriate
medical {reatment at another medical facility
ouiweigh the increased risks to the Individual or,
in the case of & woman In lahor, 1o the woman or
the unbarn child, from being transferted. The
certification must contaln a summary of the risks
and benefits upon which itIs based; or

(C) If a physician is not physically present in the
«| emergency department at the time an individual s
fransferred, a qualified medical person (as .

determined by the hospital In fts hylaws or rules
and regulations) has signed a cerfification
described In paragraph (&) (1) (i) (B) of this section
after a physlcian (as defined In section 18671(1)(1)
of the Act) in consultation with the qualified
medical person, agress with the certification and
subsequently countersigns the cerfification. The
certification must contaln a summary of the tisks

and benefits upon which it s based.

(2) Atransfer to another medical facility will be
approptiate only in those cases in-which -

(i) The transferring hospital provides medical
freatment within Its capaclty that minimizes the
risks to the Individual's health and, In the case of
a woman In labor, the health of the unborn child;

Faollity ID: TNP531140
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A2408 | Gontinued From page 13

(if) The recelving facility

(A) Has avallable space and qualified personnel
for the freatment of the individual; and

(B) Has agreed to accept fransfer of the individual
and to provide approptiate medical treatment,

(iii) The transferring hospltal sends to the
recelving facility all medical records (or copies

thereof) related fo the emergency condition which
the individual has presented that are available at
the time of the transfer, including available
history, records related to the individual's
emergency medical condition, observations of
slgns or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis, results |
of diagnostic studies or telephone reporis of the
studies, treatment provided, resulis of any tests
and the Informed written consent or certification
{or copy thereof) required under paragraph (e)(1)
(i) of this section, and the name and address of
any on-ocall physician (described in paragraph (g)
of this section) who has refused or failed to
appear within a reasonable time fo provide
necessary stabilizing treatment, Other records
(e.g., test resulis not yet available or historical
recards not readily available from the hospital's
files) must be sentas soon as practvable after

transfer; and

(iv) The transfer is effected through qualified
personnel and fransportation equipment, as
required, Including the use of necessary and
medically appropriate life support measures

duting the transfet.

This STANDARD s not met as evidenced by:
Based on review of facility policy, review of Rules
and Regulations of the Medical Staif, review of
Emergency Room Logs, medical record review,

and interview, the facillty failed to appropriately
Evént ID: VoIt

A2409

A2409: 489.24(s)(1)-(2)
Appropriate Transfers *

The findings included: This
STANDARD is not met as evidenced
by: Based onreview of facility
policy, review of Rules and

Regulations of the Medical Staff;

review of Emergency Room Logs,
medical record review, and interview, | -

the facility failed to appropriately
transfer four patients (#7, #8, #9, and
#11) of'the 16 patients reviewed,

Plan of Correction Respousibility:
The Chief Medical Officer and the
Chief of Emergency Medicine is
responsible for the corrective action

plan and ongoing complisnce,
If continuatlon sheet Pége 14 of 34
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transfer four patients ({7, #8, #9, and #11) of
sixteen patlents reviewead.

The findings included:

Review of facility policy titled "Transfers...PC.074"
most recently ravised in February, 2012,
revealed, ...To establish guidellnes for
transferring patient within a facilfty, to an
alternative level of care, or to another acute care
facility while assuring medically approptiate
contintity of care and compliance with EMTALA
(Emergency Medical Treatment and Activa Labor
Act) regulation,.. The following information must
be completed prior to a fransfer...transferring
physician must obtain accepfance ftom a
receiving physiclan...receiving facllity must acoept
the patlent...patient and/or famlly members
consent...Coples of the completed Emergency
Department (ED).record, lab resulisfcrays and
EKG reports will be sent with patient... Transfer
Torm completed. The transferting physiclan

" | defermines the method of patient fransport and
the amount of support that will be needed during
fransport. The transferting physiclanalso ~ ~ |
maintains responsibilfty for care during transport
until arrival at the receiving factlity...”

Review of a polioy titled “(Facility) Easi
Emergency Setvices Scopé of Services”
revealed, "Originatlon Date: 3/14" and the
approval date was blank, indicating It had not
been approved by the Medical Staif or the

Governing Body. ' :
Revisw of facllity policy for the hospital's main
campuis titted "Emergency Department Scope of
Services Number, EMS.280" most recently
revised In March, 2010, revealed, *...An

Hospital # 1 is within the Frlanger
Health System; however this was not
reflected in the EMTALA Transfer
Policy and is now reflected in the

policy draft. A new system wide

policy was developed to reflect this
langnage and inelusion of current
EMTALA and associated State law,
The draft of this policy was reviewed
by the Medical Executive Committes
on December 1, 2014, The cominitice
reviewed the policy and requested
additional information, The final

draft will be approved by fhe Medical
Exective Committes on Jannary 5,

2015,

" (See attachment # 7 - Draft
EMTALA Transfer Policy)
(See attachment # 7 —Medical Staff

Exeputive Committes Mesting
Agenda)

The Emergency Sexvices Scope of
Servyices policies (EIVIS #280 and !
EEED #7174.100) were reviewed
and approved fo melade

doenmenfation of approval by the
Chief of Emergency Wedicine, and
revision of the staffing model for
Exlanger Baroness Campus,
These policies are departmental
policies that are yequired by all

departments explaining the scope of
the sexvices the deparimen:

provides, staffing for the
depariment, special equipment._and
procedures, '

(See attachment #2 and #10,)
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A2400 | Continued From page 15
Emergency Medical Condition Is defined as a
medical condition manifesting itself by acute
symptoms.of sufficlent severily such that the
absence of prompt and appropriate medioal
attention could result In...placing the health or
safety of the patient or unborn child in serious
Jeapardy,..The following conditions ate declared
o be emergency conditions by statute and
regulation ...pragnancy with confractions
present...acute pain rising to the level of the
general definition of emergency medical
-condition...Evaluation, management, and
treatment of patients Is appropriate and
expedient...Immediate evaluation and
stabilization, to the degree reasonably possible,
will be available for each patient who presents
with an emergency medical conditlon...Necessary
equipment...supplies must be immediately
available In the faciiity at all imes...Necessary
drugs and agents must be immediately avallable
In the facility at all times.., Patients are 1o be
transported to the nearest appropriate ED
(emergency department) in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations, and guidelings,..All
iransfers will comply with local, state, and federal
laws...Equipment and Supplies...Radiclogical,
Imaging and Diagnostic Services Available 24/7
(24 hours per day/7 days per week)..fetal

monitoring..."

Review of Rules and Regulations of the Medical
Staff revealed, "...Effective date: December 7,

*| 1885...A phone call from the requesting physician
to the consultant Is required for emergent/urgent
consulis to ensure clear communication
regarding the clinical situation and timely
coordination of care...The need for consultation
will be determined by the (ED) physiclan...A
satisfactoty consultation includes examination of
Event ID: TVOI{1
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A2409 | Continued From page 16
the patient and the record. A written or dictated

opinion signed by the consultant must he included
Inthe medical record. For emergent/urgent
situations, the.consulting physician should
discuss findings directly with the referring
physician in addltion to the writien
documentation...Medical records
contain...Emetgency care, treatment, and
setvices provided to the patient before hls or her
arrival, If any...Documentation and findings of
assessments...Conclusion of impressians drawn

from medical history and physiecal
examination...Progress notes made by authorized

'| individuals...Consuiltation reports...All medical
record entries must be legib{e, complete, dated,
tmed, and authenticaled in writfen or electronic
form by the person responslble for providlng or
evaluating the service provided..."

Review of an Emergency Room Log dated April
2, 2014, revealed Patient #7 presented to the
facility's East campus with com plamt of Vaginal

Blseding.

Medlcal record review of a Triage note dated Apri!_
2, 2014, revealed, "...(6:37 a.m.) Complaint; ;
Vaginal bleeding...(6:49 a.m.) Paln level 8
(0-10)...Quallty Is cramping. Since
yesterday...states...ls a mup!a weeks
pregnant'...had a miscarriage in Jan (January)
LMP (Last Menstrual Perlod): 11-15-2018 (histor y
of five pregnancies, three delivered

pregnaricies)..."

Medical recortl review of a history and physical
dated Aprll 2, 2014, at 7:14 a.m., revealed, "pt
(patlent) w/ (with) abd (abdominal) pain. Imp (last
mentrual perlod) 11/5/13. thought she had

Fadiitty ID: TNP531140 If continuation sheet Page 17 of 34
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- A2409 | Continued From page 17 . - :

passing tissue, Was told last week that she Is
pregnant again, now having severe cramps. had
some light bleeding past 2 days. todayno .
bleeding but severe cramps. vomii x (limes) 2. no
diarthea. no urinary sx (symptoms). no
fever...Sudden onset of symptomns, Symptoms
are worsening, afe constant. Maximum severity
of symptoms savere, Currently symptoms are
severe. [n my professional medical

[udgment...this patlent presents with an -
emergency medical condition mantfesting ftself by

acute symptoms of suificent severity (including
severe pain) that in the absence of immediate
medical attention could reasonably be expecied
to result in placing the patient's health In serjous
Jeopardy; serlous impairment to bodily function, or
serious dysfunction of a body organ...(7:1 8am.)
Abdominal exam included findings of abdomen
tender, to the left upper quadrant, to the left lower
quadrant, fo the right lower quadrant, moderate
intensity, no distension, firm uterus at
umbilicus...Medlcal History...misearriage x

2...cesarean sectlon..,"

Medical record review of a physician's progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 7:20 a.m., revealed,
-"...BSUS (Bedside Ultrasound) shows [UP
(Intrauterine Pregnancy) at approx 20 wks
(approximately 20 weeks), Will obtain formal us
(ultrasound), labs, and ob (obstetric) consult...”

Medical record review of the Nursing
Assessment: Continuing Assessment dated April
2, 2014, revealed, "...(7:24 a.m.) per pf she

| miscarried In January at home and was never
seen by OBGYN (Obstetrician/Gynecologist) to
confirm. Pt sls (states) she was seen by OBGYN
| recently, but could not give specific day or dats,

'| and was told her blood pregnancy test was
Event ID: TVOH1
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A2409 | Continued From page 18
positive. Ptsts she Is 'a couple of weeks
pregnant’...patient appears, restiess,
uncomiortable...(7:40 &.m.) pt rates pain 8 on a
scale of 1-10. MD nofified new medieation order
recelved...(8:12 a.m.) States worsening pain, pt *
still o/o pain an 8 on a scale of 1-10.” MD notified
and new medication order received,..Patient
appears restless, uncomfortable..,(8:56 a.m.)
Slates decreased pain, Patlent states decreased
pain, although she still raies it 7 out of 10. Sheis
not as restless and seems in no pain distress at
this time. pain Is more intermittent at this fine...
(9:10 a.m.) States worsening pain...Patlent

appears, uncomfortable..."
Medical record review of-a physician's noté dated
April-2, 2014, at 8:53 a.m., revealed, "Diagnosis
Final: Primary Preterm Labor.”

Medical record revisw of a nurse's note dated
Aprll 2, 2014, at B:54 a.m., revealed, "Ambulance
service contacted...Estimated time of arrival

15-20 min (minutgs)."

Medical record review of a nurse's note dated
April 2, 2014, at 9:08 a.m., revealed, “Indocin
{medicatlon to delay labor) ordered by (Medical .
Doctor - M.D. #1). Pharmacy called and we do
not carry that medication on this campus, MD
(MD #1) aware, medication order canceled.” *

Medical record revlew of a nurse's note dated
April 2, 2014, at 8:14 a.n., rfevealed, "Transfer;
Reason for fransfer need for specialized care,
Diagnosis: preterm labor, Accepting Institution:
(Hospital #2) Labor and Dellvery, Accepting .
physician (M.D. #2)...Report called 1o receiving
facility..." )

-

Event ID:TVOI

A2409

docin is now stocked af. the
Exlanger Bast campus pharmacy
and available — Indomethacin

dosage =25mp x2 (50mg) PO stat
then 25mg PO every 6 hours,
Magnesinm and Terbutfaling are
also ayailable if requested.,

N

12/5/2014 +
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A2409 | Continued From page 19 . - AP408( I
Medical record review of a Transfer Authorization Transfer Authorization form revealed
dated April 2, 2014, at 9:18 a.m., revealed, ; F w2
= \ pe \ it had been completed inappropriately,
STABILITY The patlent is stabilized at the time of | _ Tt revonled bot: siatments wero
transfer and no.medical deterloration of the ) -
I . checked (stable ot state of emergency
patient's conditlon is likely, within reasonable medical condition), A new fransfer
medical prabability, to result from-or oceur during ot o  A.new frangfy
. i as developed and wag
ihe transfer of the Individual from this facllity, or, 5
: ipproved by the Fealth Information
with respect to & pregnant woman having Mitsperiont B C e
contractions, the woman has dellvered (including 112 4;;1? T Waﬂ-m = tommﬂth Pe.e‘ o :
the placenta) OR The Patient Is In a state of an " Shop for oxiut 8 ;e 111% 2 émt 11/24/2014
emergency medical conditlon, and | herehy certify x Eb uéprm ?2/;?01; ready for
that based upon the Infofmation available to me distribution by . 12/5/2014
at this time, the medical bensfits reasonably . -
expected from the provision of appropriate Education: )
medical freatment at another facilfly, outweigh the —Education will be provided fo all :
increased risks to the individual and, in the case emergeney staff on the new poliey L
of labor, fo the unborn child from effecting the updates (EMTALA Transfer ;
frapsfer..." Review of the Transfer Authorization olicy, EMT'AT.A-Provision of O
revealed both statements were checked. Furiher | Call Coverage Policy , the ne
review revealed, *...appropriate transport - EMTALA Transfer Form and the
service...Advarnced... The recelving facility has education al nower point
agreed o accept the patient...Facllity (Hospital resentation), This mandator
#2)...accepting physiclan (M.D, #2)..." Continued education will be distributed i
review revealed, "...Aeason for iransfer: preterm otehooks fo each Emergenc
lebor Risk of fransfer: death by MVC (motor Departments in the Frlanger Health
vehicle crash) Bensfits of transfer; higher level of tem, All emergency depariment
care..." statf including physician and
. hysician-extenders will be
Medlcal record review of a physiclan's progress required to yead and ackunowledpe
note dated Aprll 2, 2014, at 9:22 a,m., revealed,” by signature understanding of the
"formal us (Ultrasound) shows (20 week olicies and processes b
Intrautetine pregnancy) and Incompetent cervix. December 31, 2014, 12/31/2014 *

Discussed results (with M.D. #2 - patlent's
obstetriclan)...who'rec (recommended)
indomethacin (Indocin) but med (medication)
unavailable hereat east. due to eatly pregnancy
pt (patient) will go emergency iransport to
(Hospital #2) L/D (Labor and Delivery) for OB
(Obstetrician) eval (svaluation).”

1..
]
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. A2409 | Continued From page 20 A2409 A%—“g—————u—-ggf’;?:mﬁ the Corrective
' 1. Monitoring will be conducted
Medical record review of a nurse's note dated monthly forﬂgconﬁhioils mgntzs
April 2, 2014, at 8:27 a.m., revealed, "Disposition: begining Jenuary 2015- April 2015
(Hospital #2) Transport: Ambtilance, Patient left by fio Eaniérieier Diriarhasat
the department.” Nurse Manager at Erlahger East, A
review of i
Medical record review revealed OB did not see 1':nd?1;':;y Z;:;i%s -5, e;’;‘;];tggﬂl b
the patient in the ED and was not notified of compiianoe of appropriate completion
Indocin being unavailable, Further medical of the new EMTAL a_l: wTﬂe ﬁom%)'om -
record review revealed no documentation with & minimum of 90% comnlance
regarding a pelvic examlnatlon, fetal heart tones rate, TeHds teriot et iR 41:11 .
belng monitored, or obtaining Himing of any of roview. fhe review ofrecor dsm Wﬂlthﬂ
Gormenons. | be continued for an additional 4
. o ths until 90% compliance is,
Review of an EMS (Emergency Medical Servige) e
Patient Care Report dated April 2, 2014, revealed, gfj“g;i’g Rﬂiﬁiﬁém be repoif:d o
"...Level of Care: ALS (Advanced Life - gf o ystem Quality
Support)...At patient (9:15 a.m.)... Transport: (9:25 e 1/2015-4/1015
a.m.) At dest (destination): (9:43 a.m.)...Narrative: 1
Dispatched emer (emergent) to (Facllity) to
transfer pt (patient) to (Hospltal #2)...pt in ; o \
premature labor...nurse advised "...they ]I;a oy ;ﬁ%ﬁiﬁgﬁgﬁ?ﬂ af
performed an‘ulirasound and the cervix was not revieyed by fhe Chief of Bmsteenc
even visible sa they called for transfer...have Weitlelis, o 120015, Seet L it
given her 1 liter NS (normal sallne), 8 mg . B i vl g on 121972
(miliigrams) Morphine, 0.5 Dilaudid, and 4 mg of . Rt —
Zofran. Pt has had no pain relief. Further ALS m A E i€ patients i
asses (assessment) revealed pt was having ‘H——Wg%g
contraciions at 1-2 min's (minutes) apart, pt was ' }%{Hﬁ%@
t , and had ef of
nat on a fetal heart rate manitor, and had no Hinergency Medieine/Brlangor East
Medical Director on 12/3/2014. (See 12/3/2014

Tocolytics {medication to slow contractions) on
board...continued to have contractions at 1-2 -
mins part, right before arrival at (Hospital #2) pt

| stated she felt like something was coming out.
Upon initial evaluation nothing was seen, buf then
her water broke and both the baby's feet
presented toes pointing upward...pt could not
push anymors, the feet were purple had no
mevement. By this ime we were at (Hospital #2)

attachment #i1)
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A2409 | Continued From pags 21

and diverted straight to the ER (Emergency
Room). Moved pt to bed...staff started to dellver
baby. When baby was fully delivered it was
lifeless and staff did not attempt resuscitation...pt
could not sign due to staff rushing her to 1L.&D..."

Medical record review of Hospital #2's ER record
dated April 2, 2014, revealed, "Complalnt; 21
week ob breech presentation Triage Time...(9:47
a.m.)...Pain; 10 (0~10)...brought in by...ems
(emergency medical service), transfer from
(facllity)...Teet of fetus are visible (9:49
a.n.)...Medications prior to arrival, morphine...8
mg (millgrams), dilaudid...0.5 mg...zofran 4 mg."

Medical record review of an ultrasound report
dated Aprll 2, 2014, at 9:00 a.m. (performed at
the Tacility before transfer), revealed, *...Results:
Avlable infrauterine pregnancy is [dentified,

astimated gestational age 20 weeks and 2 days.
The heart rate,..measurés 186 beats per minute.

Of note the cervical canal Is poorly identified, and
the cervical os appears to be abnormally dilated
Lp to 4.2 ecm (ceniimeters)...fndings compatible
with Incompetent cervix. QYN (Gynecology)

assessment recommended."

Medical record review of a Newborn Ideniification
record dated Aprll 2, 2014, revealed, "...Infant's
Birth Date April 2, 2014, at (9:50 a.m.) Sex
male...Welght 364 gm (grams) Length 26 cms

(centimeters)..."

Medical record review of a physician's progress
note dated Aptll 2, 2014, at 9:59 a.m., revealed,
"..NICU (neo-natal Intenslve care unit) and OB

paged directly on atrival. Pt preterm did not

know...was pregnant. Did not go into
laborfeontractions...Fetus bluefred on arrival.

ERLANGER MEDICAL CENTER
i
() I SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORREGTION ()
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH GORREGTIVE AGTION SHOULD BE GOMPLETION
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DEFICIENCY)
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A2409 | Continued From page 22
Fetus delivered, non-viable with OB assistance In

ED (emergency department). Card clamped...Pt
transported to L+D (labor and delivety) for

placental,”

Medical record review of a history and physical
dated April 2, 2014, revealed, *...(10:02 a.m.)
Chief Complaint: arrives /o (complains of) labor.”
Breech presentation noted...Did not know she
was pregnant. 21 weeks by LMP, NO prenatal
care...Pain confrolled. Fetus non viahle. No
alleviating or aggrevating (aggravating) factors.
Pain cramping to lower ahd (abdomen). No sig
(significant) bleeding...In my professional medical
+ | judgment...this patient presents with an
“emergency medical condition manifesting, itself by
acute symploms of sufficient severity (ncluding
severe pain) that the absence of immediate
medical attention could reasonably be expected
to result in placing the patient's health In serious
jeopardy; serfous Impalrment to bodily function, or
serlous dysfunction of & body organ or
part..reporis vaginal bleeding, vaginal
discharge...Pelvic: Bimanual exam abniormal,
Cetvix dilated 2 om (centimeters), fetus in breech
presentation, legs at introitus on arrival,..”

Medical record review of a physiclan's progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 10:57 a.m., revealed,
“Precipitous Delivery...OB notifled of patlents
arrival to the emergency department. Infant

delivered via vaginal delivery, at (9:50
a.m.)...Inltlal APGAR score...3 (0-10, higher score

indlcative of better clinlcal condition) Patient
tolerated the procedure with difficulty...” -

Madlcal record. review of a physlelan's progress
note dated April 2, 2014, at 11:00 a.m., revealsd,

"...OB Called to ER for delivery of preterm with no
EventID:TVOH]
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prenatal care...had presented to (facllity) with abd
paln and cramps.. ransfetred to ER here where
she delivered non-viahle male infant...Placenia

remains Intact..." '

Medical record review of a Bereavement Loss
Checklist L&D dated Aprll 2, 2014, revealed,
"...Compllcations this pragnancy: Preterm labor
Obstetriclan: (M.D. #2) Delivery Date/Time:
4-2-14 at (2:50 a.m.) Death date/Time: 4-2-14 at
(2:50 a.m,)..Sex: M (malg)..."

Medical record review revealed, "...04/02/2014
(9:26 p.m.)...Dellvery Time: Placenta - Manual."

Medical racord review revealed the patlent was
discharged on Aprll 2, 2014.

Interview with the ER Nufse Manager on May 12,
2014, at 10:20 a.m., in a conference room,
revealed the fadllity had provided labor and
delivery services since 1996, delivered Infants of
35-86 weeks gestatlon through full term, had the
capability of provlding monitoring of fstal heart
tones in the ED, and had OB on call, She stated,
"...unless high tisk, and under EMTALA we just
deliver, pray forthe best, and after delivery
fransport downtown (Hospital #2)."

Interview with a Reglstered Pharmacist on May
12, 2014, at 11:23 a.m., In a conference room,
revealed the pharmacy did not siock
Indomethacin, butthe medication used o delay
lahor could be stucked on the recommendation of
physicians.

Interview with the ER's Medical Directar on May
12, 2014, at 11:58 a.m., In a conference room,
and in the presence of the facliity's Corporate
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A new transfer form was deysloped

A2408 | Continued From page 24 .,
Preparedness/Safety Officer, revealed Patient #7
presented to Hospital #2 and he deliveraed Patient
#7's Infant. Continued Interview confirmed the
factlity inappropriately transferred Patient #7 on

" | April 2, 2014, and he staiad, "...When patient
arrived, | didn't have time to read her paperwork.
The feet were already out and we had to dellver."

Revlew of an ER Log revealed Patient #8
presented to the ER on April 18, 2014.

Medical record review of an ER Record dated:
April 18, 2014, revealed Patlent #8 presented o
the ER with a complaint of abdomlnal pain. -

Medical record review of a Nursing Assessment
dated Aprll 18, 2014, at 8:58 a.m., revealed,
"...pressure pain, to the right lower quadrant...on

a soale 0-10 patlent rales pain as 10..." -

Medical record review of a history and physical
dated April 18, 2014, at 8:01 a.m., revealed,
"..abdominal paln that started 8 days ago. Pain Is
sharp, constant, started in right upper but now
painta RLQ (Right Lower Quadrant) as well. No
radiation o back...ars constant...In my
professional medical judgment....this patlent
presenis with an emergency medical condition
manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient
severily (including severe paln) that the absence
of inmediate medical attention could reasonably
be expected fo resuit in placing the patient's
health in serious Jeopardy; serious impalrment fo
bodily function, or serious dysfunction of a body
organ or part...(9:08 a.m.)
tachyeardic...tenderness to right side of
abdomen...with voluntary guarding..."

Medical record review of a physician's note dated

and was approved by the Health
Information Management Forms
Committee on 11/24/14, Tt was sent

to the Print Shop for print and will be
ready for distribution by 12/5/2014, I

o~ 11/24/2014

12/5/2014

(See attachment #4)

Monitoring of the Corrective

Action Process:

1. Monitoring will be conducted
monthly for 4 continnous months
beginning January 2015~ April 2015
by the Bnexpency Depariment
Nurse Manager at Tilanper Tasf, Al
review of 70 cases per month will be
randomly selected to assess for
compliance of appropriate completion
of the new EMTALA Tiarsfor Form
with a minimum of 90% compliance
rafe, Ifthis is notmet efer 4 months
ofreview, the review of records will
be continued for an additional 4
months unil 90% compliance is
achieved, Results will be reportedto |
the Brlanger Health System Quality
Oversight Comumitfce. 1/2015-4/1015

Faclity ID: TNP531140 If continuation sheet Page 25 of 34
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A2400 Edueation:
Fducation will be provided to all

emergency staff on the new noli
updates ( EMTATA Transfer
Dbolicy, EMTALA-Provision of On
Call Caverage Policy , the new
EMTALA Transfer Form and the
education al power poinf
presenfation). This mandatory
education will be disiributed in
notehools fo each Bmergency
Depariments in the Frlan ger Healfh
System. All emergency department
staff inclnding physician and
physieian extenders will be
requived fo yead and aclmoﬂla;;i_gg

atmre nnderstan ofthe .
new policies and processes b 12/31/2014 |

December 31, 2014, i
!

A2409 | Gontinued From page 25
April 18, 2014, at 9:04 a.m., revealed, "abdominal

‘pain W]fil slgnficant tenderness and guarding, will
check labs, treat pain, do ultrasound.”

Medical record review of a Medication
Adminisiration Summary dated April 18, 2014,
revealed the patlent was adminlstered pain =~ -
medicatlon at 9:18 a.m. and 10:82 a.m., and an
antibloiic at 9:44 a.m, accordmg to phys]clan s

otders,

Medical record review of a Nursing Procedure:
Communleations dated April 18, 2014, af 9:24

a.m., revealed, "...WBC (White Ekmd Gell) count
327 (nnrmal range 4.8~10.8), glven to (MD #4)..."

Medical record review of a physfcian 's note daied
April 18, 2014, at 9:47 a.m., revealed, "ultrasound

posiiive fm acute cholecysmrs will send to Main
ER (Hospital #2) for surgical evaluation, will give

abx (antiblotics) given patlent on
Immunosuppressive meds with WBC 32."

Medical record review of a radaoa‘ugy repori datad
April 18, 2014, at 10:08 a.m., revealed, "...large 2
cm stone In the neck of the -
gallbladder...gallbladder enlarged to 13 cm...In
length...Impresslon...very suggestive of

cholscystifis.”

Medical record revisw of the Emergency
Department Emergency Record documentation
dated April 18, 2014, at 8:50 a.m., revealed,
"...Transfer fo...(Hospital #2) ED..."

Medical record review of a nurse’s note dated
April 18, 2014, at 9:58 a.m., revealed, "...Reason
for transfer need far specialized care, Diaghosls:

cholecystitls, Accepting Instltution: (Hospltal #2),
Event ID: TVDIT1
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A2408 | Continued From page 26 A2409| A new transfer form was dejeloped
and was approved by the Health
Information Management Forms

Acoepting physician: (MD #6)...Transported by
non-urgent ambulance...consent for ransfer -

signed..."

Medical record review of the Transfer .
Authorlzation dated April 18, 2014, revealed,
"Stability The patient is stablized at the fime of
transfer and no medical deterioration of the
patient's condition Is likely, within reasonable
medical probability, to result from or ocour during
the transfer of the Individual from this faciliiy...OR
The Patient is in a staie of an emergency medical
condition, and | hereby certify that based upon
the information avallable to me at this time, the
medical benefits reasonably expected from the
provision of appropriate medical freatment at
another facility, outwelgh the increased risks fo
the Individual...OR Patlent/Responsible Individual
requests iransfer..." Review of the Transfer
Authorization revealed all thrae options were
checked. Further review of the Trapsfer . -~
Authorization revealed, "...It is medically
necessary o transport the patient by
ambulance/alr ambulance...” was not checked. |
Further review revealed no Confirmation Time for
Hospltal #2's acceptance of the patient; no time
was documented when report was given fo the
accepting fospital staff, and no time was
documented for when the patiént was fransferred.

Medical record review of an' ER Record (Hospital,
#2) history and physical dated April 18, 2014, at
11:45 a.m., revealed, "... Transfer from outer
facility for higher level of care...8ymptoms are
worsening, are constant...In my professional
medical judgment....this patient presents with an
emergency medicdl condition manifesting itself by
actte symptoms of sufficient severity (Including |

severe pain) thal the absence of immediate
Event ID: TVOI1

Committee on 11/24/14. Tt was sent
1o the Print Shop for print and will be

ready for distribution by 12/5/2014. 1 12/5/2014

(See attachment #4)

WMonitoring of the Corrective

Action Process:’

1. Moniforing will bs conducted
mm'lth]':yfor 4 contirmous monfhs
beginning Jammary 2015- April 2015
by the Bmergency Depariment
Nurse Manager at Brlauger Bast. A
review of 70 cases permonth will he
tandomly selected to assess for
compliance of appropriate completion
nf the new BMTALA. Transfor Form
with a minimum 0f90% compliance
rate. Tf'this isnot.met after 4 months
of review, the review ofrecords will
be continued for an additional 4
months until 90% compliance ig
achieved, Resulfs will be reported to
the Frlanger Health System Quality
Oversight Commiitee,

\_“.

1/2015-4/1015
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A2409 | Continued From p;age 27 :
- * | medical attention could reasonably be expected *
to result In placing the patlent's heaith in serious
jeopardy; serlous impairment to bodily function, or
serfous dysfunction of a body organ or part...”

Medical record review of the Hospital #2
Emergency Department Emergency Record
dated Aprll 18, 2014, revealed the patient was
transported 1o surgery at 1:58 p.m.

Medlcal record review of a Discharge Summary
dated April 20, 2014, revealed, ".taken to
operating room for a laparoscople
cholecystectomy with Intracperative
cholanglogram...on postop day 2, the day of
discharge, will be discharged home..."

Interview with the Corporate Preparedness/Safety
Officer on May 12, 2014, at 8:35 p.m., in a

confersnce room, conflrmed Patient #8 was
Inappropriately transferred on April 18, 2014.

Review of an ER Log revealsd Patient #9
presented to the ER on April 18, 2014.

Medical record review of an ER Record dated
April 18, 2014, revealed, "...(3:15 p.m.) Trauma
uesday...Complaint: bilateral leg fenderness,
swelling...(3:25 p.mn.) Triage Information...Pain
level 8 (0-10)...noticed some Increased
swelling...concerned about compartment
syndrome...Pt has swelling and pain in left calf,.."

Medical record review of a history and physical
dated April 18, 2014, at 4:39 p.m., revealed,
"...recently admitted and released from hospital
last night from traumatlc injury while at work. Had
skull fracture, left tibla fracture and right ankle

Education:
Hducation will be provided fo all

emergeney staff on the new policy

updates ( EMTATA Transfer
policy, EMTAT.A-Provision of On
Call Coverage Palicy , the new
EMTALA Transfer Form and the
education al power point

- presentafion). This mandatory

education will be distvibufed in

notebooks to each mergency
Departments in the Exlancer Health
System. All emergency depariment
staff including physieian and

hiysician exfenders be
requived fo read and aclmowledgs

by signature nudevstanding of the
uew poliefes and processes by ‘

December 31, 2014.

12/31/2014
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A2408 | Continued From page 28
fracture...had PT (Physleal Therapy) come out
taday, but was told to come directly to ER for
increased swelling and pain to left calf. Worrled
about DVT (Deep Vein Thrombasis) poss
(possible) compartment syndrome...In my
professional medical judgment....this patient
presents with an emergency medical condition
manifesiing ltself by acute symptoms of sufficlent
sevetily (including severe pain) that the absence
of immediate medical attention could reasonably
he expected to result In placing the patient's
health in serlous Jeopardy; serlous impairment to
bodily function, or serlous dysfunction of a body
organ or part...large amount of swelling o left calf

with fenderness...” ,

Medical record review of a Nurse Practitioner's
note dated April 18, 2014, at 4:46 p.m., revealed,
"with calf swelling, with recent frauma with ankle
Tracture, will US (ultrasound) /o (tule out)
DVT...with US, DVT noted with fluld, conceming
for compartment syndrome. (M.D. #4) spoke with-
(MD #11) with trauma, patient will be sent to
(Hospital #2) ER downtown for further

evaluation.*

Medical record review of a nurse's note dated
Aprll 18, 2014, at 5:09 p.m., revealed, "...Reason
for frarisfer, pt being transferred fo the ED, -
‘Diagnosls: DVT, Transported by non-urgent
ambulance, Copy of patient record prepared for
receiving facilily, Médlcation reconclliation form
prepared and sent fo recelving faciliiy, Patient
consent for transfer signed, Family member

confacted.”

Medleal racord review of the ED record revealed
medications administered to the patient in the ED

were Dilaudld and Phenergan for pain and
Event ID: TVOH1
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A2409 | Gontinued From pags 29 A240p| Corrective Action Plan:
sea, .
naligea Health Tnformation Management
(HIM) did not have & scarmed copy of

Medical record review revealed no fransfer farm,
Transfer Authorization, or consent for transfer
was found In the medical record. .

Medical record review of Hospitaj #2's FR Record
revealed, "(6:55 p.m.)...Complaint: DVT LLE (Left

Lower Extremity)...Pailent transferred from

another facillty..."

Medical record review of the ED physiclan history
and physical dated April 18, 2014, gt 7:07 p.m.,
revealed, "...bilateral leg and facial frauma,
discharged from (Hospital #2) and then
developed severs bilateral leg pairt, worse on the
left... There has been no change in the patient's
symptoms over time, are constant...n my-
prafessional medical judgment....this patient
presents with an emergency medical condition
manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufflcient
severily (including severe paln) that the absence
of iInmediate medical attention could reasaonahly
be expecied fa result in placing the pafient's
health in serious jeopardy; serlous Impalrment to
bodily function, or serlous dysfunction of a body

organ or part...(8:47 p.m.) Pulse, s
tachycardlo...extremities swollen bilaterally..."

Medical record review of the nursing notes
revealed the patient was started on heparin
(anticoagulant commonly administered for DVT)

on April 18, 2014, at 7:10 p.m.

Medical record review of an Admission Request
deted April 18, 2014, at 8:45 p.m., revealed,
| "Condition; Falr...Hospital Service: Surgery -

Trauma..."

the Transfer Form for pt #9, Itis
uuclear why the transfer form ywas
ot in the permanent elecqronie

medical record,

he Evlanger Bast Emergenc
deparfment now scans a copy of the
completed/signed transfer form info
the electronic emergency room -
‘ecord to assure the document i

Xetained in the record.
Monitoring of the Corrective Action
Process: ’

- Monitoring will be conducted
monthly for 4 continuoug months
begitming Tanvary 2015- April 2015
by the Yime cy Departmen

urse Manager af Exlange Tinst, A
toview of 70 cases per month will be
tandomly selected fo assess for
compliance of appropriate completion
of the new EMTATLA 'l'ransfe]:'{g‘om:
and presenge in the medical record
with & minimumm of90% compliance
tate, IFthis is not:met after 4 months
ofreview, the review oftecords will
be continued for an additional 4
months untl 90% compliance is
achieved, Results will be Teporied to
the Erlanger Hoalth System Quality .
Oversight Committee,

June 2014

1/2015-4/1015

||
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A2409 | Continued From page 30
Medical record review of a nurse's note dated
April 18, 2014, at 10:18 p.m., revealed,
"Admission: Patient admitted to telemeiry
unit..STAT (immediate) admission orders

completed..."

Medical record review of the ER Nursing Notes
revealed the patient was admiited fo Inpaffent on

April 19, 2014, at 12:39 a.m.

Telephone inferview with the Corporafe -

Preparedness/Safety Officer on May 18, 2014, at

1:80 p.m., revealed the facility was unable fo

.| locate a transfer form, Transfer Authorization, or
consent form for fransfer and conflrmed Patlent

#9 was inappropriately transferred on Aptil 18,

2014,

‘| Review of an ER Log revealed Fatlent #11
Dpresented to the ER on March 31, 2014

Medical record review of an ER Record dated
March 31, 2014, revealed, "(12:35 p.m.)
Complaint; Hip Paln, right hip." .

. Medical racord review of a nurse's note dated
March 81, 2014, at 12:44 p.m., revealed, “Triage
Information: seen her (here) on 8/26 for rigt
{right) hip and leg pain. pt continues fo have this
pain and is not able to sleep well. Pthas been
taking tylenal and motrin that Is not helping pain."

Medical record review of a history and physical

dated March 31, 2014, at 12:44 p.m., revealed,

"...Cerebral Palsy, seizure disorder, cerebral

afonia, severs thoracalumbar scoliosis,

.| osteoporosls...(12:58 p.m.) patient was seen last
Wednesday for bruising to right leg. Unsure of

Faollity ID: TNP531140
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A2409
The HIM department uses the

scanning process for all records
scanned and verification that all
documents received are scanned . Tn
addition HIM retains the hatd copy of
the record for 60 days before they are
destroyed - ongoing process.

Ongoing:
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A2409 | Contlnued From page 31
any Injury ar trauma, Patlent is non welght
bearing. wheel! chalir bound only. Uses assistance
when transferiing from wheslchair to
recliner..,patient has CP (Cerebral Palsy), is
non-verbal...Gradual onset of symptoms, 7, days
prior to arrival. There has been no change in the
patient's sympioms over fime, are constant...In
my professional medical judgment....this patient
presents with an emeygency medical condition
manifesting liself by acute sympioms of sufficient -
| geverlty (including severe pain) that the ahsence
of Immediate medical attention could reasonably
be expected to result in placing the patient's
health in serious Jeopardy; serfous impalrment to
hodily function, or serlous dysfunction of a body
organ or part...(1:01 p.m.) Patient appears, In
mild pain distress, Patlent appears to be
Uncomfortable...Lower extremity exam included
finidngs of inspection abnormal no abraslons, .
contusions present, no deformily...fight medial
_upper thigh, Range of mation, limited fo the right

hip..."

Medloal record review of a Family Nurse
Praciitioner's note dated March 81, 2014, at 1:02
p.m., revealed, "...brought back in for persistent
pain. X-ray over-read shows femoral neck
fraciure. Will GT and eall ortho (orthopedics).
Caretaker s ursure of any injury or frauma
patient has had in the past week...Spoke with
(M.D. #6), will look at CT and speak with ortho
attending. Patlent will need to be sent o ER o be

evaluaied by ortho." |

Medical record review of a radialogy report {CT)
dated March 81, 2014, af 1:13 p.m., revealed,
"Comparison: Right femur fracture,
3/26/2014...Impression: An acuts, comminuted

fracture of right femoral neck with markedly
Event ID:TVOI{1
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A2409 | Continued From page 82 : Agew fransfer ffgzgl v:};is %ﬂ%ﬂped
| gi e I and was approved by the He
displaced fracture fragments as discussed... Yirthitiin MamagsiaNt Forms
| Medical record review of & nurse's note dated Committee on 11/24/14. Tt vas sent
March 31, 2014, at 3:30 p.m., revealed, to the Print Shop for print and Wﬂflbe '
" Reason for transfer nead for speciglized care, ready for disteibution by 12/5/2014. i g
Diagnosis: Femur Fi raoture, accepting Institution ~ 12/542014
(Hospital #2), Accepting physician (M.D. #7), * (See attachment #4) } ’
Referring physician: (M.D. #1/FNP), Transported '
By non-urgent ambulance..." . ' .
Medical record rev]ew of a Transfer Auifioilzation _Monitoring of the Corrective
dated March 31, 2014, revealéd, "Stability Tha Action Process:
| patient [s stabllzed at the time of transfer and no 1. Monitoring will ba conducted
medical deterioration of the patlent's condltlon Is monthly for 4 continuous months
likely, within reasonable medical probabifify, to beginning Jannary 2015 April 2015
result from or ocour during the iransfer of the by the Emergency Department
indlvidual from this facllity...OR The Patlentis in a Nurse Manager af Erlanger Fast, A
state of an emergency medical condition, and | review of 70 cases per month will be
hereby certify that based upon the information randomly selected to assess for
avallable to.me at this time, the medical henefits compliance of appropriafe completion
reagonably expected from the provision of of the new EMTALA Transfer Form
appropriate medical treafment at another facility, and presence in the medical record
outweigh the increased risks fo the with a minimum of 90% compliance
individual...OR Patfent/Responsible Individual rate. Ifthis is not met after 4 months
requests transfer..." Review of the Transfer of review, the review of records will
Authorizatlon revealed all three options were be continued for an additional 4
checked. Further review of the Transfer months until 90% compliance is
Authorization revealed if was not documented achieved, Results will be reported to
the Erlanger Health System Quality
1/2015-4/1015

who the aceepiing physician was or who the
fransferring facilty was.

Medical record review of the ER record dated

March 81, 2014, at 3:87 p.m., revealed,
"...Disposition Tranépqrt: Ambulance, Patient left

the depariment..."

Medical record review of a Orthopedic
Consultation Report (Hospital #2) dated March

Oversight Commitiee.

- _If continuation sheet Page 83 of 34

81, 2014, revealed, "...slgns of painful hip since
Event ID; TVOH1
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A2409

A2408 | Gontinued From page 33
last Wednesday (March 26, 2014)...At that Hime,
X-rays were taken, which in refrospect showed a
femoral neck fracture that was missed, and the
patient was sent (home)...would then show slgns
of signlficant pain any fime his leg was moved or

anytime he was transferred from bed fo
chalr...x-ray of the right hip shows a displaced,

shortened and varus femoral neck fracture. CT

coniirms this fraclure and also shows
comminution, as well as what appears o he a

Pauwels Il orientation of the femoral neck
fraciure...Patient will likely go o the operating

room fomorrow..."

Interview with the Carporate Preparedness/Safety
Officer on May 12, 2014, at 8:00 p.m., in a
conference room, confirmed Patlent #11 was

Inappropriately ransferred,

Interview with the Corporate Preparedness/Safety
Officer on May 8, 2014, at 2:40 p.m., In a
conference room, revealed the facllity did not
have current approved EMTALA policies for
Hospital #1 (facility or the East Campus) except
for a transfer polfoy. . Further mterview confirmed
the unapproved policy with an origination date of

March 2014 was under review.

Interview with the ED Medioal Direcior on May 12,
2014, at 11:58 aum., in a conference room and

the presence of the Corporate
Preparedness/Safety Officer, revealed EMTALA

policy "verbage Is In our bylaws."

Edueafion:
Education will be provided to all

emergency staff on the new policy
updates ( BMTATLA Transfer
policy, EMTALA-Provision of On
Call Coverage Policy , the ney
EMTATA Transfer Form and the
education al power point
' esentation), This mandato
@ education will be distributed jn
nofebooks to each Emergency
Departments in the Erlanger Health
System. All emergency department
staff inclnding physician and
physician extenders will he
requived fo yead and acknowledge
by signature understanding of the
ew policies and processes by

Deeember 31, 2014,

12/31/2014

Facility ID: TNPE31140 If contlnuatlon sheet Page 84 of 3¢
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_Tennessee Health Services & Development Agency

1.)

Section A, Applicant Profile, Item 9 (Bed Complement
Table) and Section B, Project Description, Item II.B
(Changes In Bed Complement) .

The table in Section A for Erlanger East Hospital and
the discussion in Section B of related bed changes is
noted. The 6 NICU Level II beds approved in
CN0407-067A that were placed into service in 2004 are
not shown in Line F of the table. Please clarify.

Review of the Licensed Health Facilities Report on the
Tennessee Department of Health website last updated on
01/15/2016 revealed that Erlanger East Hospital and
Erlanger North Hospital operate under the 788-bed
combined license of Erlanger Medical Center (license #
00000140) . Using the template on page 6 of the
application, please provide a combined bed complement
table with breakout by classification of the 788 total
beds of Erlanger Medical Center, inclusive of any bed
changes as a result of the proposed project and any
outstanding CON projects that are in process of be<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>